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Johnston Press is one of the top 3 local
newspaper publishers in the UK and

a major force on the Internet.

A combination of continued cost management and development of digital and
anciliary revenue streams has resulted in 2010 operating prcfit showing an increase
on the prior year for the first time since 2004 (excluding the impact of acquisitions).

Finding new ways to
generate revenue

MNaw enterprises and development
of enhanced digital offering.

Delivering what our

audiences want

Market leading circufation perforrance
and signibcant website upgrades.

Investing in our people
Delivering programimes designed

to gncourage structured developrent
and congistent high standards.

An integral part of our local
communities

At the heart of community campaigns
and events.

22/06/2011
COMPANIES HOUSE

WEDNESDAY




Qur aim is to serve local communities across

a variety of channels, providing access to local
information. We have unique local content
created by teams of local experts who believe
that “Content is King”. Our coverage of local
stories and events is unrivalled across all media.




@oumwzw AR e e v e el e
L N

10.3 million readers

Print titles: Printing from 7 regional print centres
Daily - 18 Weekly paid-for - 156 Weekly free - 89

273 local websites

Extending audience reach to 67.7 million page impressions
per month, up 11.1% on 2009
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OVERVIEW

Key Financials

Total revenue of £398.1 million down 7.0% on last year
Like-for-like print advertising revenues* down 7.1% on last
year

Circulation revenues of £96.7 million down 2.8% on last year
{like-for-like)

Operating profit {before non-recurring and 1AS 21/39 items)
of £72.0 million representing an operating profit margin of
18.1%, both showing increases year-on-year

Revenue (E'm}

5 yoar comparison

Digital Revenues {£'m)

5 ysar comparison

Profit before tax of £16.5 million compared to a loss of
£113.8 million in 2009

£13.1 million net impairment charge against intangibles

Reduction in net debt of £35.4 million to £386.7 million
excluding term debt issue costs (see note 22)

2010 and 2011 scheduled reduction of facilities brought
forward to April 2010 and Septermber 2010 respectively

Net cash inflow from operating activities of £69.6 million
No dividend proposed
Operating Profit* (£'m)

Ipefore nor-recurring and [AS 21/39 ftems
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In all thesa graphs, 2009 was a 53 week pariod.

Operational Summary

* Print advertising revenue declines slowed across

the period

Like-for-like digital revenue growth of 4.0%

Operating costs (before non-recurring and IAS 21/39 items)t
down by £30.1 million, a saving of 8.4%.

* see pages 18 and 19

Tsee page 59
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New editorial Content Management System operational
across entire business

Over 230 news websites rolled out in our new template,
improving users’ digital experience

Partnership announced with Qype for digitat directory
and custcmer review offering
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So how is

Johnston Press
making progress
in a changing market?
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OVERVIEW

Finding New Ways to

Generate Revenue

Contract Printing
Revenues

After a period where the industry has
experienced significant excess capacity,
there have been a number of press
closures and, in 2009, the loss of a key
contract, our printing operation has been
successful in securing a number of new
print contracts during the year.

These included Classic Car Weekly, the
Hull Daily Mail and the Grimsby Evening
Telegraph.

Changing Mix of
Advertising Revenues

With the decline of certain elements
of classified advertising the Group has
focussed heavily on building display
revenues.

This has led to promotions which secure
pre-booked campaigns over a number

of weeks as well as selling to business
sectors which historically have not used
the local press such as Beauty and Fitness,
Legal Services and Healthcare.

New Enterprises

The Group has embarked on several
initiatives to either create new or enhance
existing ancillary revenue streams
associated with our newspaper brands.

These have included greater focus on
reader holidays and offers as well as a
new initiative of staging large regional
exhibitions/shows. The most notable
of these in 2010 was a pet show in

the East Midlands which attracted over
5,000 visitors and was covered by the
Financial Times.

Partnerships with
Jobsite, iAnnounce
and Qype

Following the successful
partnerships to enhance our
digital offering with Jobsite

and iAnnounce, the Group
announced an agreement with
Qype to provide an improved
business directory and customer
review service to our newspaper
websites.

This will not only increase the user
appeal of our sites but bring new
revenue opportunities to the Group.

The Group has also further cemented its
partnership with iAnnounce by agreeing
a 5 year extension to the current
contract.
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Delivering What

our Audiences Want

Best in Class! New
For the third ABC period WebSIteS

in succession, Johnston As part of the new editorial
Press has outperformed the Content Management

mdustr)_( average in terms o-f System implemented
circulation performance of its .
across the Group in

weekly titles with the dailies

outperforming the market in 2009110, we have been

two of the last three periods. rolling out significantly
upgraded news websites.

Recognising the structural changes in how

our audience chooses to keep updated These sites have Improved

with local news, we have been working navigation, increased video

on ways to make the purchase of the ' ) ) '

newspaper as easy as possible; these con?extua.l functhnallty and greater

include home delivery, loyalty discounts audience interaction. They also

for subscription and increased availability. provide improved linkage with our
classified advertising websites.

Digital Visitors

The variety of ways in which our
audience choose to access news
continues to change.

This is demonstrated by the increased
number of unique users visiting the
Group's websites, the greater demand for
maobile services and the success of the
Scotsman.com’s iPhone app, which has
been sold to over 5,000 users.

tevr 2 e
o e T il e

Review Panels We now have over 12,000 readers R 2
regularly providing feedback on our }()URN:\LM
The Group continues to make extensive p”l?“cat'ons aswell as a str UCt.“red — WM $QMW~W’“‘I:2“
use of review panels 10 improve its review process where publications T ‘
publicatians. are critically reviewed by their editors, e nran TN
readers and a peer group of other
editors. Statew o e
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OVERVIEW

An Integral Part of our
[.ocal Communities

Still totally focussed on local news delivery

- whatever the

Delivering news to communities ~ via print,
online or mobile -~ remains at the core of our

business.

Our newspapers and websites are part of everyday life in
the communities they serve and research shows more and
more people are using our online offering to keep up-to-date

between print editions.

Breaking news can be published instantly online and updated
within seconds. Live blogs have proved particularly useful in
fast-moving situations such as the English Defence League
protests in Luton and Peterborough. More than 6,000 people
followed blogs con each site and the Peterborough coverage

attracted 2,000 comments.

New software is also allowing us to embrace advertisers within
the online community, providing them with the opportunity to
place their messages next to appropriate content.

At the heart of
community life

Come along to meet T
the gdhw on Saturday

o vorum
]

R
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We are proud of the presence

we have established in our
communities and work hard to
nurture the trust and loyaity our
customers place in us. We have
piaced a fresh focus on back-
to-basics journalism which sees
editors, reporters and other key
staff getting involved directly with
readers and advertisers by holding
‘surgeries’ in shopping centres,
supermarkets and cafes.

Reader panels and ongoing research
across the Group provide us with
valuable information on customer
behaviour and demands, and allows us
to tailor our print and online offering for
maximum benefit.

Through fund-raising initiatives,
sponsorship, hard-hitting campaigns,
awards ceremonies to recognise
community achievement, and an unfailing
dedication to providing the latest news,
features, sport and entertainments, our
newspapers and websites remain at the
heart of communities across the UK and
Republic of Ireland.
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Investing in
our People

Development and Training

The ongoing success of our
business is built on the quality
of our people and our ability
to align our resources and
adapt to the changing needs
of the business.

Future Focussed

The introduction of 2 new editorial
Content Management System across the
Group led to the redesign of workflows
and the requirement to streamline our
resources. While this unfortunately
resulted in 230 people being placed

at risk of redundancy, extensive
consultation minimised the number of
compulsory redundancies with around
B5% of affected employees opting for
voluntary redundancy or redeployment.

Content management system users
received training and support from a
dedicated team of editorial trainers
who were critical in ensuring that
our editorial teams had the skills and
competence required.

In a period of overall economic uncertainty,
there has been continued focus on cost

control, efficiencies and investing for the
future. Through 2010, we continued to
invest in our people with the development
of several programmes designed to improve
their skills and competencies. This included

the roll cut of a modular management
development programme, iManage, and
the redevelopment and launch of a field
sales career path tool designed to
encourage structured development and
consistent standards aimed at raising
sales effectiveness.

Rewarding our People

In conjunction with ongoing benefit
reviews, we recormmenced salary reviews
for employees below the executive level
with increases being consistent with

the market.

In July 2010, we were pleased to offer
Group Income Protection for active
pension plan members who were absent
from work due {o long-term liiness.

In addition an Employee Assistance

Programme, accessible by all employees,
was |launched providing confidential
advice, guidance and support to
employees and their immediate family
members.

Due to the ongoing need to manage the
liabilities of the Jehnston Press Pension
Plan, the final salary section was closed
to future accrual from 30 June 2010.
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OVERVIEW ~ CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Chairman’s
Statement

tan Russell

Components of Revenue 2010
£'m

Contract
printing  Other

273 202

Digital

S

Newspaper
sales

967 2358
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During 2010, Johnston Press continued to provide
its customers with industry leading local news and
advertising opportunities.

Innovation by our local publishing teams combined with the introduction of new technology
developed centrally, has enabled us to improve significantly the quality of our business over the
past year. The implementation of a new Content Management System led to further efficiencies
whilst the introduction of our enhanced websites provides the opportunity to gain additional
context-based advertising revenue.

This time last year we experienced the return of a measure of stability in advertising revenue and
we were well positioned to benefit from any cyclical upturn. However, as the year progressed we
saw less consistent recovery in revenues, culminating in a weaker than expected fourth quarter.
Additional cost reduction throughout the year, in part through the introduction of new technology,
helped to broadly maintain our level of profitability, albeit that the like-for-like (as defined on page
18) growth in profit we saw in the first half was lower guring the final six months. The outcome
therefore was a year with weaker revenues than anticipated, but with profit and cash flow
maintained by actions taken to reduce costs,

Strategy

Our core competences are providing strong local news and information coverage and attracting
advertising and associated revenue. Our content and brands are established and well respected
in their local communities. Our vision is to utilise that local news and information to create and
sustain strong local brands which operate both in print and in digital media.

To support that vision, our strategy is to innovate locally to maintain print circulation and maximise
advertising revenue; develop profitable partnerships which allow us to continue to grow our digital
revenues; and develop associated revenue streams which capitalise on our strong local brands.

Results

The continued, albeit slower, decline in print advertising revenues was the main contributing
tactor to a decrease of £29.9 million in total revenues from 2009 levels to £398.1 million. Print
advertising revenues dropped from £256.3 million to £235.8 milion, although digital revenues
grew by 3.2% to £18.3 million. The latter was primarily driven by strong growth in employment
revenues associated with the full year benefit of the Jobsite pannership with DMGT launched in
August 2009. The overall rate of print advertising decline has reduced over the course of the year.

The Group has made further progress in reducing its cost base throughout the year which

has offset the decline in revenues and is reflected in the operating profit {betore non-recurmring
and |IAS 21/39 items) of £72.0 million, 0.3% or £0.2 million up on the 53 week period in 2009.
This represents an operating margin of 18.1% which compares favourably with our peers in

the sector. Newspaper sales revenue was £96.7 million, down £4.5 million (4.5%) on 2C09.
Newspaper circulations declined by an average of 4.7% for weekly titles and by 7.3% far daily
titles. It is clear however that the long-term downward trend in newspaper sales continues,
reflecting evolving readership and purchasing patterns and technological advances in accessing
news and information.

The refinancing in 2009 led to higher interest charges, as a result of which undertying earnings
per share, at 3.67p, were down by 33.6% compared to 5.53p in 2009. The pre-tax profit for the
year was £16.5 million, with a profit before tax of £30.5 million relating to trading before non-
recurring and I1AS 21/39 items.

Net debt at the end of the year was £386.7 million, a reduction of £35.4 million from the
beginning of the year. As we reported in November, the reduction in net debt allowed us to bring
forward the £30.0 million reduction of our facilities scheduled in 2011 to 30 September 2010.
This will lead to a saving in the regien of £1.0 millien in interest costs in 2011.
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Given the Group's historic
strengths and presence in
the many communities

It serves, our oppoertunity
now is to be innovative

in growing revenues both
tfrom traditional and new
sources and capitalising

on the economic recovery
when it gathers pace.

ToioLi Rl LN Yot AT O an s

e

Share Price and Dividend

Despite a strong performance in the earty part of the year, our share price fell back to levels
similar to those seen in early 2009 as doubts over UK economic recovery, public sector spending
cuts and the strength of the advertising market continued. In ling with our previously stated palicy,
and in accordance with the provisions of our financing arrangements, no dividend is proposed for
the year, The Group will continue to use any excess cash to reduce its indebtedness.

Board

In April we marked the retirement of Freddy Johnston after serving for over 50 years as a Director
of the Company. We wish Freddy a long and happy retirement. We also extend our good wishes
to Peter Cawdron and Martina King who also stood down as Non Executive Directors at that
time. The Board thanks them for their service to the Company. In October, Stuart Paterson, who
has served as our Chief Financial Officer for nearly ten years announced his intention to step
down from the board to join Forth Ports. | would like t¢ thank him for his dedication to Johnston
Press and the whole Board wishes Stuant every success for the future.

On 4 March 2011 we announced the appointment of Grant Murray as our new Chiet Financial
Officer. Grant brings significant experience in senior financial roles within the media sector,
including at Guardian Media Group plc. Channel 5 Broadcasting and United Business Media plc.
We look forward to welcoming him to the Board when he joins the Company on 3 May.

In July we were delighted to announce the appointment of Kjell Aamot to our Board as a Non
Executive Director. Kjell was Chief Executive Officer of Schibsted ASA, the Norwegian publisher,
from 1989 to 2009. He is also a Non Executive Member of the Board of PubliGroupe, a Swiss
based listed marketing and sales organisation, and an advisor to FSN Capital, an Oslo based
private equity firm. He will stand for election to the Board at our AGM in Edinburgh on 28 Apnil.
As reported last year, at the start of 2010 Geoff Iddison, Meastercarc’s he ¢ of e-commerce
and m-commerce alse joined the Board as a Non Executive Cirector. Both Kjell and Geoff are
welcome additions to the Board.

On 9 March 2011 we announced that John Fry, Chief Executive Officer, had notified the Board
of his intention to step down from his role by March 2012, thereby providing sufficient time to
facilitate a smooth handover to his successor. The process is now being started to find John's
successor and a further announcement will be made at the appropriate time.

The governance landscape for UK listed companies has continued to evolve, Our Board meets
regularty throughout the year and the range of experience and expertise that the members bring
has ensured a constructive challenge of management and healthy, open debate over key issues
facing the Company. We have worked hard to ensure that the balance of our Board and the
matters considered by it are appropriate for our business and that all Directors receive sufficient
information and training for their roles. | am confident that we have an effective Board to address
the challenges we face.

Employees

Once again | would like to offer my thanks and appreciation to the dedicated staff throughout
Johnston Press for their hard work during the year. Further consolidation of our cost base

has regrettably led to some additional redundancies and these difficult decisions reflect the
challenging market conditions the Group continues to face. The commitment of our staff has
been exemplary during this time and they have a key role in ensuring the Group's future success.

Outlook

The pace and consistency of the economic recovery remains uncertain and this is reflected in a
weaker start to 2011 than we had anticipated. Nevertheless, much of the Group's work in 2010
was concentrated on improving systems and technology and making processes more efficient.
Given the Group's histaric strengths and presence in the many communities it serves, our
opportunity now is to be innovative in growing revenues both from traditional and new sources
and capitalising on the economic recovery when it gathers pace.

bl

lan Russell
Chairman
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Overview
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After four years of operating profit decline, 2010 saw
a return to profit growth for the Group.

Market Summary

Although the UK economy officially came out of recession in 2010, the advertising market stilt
remained challenging. The employment market, which had started to show some signs of
improvernent over the first quarter, unfortunately deteriorated over the second half of the year as
public spenging cut-backs were clearly evidenced in the reduction in public sector jobs being
advertised. We also saw in the property market, after an encouraging start to the year with growing
revenues, a reduction in the volume of transactions and mortgage approvals and this undoubtedly
caused a slow down in property advertising in the fourth quarter. The general display market also
saw an impact from the public sector spending review with the Central Office of Infoermation spend
in our papers reducing by 90% in the second half when compared to the first half.

In the year, our print advertising was down by 7.1% on a like-for-like basis {see page 19) and
although this was a further decline it was at a much slower rate than that experienced in 2009.
Within print advertising, property performed best growing during the year by 4.0%. However, as
noted above, this performance slowed in the latter part of the year. Display advertising, our largest
category, reduced by only 2.4% and saw improved trends in the latter part of the year despite the
impact of the reduction in public sector spending referred to above. Employment revenues saw the
largest impact of the public sector declines and reduced by 28.9%. In total, public sector retated
advertising was less than 9% of our total advertising in the second half of the vear.

Contract printing was impacted by the loss of centracts and the closure of two plants in 2009, -
As our capacity rebalancing was completed in the earty part of the year we have been able to look
for new opportunities as the year progressed. This culminated in contracts to print the Hull Daity
Mail and the Grimsby Evening Telegraph for Narthcliffe being won in the last quarter. The addition
of these new contracts has positioned contract printing well for 2011.

With advertising still declining, the focus on cost has continued. Like-for-like operating costs (before
non-recuiring and |1AS 21/39 iterms) fell by £28.3 milion or 8.0% during the year. This was achieved
through investment in new systems and the continuing centralisation of back-office functions, while
ensuring focus on local communities by keeping editorial and field sales local. By the year-end

the installation of the improved editorial and Content Management Systems was completed and
over 2,000 journalists are now using the new system. This has enabled us to have a single view

of editorial content independent of how it is delivered to customers. As new delivery mechanisms
become available we expect these systems to be capable of automatically detivering content
without extensive rework.

The rationalisation process included the closure of the printing press in Limerick. Printing has been
moved to our larger press in Northern Ireland with some titles outsourced. Improved processes
and centralisation of functions have resufted in the Group reducing the average number of staff
employed by the Group from 6,835 to 6,209 (3.2%) during the year. We recognise that this is a
difficult situation for many of our staff but we have managed to achieve this reduction with the vast
majority coming through vacancies not being filled or voluntary redundancy.

Debt Reduction

The Board's focus has remained one of debt reduction and despite significantly higher finance
costs, as a result of a full year of the facilities put in place in August 2009, net debt came down by
£35.4 million during the year. This was achieved through continued good cash generation, control
of working capital and limiting capital expenditure.

Strategy

{a) Print
While newspaper circulations have been in slow decline for many years the rate of decline can be
influenced by the type of publication and the degree of investment in product guality. Our mix of
business is skewed towards weekly newspapers, most of which are the leaders within their local
communities. Overall 65.2% of our advertising revenues are in weekly newspapers, which have
over recent years enjoyed better circulation trends than their daily equivalents due to their more
localised footprint. They have also enjoyed better advertising trends due to the mix of advertising.
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In order to improve the quality of our newspapers and ensure a sharp focus on their local
markets, our editorial review process has been expanded to over 100 titles. This process
gathers feedback from readers and editorial staff and results in an improvement programme
for each publication.

Product quality has been assisted by the investment in new editorial and Content Management
Systemns which have enabled significant changes in workfiow. Increased focus is placed on the
creation of news content while the subsequent production process has been largely automated.

During the past six years, much classified advertising has been lost dug to increased
competition from digital alternatives and through the ecenomic downturn. This has encouraged
the Group to focus on developing display revenues from both new and existing customers.

A new programme of customer acquisition has been introduced across the business resulting
in new local advertisers and new categories of display revenus. Whilst we expect some return
of classified advertising as the economy improves, further structural change is inevitable.
However, as much of the structural/cyclical impact has aready occurred, the future impact

of structural change is likely to be more muted and balanced by the cyclical bounce.

®

—

Digital

Our digita) strategy is to leverage the assets of our newspaper business into the online world.
These assets inciude unique ocal news and information content, relationships with readers
and advertisers and strong local brands. By leveraging these assets we are able to create an
advantage over on-line competitors.

Digital revenues returned to growth during the year driven primarily by the improved recruitment
proposition launched in August 2009, Through working with a partner, the Dziy Mail & General
Trust's (OMGT) Jobsite, we were able to rapidly introduce a better recruitmenit offering into our
local markets. This has enabled us to improve our local market share in terms of the number
of jobs available on the site and respense to advertiserments through visitor numbers; in 6 out
of 9 of our major local markets we are in first or second position in terms of site visitors. These
improved websites will enable us to hold our strong position in local recruitment with a unique
combination of print and digital products.

During the year we have completed the rollout across the Group of improved editorial and
Content Management Systems. This system has provided the Group with an improved platform
on which to launch new products. Updated websites utiising the system are now live in over
90% of our markets. These sites utilise Autonomy software in conjunction with our editorial and
Content Management Systems to create the ability of coding our editorial cantent in preparation
for both improved contextual advertising and automated use of our editorial content. These are
important building blocks which can be exploited further to develop our digital business.,

A new digita! business directory developed in partnership with Qype will also leverage the

new platform. The directory will be fully integrated within our local news websites and enable
advertising to be appropriately placed within the site. The new system is now in prototype and
will be launched 1o customers during March/April 2011.

During the year we participated in the process to gain a local television licence to provide
news within Scotland. Our bid, in conjunction with three other partners, was selected due to
the high quality and depth of editorial content and our multi-media offering. Unfortunately, due
to the change in Government, the process was then aborted and we find ourselves in a new
Government programme to create local TV stations. At this stage, we are doubtful that this will
lead to significant revenues for the Group.

Summary

After four years of operating profit decline, 2010 saw a return to profit growth for the Group.
Advertising, whilst still declining, is considerably more stable than in the preceding two years.
Digital revenues grew during the year and a pipeline is in place for further digital launches in 2011,
Finally, the level of debt has continued to decline despite increased interest payments, and debt
ratics have improved.
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BUSINESS REVIEW - OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Operational

Review

Danny Cammiade

During 2010 work continued on the Group’s stated
aim of focussing its publishing operations on
revenue, audience, communities and people. A key
component of this approach is the centralisation of
non-publishing activities into a single operating unit.

To this end, a new service division was formed in 2010 to cover printing, logistics, transport,
advertisement design and associated health and safety controls.

The publishing divisicns have also been reduced from seven to five, being Scotland and North
East England, the North of England, the Midlands, the South of England and Ireland {covering
the whole of the island). This provides better management consistency for revenue responsibility,
more effective use of resource and reduces the number of direct reports intc the senior
management team.

Digital

Aligned to this strategy is the use of technology to create a single view of content within one
Group-wide Content Management System which can be used for multiple platforms such as the
newspaper, the internet and mobile. During the year, this project was completed.
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. In keeping with the approach to continue to
D grow digital revenues by partnering with key
providers, agreement was reached with Qype,

: - Energy has cvolved a leading onling directory business based
Save anergy, save maney

across Europe, to provide a business directory
platformt integrated into the new websites.
This will greatly improve the business listing
senvice currently on offer and enhance
interaction with our audience, particularly with
the ability to review services. This is expected
to increase the Group's revenue far business
listings in 2011.
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During 2010 the Group also launched an iPhone application for The Scotsman which was the
first Scottish-based iPhone news service of its kind. To date, over 5,000 users have downloaded
the application.

T Systems

In addition to the work undertaken to improve our digital performance, the IT function has been
preparing the Group's infrastructure to ensure its sales function has a single customer view and
at the paint of contact the sales person has the most up to date information available. This is a
long-term project involving over 2,000 sales staff and it is unlikely to be completed until late 2012,
though some benefits have already been derived from a trial project to centralise telephone sales
activities further. This trial, which demonstrated that improved technology created efficiencies

and increased sales opportunities, is being used as a framework for planning telephone sales
resource going forward.

Organisation Structure

Work was also completed on the overall organisation structure to ensure it is balanced and in
keeping with the economic reality faced by the Company. In this regard projects started in 2009
to reduce workflow in editorial departrments and streamline sub-editing functions were cormpleted,
back room activities associated with newspaper production were consolidated from 9to 3
operating units and locally managed trangport and logistic teams were moved to a Group-wide
function managed within the newly created services division. In addition, management teams were
streamlined.

As pait uf the overall strategy to improve sales activities, the position of Group Com.r=arciat -+
Director has been created. This role will focus on ensuring that best practice is shared

and implemented across the Group, that national advertisers (an area of increased activity)

are more closely interacted with, and that the Group's digital and in-print strategies are aligned
where appropriate.

Given the consolidation of our telephone sales activities, a Contact Centre Director position has
also been created to ensure our telephone contact centres have the necessary management
skills and competencies to provide a first class service to our customers and that our knowledge
on best practice in this sector is up to date. This role will oversee the further consolidation of

the Group’s telephone sales activities and the installation of technology to support the improved
customer service.

JORNSTON PRESS PLG ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2030 13




BUSINESS REVIEW -~ GPEAATIONAL REVIEW

Audience by component
milions

Wosldios
4.5

Daies
l 13

Internat

14 JOHNSTON PRESS PLC ANNUAL REPORY AND ACCOUNTS 2010

Audience Delivery

Maintaining audience both in print and online is a key part of our overall strategy and in this
regard further steps have been taken to ensure our newspapers and websites meet the needs
of our readers and viewers. To ensure this is the case, over 100,000 people are actively engaged
in providing consumer feedback on our various products. This includes 12,000 reader panellists
who respond to guestionnaires and give views on product additions and changes, and 14,000
readers who work with our in-house research team giving feedback alongside editors and senior
journalists as part of our newspaper product evaluation process.

This work has been supported by a move towards retaining newspaper readers by offering
incentives for long-term subscription to our newspapers. Every publisher has a reader retention
ptan in place which encourages payment by direct debit for 12 month contracts.

As a result of these initiatives sales performance improved during the year with weekly titles 0.6%
better in the second half of the year at —4.4% and daily newspapers 7.8% down, Encouragingly,
nine of our weekly newspapers recorded an increased sales performance year-on-year including
the Hastings Observer and the Worthing and Shoreham Herald. The performance of our daily
titles in the second half of the year was disappointing. However, 6 of our 18 daily titles performed
above the industry average including the Scarborough Evening News and the Belfast Newsletter,
both of which were in the top 20 performances for the period in the market.

Digital audiences continued to grow with unique users up 3.0% on 2009 to an average of
7.1 million per month,

Business Development

Using the experience of the Company's established emigration exhibition business, the Group
launched five new shows across its publishing portfolio. These larger exhibitions were part of a
trial to determine if significant new revenue could be achieved alongside the already successiul
smaller shows operated by our publishing centres. Of the five exhibitions, the largest was
LovePets held in November. This show, although hampered by the bad weather, successfully
attracted national advertisers and exhibitors and demonstrated that events of this scale can be
staged. Other events were also successfully delivered across the Group including the Magic

of Christmas held in Northern Ireland, the South of England and the North of England.

tn order to improve other revenue streams from our existing audience of over 17 milion readers
and viewers, an experienced enterprise manager was appainted. This has helped formulate new
ideas and partnerships to grow revenues such as reader holidays, commissions on utility services
and discounted goods offered uniguely to our readers. As a result of these initiatives, other
revenues grew by 1.1% to £20.2 million (on a like-for-like basis).

Services Division

The print division was renamed to reflect the growing range of services it provides to the
publishing companies, which now include pre-press, transport & logistics, page planning and
health and safety.

In the: more traditional area of print services, further steps were taken to improve efficiency by
moving 10 one print centre in Ireland and closing the Limerick plant, changing shift patterns at
Peterborough and realigning management to reflect this reduced capacity. New contracts were
secured to print the Grimsby Evening Telegraph and Hull Daily Mail, and the division was again
recognised by the industry for its printing standard.

The expanded services division has made substantial progress in consoclidating the disparate
activities associated with newspaper production, and resulted in savings of over £1.7 million.
This process will also lead to further efficiencies and improvements to service levels, particularty
in the area of advertisement creation where self serve and automated processes will provide
more timely and higher quality solutions.
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The move to a single soiution for the Group’s
transport and logistics needs brought an
immediate benefit both in overall costs and

in the implementation of best practice. This
included the move to wholesale arrangements
for the majority of our titles and the review of
direct delivery arrangements, the latter bringing
substantial cost savings.

Staff Development and Welfare

The main area of focus remains the
minimisation of the effect of restructuring

the organisation. In this regard the greatest
impact has been the restructuring of the
editorial departments which involved over

230 individuals, It is encouraging 1o report that
around 85% were accommodated without

the need for compulsery redundancies. In
addition to this work, support has been given
to change within the services division involving
over 100 staff and within publishing and
finance departments where local activities
were centralised during the year.

A new centralised HR helpdesk was created
{o give management teams immediate access
to HR professionals and the most up to

date advice.

During the year over 2,000 journalists and
sales staff completed in-house training
programmes and internal communication was
improved following the appointment of a new
Group Communications Officer. This is part of
a strategy 0 improve communication both up
and down the organisation and includes a new
weekly eNewsletter for all employees which will
cover the key activities of the Group.

Following extensive consultation with staff and
their representatives, the Group's final salary
pension plan was closed to future accrual

at the half year. As part of this change, staff
were offered alternative membership of the
Group's defined contribution pension plan
along with other benefits including a new
income protection scheme and employee
assistance programme.
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Qur largest revenue stream,
which has been most
impacted by the economic
recession and structural
change, down 7.1%
year-on-year.

With the decline in print
advertising revenues, new
complementary revenue

streams are being developed.

To offset declining revenues,
£30,1m of operating cost
savings were achieved

in 2010.

The Group seeks to
grow profits te enhance
shareholder value.

Reducing net debt is a key
priority for the Group.

* the decline has skowed during 2010,
with growth seen in property advertising
and in some geographic markets

* impacted by advertising moving to
digital media

* public sector cuts are reducing
revenues

New revenue streams include:

* new digital partnerships to
generate incremental revenues

+ events and exhibitions
* new external contract printing

These were achieved through:

¢ restructure of transport and logistics
¢ implementation of new technology
¢ management restructure

¢ tight control of newsprint usage

First like-for-like operating profit

improvement since 2004

* Growth was achieved through tight
cost control and development of
new revenue streams

+ QOperating profit margin improved

from 16.8% to 18.1%

* Operating cashflow for the year
of £69.6 million

= Pulled forward facility reductions
planned for 2010 and 2011

* Net cash used to reduce debt
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This is a measure of the profit
earned per share in
the Company.

Johnston Press remains
committed to improving
health and safety for all
employees and reducing the
number of accidents at work.

Increased unique users
provide a more attractive

proposition to our advertisers.

As evidenced throughout
the newspaper industry,
circulation declines have
continued in 2010, although
the Group has a strong track
record relative to its peers.
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» Despite increasing the operating
profit in the year, there has been a
decline in undertying earnings per
share due to higher interest rates
paid on debt in 2010

Improvements in health and safety

included:

+ appointment of a new Health and
Safety Manager early in 2011

* maintaining safety awareness
through campaigns

+ independent audits of risks

Unique users have increased through:

+ Improved content managemsnt

+ Partnerships such as Jobsite and
iAnnounce which help enhance
our website offerings

* Updated website designs

To reduce the decline Johnston

Press has:

+ |ncreased market research and
reader feedback programmes

+ Established a review process to
improve newspaper quality

* Reviewed delivery methods
including subscriptions
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Performance
Review

Stuart Paterson

UK Print Advertising Revenue 2010

Proportion by Category

Employment Motors

11.6%

] 10.0%

14.7%

Other classified

23.7%

The revenue declines that the Group has experienced
through the recession continued in 2010, albeit at

a much reduced rate. The impact of this was lower
than in previous years due to the significant ongoing
cost management activities within the Group. These
activities more than offset the revenue declines so
that on a like-for-like basis the Group succeeded

in growing operating profit (excluding the impact of
acquisitions) for the first time since 2004.

Trading Review

The table below compares the combined digital and print advertising by category over the
first half and the second half of the year for the UK business on a like-for-like basis. The total
advertising revenues for the Republic of treland business have been included on a constant
currency basis.

The period to 2 January 2010 was a 53 week period. The impact of the 53rd week is shown
in the table below and all comparisons which are termed as being on a “like-for-like™ basis are
calculated by comparing the 52 weeks of 2010 against the relevant 52 weeks of 2009.

As can be seen the year-on-year decline in the second half of the year was broadly consistent
with the first half with the improvement we had hoped for not materiafising. The main reasen for
this was cut backs in public sector expenditure post the general election and the Government's
spending review. The impact of this is mast notable on the employment category where public
sector recruitment has dropped significantly, and the other classified category where we saw
reductions in the volumes of public notices.

QOther notable trends were property where the rate of growth seen in the first half slowed, in line
with the volume of property transactions, and the improvement in motors and display advertising
reflecting the GDP growth seen in the UK economy.

Agvertising Revenue - Print & Digital by half year (like-for-like)

52 week pericd First half to June Second half to December

2010 2009 % 2010 2009 Y% 2010 2009 %
Year/Half Year £'m 2'm changse £'m £'m change £'m £'m change
UK
Employment 337 419 (o.m 20.3 242 (16.1) 13.4 17.7 (24.3)
Property 334 3.8 52 18.4 16.4 12.6 15.0 15.4 (2.6)
Motors 228 247 {7.8) 120 13.2 8.8) 10.8 11.5 6.1)
Other Classified 56.8 61.4 {7.5) 29.8 32.2 {7.0) 27.0 29.2 (7.5)
Display 96.4 98.1 1.n 48.0 49.7 {3.6) 48.4 48.4 -
UK Total 2431 257.9 5.7 128.5 135.7 {5.2) 1146 1222 6.2
Republic of retand 1.0 13.6 (19.1) 57 7.4 (25.0 53 6.2 (15.04
Group Total 254.1 2715 (6.4} 134.2 143.1 6.3} 119.8 1284 6.7)
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We also saw an improvement in the rate of decline in the Republic of Ireland but this is a result of
the comparatives in 2008 being lower rather than any improvernent in the economic conditions in
that market.

The table below summarises revenues and total costs for the Group for 2010 and against 2009
with the impact of the 53rd week in that year isolated.

Print advertising which is included in the total advertising revenue analysis above declined by
7.1% on a like-for-like basis which is a significant improvement on the 27.4% decline reported
in 2009.

Newspaper sales were down by 2.8% on the same Dasis, which is a slight deterioration on the
1.8% decline reported last year. However, approximately 1% of the overall decline was a resuit
of moving more of our litles to wholesalers which results in a lower net sales price but whichis
more than offset by a reduction in distribution costs. As mentioned in the Operational Review
there were continuing declines in the circulation of our titles but increased cover prices across
the majority of our portfolio helped mitigate the impact.

Cigital revenues grew on a like-for-like basis by 4.0% in the year. This growth was driven by
employment and display revenues. The rate of growth in employment related revenues stowed in
the second half of the year for two reasons, firstly, the benefit we enjoyed from our partnership
with the Daily Mail Group on Jobsite passed its implementation anniversary such that the uplift
we experienced on entering this arrangement is now inciuded in the comparatives; and secondty
the significant reduction in print recruitment advertising listings that were available fi: upase iito
digital. Display revenues showed good growth throughout the year as the popularity of our rews
websites grew and other initiatives such as selling video advertising onto our news websites
gained traction.

Contract print revenues decreased on a like-for-like basis by 17.1%. This reduction was caused
in part by our decision to close our printing operations in Edinburgh and Kilkenny in the second
half of 2009. Although these closures did result in a net saving to the Group, there ware third
party revenues that were lost as a consequence. The balance of the decrease has been driven
by decreasea volumes on existing third party contracts and the full year effect of the loss in 2009
of the Financial Times print contract.

Performance summary for 2010 and 2009

2010 2009 Eliminate 2009 % change
52 weeks 53 weeks 1st week 52 weeks Like-for-like
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Print advertising 235.8 256.3 (2.4) 2539 (7.1)
Newspaper sales 96.7 101.2 (1.7} 99.5 (2.8
Digital 18.3 17.7 0.1) 17.6 4.0
Contract printing 2741 327 - 32.7 (17.1}
Other 20.2 2041 (0.1) 20.0 11
Total revenues 398.1 428.0 4.3) 423.7 {6.0)
Operating costs (pefore non-recurring and IAS 21/39 items) 326.1) {356.2) 1.8 {354.4) 8.0
Operating profit 72.0 71.8 (2.5) 69.3 3.9
QOperating margin 18.1% 16.8% 16.4%
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Year-on-year operating
profit increase

Despite continued declines in print
advertising revenues the Group has
managed to mitigate this to deliver
an operating profit increase. Activities
included:

* Reduction in number of operating
divisions

* tmproved editorial workflow

Centralisation of Transport &
Logistics, HR and Credit Control

Closure of Limerick printing
operation in the Republic of lretand
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Other revenues on a like-for-like basis increased by 1.1%. Around 40% of the revenue in

this category comes from leaflets distributed with our free newspapers. Responding to the
declines in advertising we have made reductions in the distribution of some of our free titles
and some have ceased to be viable, This has resutted in an overall reduction in the distribution
of free papers of 9% and this has been directly reflected in the leaflet revenues. There has,
however, been good growth in other revenue streams within this category such as locat awards,
exhibitions and reader offers. The increases in these revenue streams have more than offset the
decline in leaflet revenues.

In total, like-for-like revenues were down by 6.0% year-on-year,

Total operating costs for the Group, excluding non-recurring and 1AS 21/39 items, were £326.1
million, This represents a decrease of 8.0% on a like-for-like basis over 2009. This saving was
achieved despite the end of the Group's salary freeze in July 2010 and increased newsprint
prices in the second half of the year. Unfortunately newsprint prices are increasing sharply again
in 2011 in part reflecting the significant increase in the prices being paid for newsprint waste.

A significant element of the 2010 cost savings relates to the implernentation of the Content
Management System discussed in the operational review. There were also significant cost
savings related to the closure of printing presses and the transfer of some newspaper distribution
to wholesalers both of which are mentioned above.

This overall cost reduction more than offset the like-for-like revenue reduction such that on the
same basis, operating profit (before non-recurring and 1AS 21/38 items) was £72.0 million, up
from £69.3 milion in 2009, This is the first iike-for-like annual operating proiit inc, < ase (excluding
the impact of acquisitions) since 2004. The operating profit margin for the year was 18.1%,

an increase on the 16.4% reported in 2009.

Non-recurring and IAS 21/39 ltems

In addition to the trading resufts discussed above, there have been several items that have been
identified as non-recurring either due to the nature of the item or their materiality. The most
significant of these items are as follows:

a) As has been the case in prior periods, the Group Is reguired under IAS 36 to test the carrying
value of its intangible assets for indications of impairment. in 2009 this resulted in a net
charge of E126.0 million. The testing at 1 January 2011 has resulted in a net charge of
£13.1 million, primarity due io the print advertising performance in Q4 continuing into earty
2011 and the increase in newsprint costs. Details of the impairment test assumptions and
the carrying values by segment are included in note 15.

) In November 2010 the Group announced the closure of its printing operations in Limerick.
This resufted in the bock value of the assets in this division being written down to their
realisable value and a provision being taken against the remaining period of the lease. This
resulted in a non-recurring charge of £4.0 million.

¢} As discussed in the Operational Review, the Group continues to re-engineer the way in
which it carries out its business and this has resulted in fundamental restructuring and
reorganisation in several areas of the business including pre-press, transport and logistics,
editorial work flow, management, credit control and contact centres. These changes resulted
in redundancy costs of £7.7 million, which have been recorded as non-recurring items.

d) As discussed in the 2009 Annual Report and Accounts, the Group took the decision
to de-designate all its financial derivatives and cease applying the hedge accounting
requiraments of IAS 39 at the start of that year. This has the effect that all of the changes
in the value of these financial instruments, and the assets/iabilities that they relate to, are
recorded in the Income Statement. The effect of this is illustrated in a separate column of
the face of the statement and the detail on the adjustments is included in note 11c.
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e) Finally, as referred to in the tax rate section following, the Group has released certain tax
provisions relating to the share warrants issued as part of the refinancing and in respect of
tax years which have now been settled with HMRC. These items have been classified as
non-recurring because of their nature and size (£13.6 million). Alsa included in non-recurring
tax items is the impact of the reduction in the rate of deferred tax to 27%, a credit of £8.9
milion, and the release of deferred tax provision on publishing titles that have been impaired.

Finance Income/Costs
The net finance income on pension assetsMiabilities was £0.4 million as the expected return on
the pension fund assets was marginally higher than the interest cost on our pension kabilities.

Finance costs for the year were £41.9 million. This represents a very significant increase over
the E28.8 million {before non-recurring items) reported last year. The charge this year reflects a
blended rate of 10.0% and represents a full year of the financing facilities put in place in August
2009. This blended rate, which includes the payment-in-kind interest (PIK)}, is comparable with
the rate for the last four months of 2008 of 9.9%. The charge in the Income Statement also
includes £5.3 million being the amortisation of the fees, which totalled in excess of £16 million,
associated with the refinancing. The Group’s exposure to US dollar interest payments and
principal repayments on the private placement loan notes are 97.8% hedged from a currency
point of view and the overall percentage of our borrowings which have been swapped to fixed
interest rates is 88%.

Profit before tax

The Group’s profit before tax for the year was E16.5 million, an increase of £130.3 milion on the
loss before tax of £113.8 million reported in 20098, The main driver behind this increase is the
significantly lower net impairment of intangible assets reported in 2010, £112.9 milion lower than
the net impairment charge reported in the prior year.

Tax Rate

The Group tax rate for the year, excluding non-recurming and 1AS 21/39 items was 22.5%.
This rate is considerably lower than the UK rate of 28%. The overall rate was reduced by the
lower rates enjoyed in the Republic of Ireland and the Isle of Man,

There were also exceptional tax credits relating to the reversal of provisions made on the share
warranis associated with the refinancing, a release of provisions held against prior tax years
which have now been settled and the impact of the reduction in the rate of deferred tax. As
noted previously, due to their nature and size, these amounts are reporied as non-recuriing.

Funding/Net Debt

Net debt at the year end was £386.7 milion {(excluding any reduction from unamortised debt
issue costs), a reduction of £35.4 million on the prior year. The reduction of debt continues to be
a key focus for the Board.

The funding of the Group throughout the year was under the finance arrangements put in place
in August 2009. During the course of the year, the Group accelerated the committed reductions
in the facilities which were scheduled in 2010 and 2011. This has resulted in the facilities being
avaitable to the Group now being £430 million, a reduction of £55 million. This reduction is in line
with debt reduction over the fast 18 months and still provides the Group with sufficient headroom
within which it can operate comiortably as well as reducing our interest cost through lower non-
utiiisation fees, reduced private placement interest and reduced PIK accrual,

Although the current finance facilities do not expire until September 2012, the Group anticipates

negotiating new facilities towards the end of 2011 to ensure that when preparing the 2011
Annual Report and Accounts the finance facilities available to the Group extend beyond 2012,
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Net Asset Position

At the pericd end date, the Group had net assets of £411.2 million, an increase of £41.2 million
on the pricr year. This increase in net asset position is primanty due to the reduction in net debt
of £35.4 miillion, the reduction in the deficit in the pension plan of £23.3 million and the reduction
in tax liabilities (excluding the contingent liability) of £17.5 miillion, offset partially by a reduction

in the net book value of property, plant and equipment (including assets held for sale) of £21.4
milion and the net impairment of intangibles of £13.1 million.

Liquidity and Going Concern

The Board has undertaken a recent and thorough review of the Group's forecasts and the
associated risks. These forecasts extend for a period beyond ¢ne year from the date of approval
of these financial statements. The extent of this review reflected the economic outlook and the
current trends, together with volatility in advertising revenues, The improved trends, in terms of
reduced year-on-year declines that we expertenced throughout 2010 are expected to continue
through 2011. The forecasts make key assumptions, based on information available to the
Directors, around:

= Fuiure advertising revenues which show a reduced decling in the first half of 2011 with
the balance of the year showing greater year-on-year stability reflecting the current external
economic environment, consistent with current market views and recent advertising
revenue trends.

* Further cost reduction measures to reflect these lower revenues and the ongoing
re-engineering of the Liusiness.

* Reduced interest costs reflecting lower dept lavels,

After applying reasonable downside scenarios to the key assumptions underpinning the Group's
forecasts, the Directors are satisfied that the Group would continue to operate within the
covenants determined by the financial facility agreements. The Directors therefore believe, on the
basis of these current financial proiections and facilities available, that the Company and Group
have adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Pensions
The Group's defined benefit pension deficit has decreased by £23.3 million over the year. The
reduction in the deficit has been the result of the following factors, both positive and negative.

Firstly investrment markets, although they remained volatile over the course of the year, delivered
returns in excess of those assumed by E£18.1 million. Offsetting this there was a reduction in

the discount rate appfied to the scheme’s liabilities which resulted in an increase in the value of
ligkilities of £27.0 million, There has been minimal ¢hange in the mortality assumptions used this
year with a small decrease in the assumption relating to the expected rate of inflation resulting in
a £6.0 million reduction in liabilities.

The Group has also been working with the pension fund trustees to manage the liabilities of

the plan and as part of the process the pension fund was closed to future aceruat on 30 June
2010. This resulted in a reduction in liabilities of £6.3 million (see curtailment gain in non-recurring
iterns). The change in the statutory minimum for deferred pension increases from RPI to CPI

has also reduced the liabilities of the scheme by £15.0 million and this, together with other
movernents totalling £4.9 milion, made up the reduction.
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Debt Reduction

The Group remains focussed on
reducing indebtedness. Despite

significantly higher interest costs, dabt

reduced by £35.4 million in the year.

Levels of capitat expenditure were
well controlled with expenditure
almost fully offset by proceeds
from disposals

Pension fund deficit reduced by
£23.3 million
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Since the year end, the Group has also offered all existing pensioners the cpportunity to take
part in a pension exchange where, for a higher pension today, they give up a proportion of future
increases. It is anticipated that this will further reduce the deficit by between £1.0 and £2.0 miliion
when the exercise is completed by 31 March 2011. As this option will be offered to all remaining
final salary members going forward, at the point of them taking their pension, there will be further
liability reductions in the future.

The pension fund will also be subject to a triennial actuarial valuation carried out as at

31 December 2010. The results of this valuation will give rise to a new schedule of contributions
and funding plan to reduce the deficit. The new schedule of contributions requires to be agreed
by 3t March 2012,

Financial Reporting
In terms of this report, there are ne significant changes in International Financial Reporting
Standards from those in force at the end of 2008.

Control Processes

As discussed in the Corporate Governance Statement, the Group operates rigorous internal
control processes that assist in the efficient operation of our businesses. Central 10 these
processes and controls is the fact that the general ledgers, fixed asset registers, payables
system, expenses and payroll are controlled through our shared services centre in Peterborough,
together with all cash processing and sales ledger balances for the mainland UK being controlled
through a single centre in Leeds.

Earnings per Share and Dividends
Basic earnings per share of 5.61p are significantly up on 2008 {-13.66p) for the following
reasons:

¢ Anundertying improvement in cperating profit; and

* Significantly reduced impairment charges in comparison to 2009; and

* Non-recurring tax credits totalling £25.9 million, relating to the reduction of liabitity for the
share warrants associated with the refinancing, a release of provision for taxes in prior years
now settled and the impact of the reduction in deferred tax rate; partially offset by

* Higher interest costs reflecting a full year of the facilities put in place in August 2009.

Exctuding non-recurring and IAS 21/38 items, earnings per share at the basic level at 3.67p were
down 1.86p on 2009.

There will be no dividend recommended by the Beard relating to 2010, This reflects the Group's
ongoeing desire to further reduce debt levels within the business and is in accordance with the
financing agreements entered into in 2009 which prectude the payment of any dividend until the
ratio of net debt to EBITOA falls below 3.5 times,
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QUSINESS REVIEW - PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNGERYANTIES

There are a number of potential risks and uncertainties that have been identified by management
and which could have a material impact on the Group's long-term pertormance. This is not a
complete list of all the risks identified but are those that the Directors feel could have the most
significant impact on the Group. By incluging risks within this section, the Directors make no
prediction as to the particular likelihood of any event or set of events cccurring; the Group could
elso be affected by other risks not currently identified by the Directors or else not currently
considered to be significant.

Principal Risks

and Uncertainties

The risks listed immediately below are those that the Directors consider to be the most significant
facing the business in terms of general eccnomic conditions in the markets in which it operates,
These risks remain the most important in terms of the overall performance of the Group but also

relate to issues over which the Group has no control:

Change in Gross Domestic Product {(GDP)
Change in unemployment rate

Level of property transactions

Level of new car sales

Level of consumer confidence

Public sector spending

Description of Risk

Potential Impact

Mitigation

Further Reductions in Classified Advertising

Whether through migration to online media or
reductions related to Government spending
there is a risk that classified advertising in the
Group's newspapers could reduce further.

With: the prospect of economic recovery in
the UK, historically there would have been
a cyclical recovery in classified advertising.
Further online migration and reductions in
Public Sector spending could lead to the
cyclical recovery being at lower levels than
previously experienced.

Business Investment Requirements Constrained by Debt

The Group has significant debt and is
operating above its optimal level of gearing.
Repayment of debt is therefore a priority but
there is the risk that this focus on repayment
means that no funds are available to invest
in new revenue opportunities. However, the
reduction of debt offers the best opportunity
for a future refinancing on enhanced terms.

The Group may be unable to take advantage
of opportunities to invest in its core business
or complementary revenue streams thus
impacting its long-term growth prospects.

Lifestyle and Technology Changes Affect Newspaper Circulations

The reduction in circulations can lead to
reciuced newspaper sales revenues as well
as reduced audience for our advertisers.

The availabiity of news through alternative
media channels and a reduction in regularity
of purchase is reducing circulations.

Failure to Monetise Increased Readership of our News Websites

This is an industry issue with online advertising
rates being lower together with the charging
far news content being difficult due to the
existence of free alternatives.

Readership continues to migrate to a free
digital environment where the advertising rates
per reader are lower.
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The Group continuez o develop its online
classified offerings whether through
partnerships or ongoing enhancements.

The Group is also investing in its sales
expertise to ensure a more proactive
approach and that the sales proposition is
fully understocd by sales staff and customers.

The Group seeks to compty with all the
requirements of its funding arrangements in
the most cash effective manner and carefully
prioritises any funds avaitable for investment
to those areas which can provide the greatest
long-term return.

Loyalty schemes have been introduced to
encourage increased frequency of purchase
and our online news sites are continually
upgraded to attract those readers who prefer
to access news digitally.

The Group has launched paid for news
applications in the wireless environment and is
following developments in the paid for content
provision of news closely.
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Description of Risk

Newsprint Price and Supply Risk

There is a risk to the business in terms of
both supply and price of newsprint which,
after staff costs, is the largest single expense
incurred by the business.

Pension Deficit Funding

The Group's defined benefit pension plan
is currentty in deficit leaving the Company
with a potential shortfall it would be
responsible for funding.

Interast Rale and Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has a financial risk in terms of
movements in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.

Financing Risk

The Group has finance facilities in place until
30 September 2012 which will require to be
replaced by that date.

Adequacy of Resources

Like most groups there is an element of
dependency on certain key individuals in
the organisation.

N . P R
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Potential Impact

Newsprint in 2010 made up approximately
10% of the Group's cost base. A significant
increase in price would impact the Group's
profitability and a reduction in supply could
impact the quantity of free newspapers we
distribute in the market, which could in turn
impact advertising revenues.

A requirement for the Group to increase the
level of deficit funding payments to the pension
plan would reduce funds avallable for investment
in the business or reduce the level of debt
repayment leading to higher interest charges.

Should interest rates increase, the Group
could pay more in interest and this would put
a strain on cashflow and debt reduction plans.
The Group also has debt in US dollars

and Euros and should the exchange rates
miove adversely this could impact the net
indebtedness of the Group.

The Group still has significant debt which will
require to be renegctiated in the future. The
terms on which this refinancing might be
carried out could be more onerous than those
currently in place and therefore put 2 strain on
the Group's cash flows.

Should some of these key pecple leave the
organisation there could be 1he loss of industry
knowledge, supplier relationships, technical
expertise and leadership.

Mitigation

The Group carefully manages its
consumpition of newsprint through waste
management, recycling, pagination and
distribution of free titles, The Group also has
some of the most efficient presses in the
industry. Contracts are put in place with key
suppliers to ensure security of supply and
optimum pricing.

In an sfiort to minimise further growth in the
pension fund deficit, the Group has closed

the plan to future accrual with the move for
deferred pension increases from RPI to CPl also
reducing the deficit over time. The Group is also
considering further liability reduction measures.

The Group policy is that at least 50% of the
interest rate exposure should be hedged;
currently due to the low interest rates over
B0% of the exposure is hedged. The US
dollar denominated debt is over 97%
hedged with respect to foreign exchange
risk such that there Is minimal risk on either
the interest payments or the repayments of
principal as and when they fall due.

The euro denominated debt is approximately
€15m and is more than matched by the
value of suro denominated assets, with
interast payments funded by euro cash
flows from our Republic of Irefand operation.

Repayments of the existing facilities have been
pulled forward such that those scheduled for
2011 were made in the second half of 2010.
Debt is lower and the ratios have improved
since the current facilities were put in place
which should improve future pricing.

The Group has puit in place succession
planning across the organisation and this is
reviewed annually by the Executive Directors
and the main Board.
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GQVERNANCE - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate Social
Responsibility

‘We aim to play an active
and responsible role in the
COmMmunitics we serve —
supporting local campaigns
and reflecting the views of
local people. In doing so,
our dedicated staff play a
vital role and, as a business,
Johnston Press recognises
the need to support them
and promote their talents.
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Johnston Press is committed to operating all of the
Group’s business activities to the highest standards
of business ethics and integrity. These principles
are included in contracts of employment and in the
Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Statement.

Business Ethics

The Company's code of ethics is supported by clear policies and procedures for addressing
issues such as bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest, espionage and the giving and receiving of
gifts. These policies have been reviewed in light of the Bribery Act 2010 and will be monitored as
that Act is fully implemented. An acceptable use policy has been developed for all of the Group's
assets including, but not restricted to, computer equipment, email facilities and use of the
internet. This policy is issued to employees with supporting guidance and is designed to protect
both the employee and employer from misuse of the Group's resources.

The Group always seeks to act as a fair and reasonable employer, and acknowledges and is
keenly aware of its responsibilities to the many communities it serves; whether it is readers,
customers, suppliers, shareholders, other stakeholders or the environment. A separate section
is incorporated within this report deta#ng examples of some of the many community orientated
activities in which the companie ; are involved.

Board Responsibitity

The Board has delegated the day-to-day respensibility for all matters refated to Corporate Social
Responsibility and social issues to the Executive Directors. They are assisted by Peter McCall,
the Company Secretary, who is generally the first point of contact.

Specific responsibility for environmental issues was delegated to Stuart Paterson, the Chief
Financial Officer, who also chaired the Group's Carbon Footprint Taskforce (which will be chaired
by the Company Secretary going forward).

While recognising that recruitment, employment and training practices are the responsibility of afi
managers, responsibility for formulating, updating and ensuring adherence to Group policies and
relevant legislation has been delegated to Malcolm Vickers, the Director of Human Resources,
who reports to John Fry, the Chief Executive Officer.

Each local Managing Director has responsibility within their operation for relationships with
customers, suppliers and the community. These relationships are subject to review by the Chief
Cperating Cfficer. Certain materials and services such as newsprint, plates, ink, motor vehicles
and legal and professional services are sourced centrally and these arrangements are subject to
review by either the Chief Operating Officer or the Chief Financial Officer, depending on the nature
of the supply.

As part of the Board's ongoing review of Corporate Governance, the Directors review issues
covered by the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Statement on a regular basis.

The Company seeks to monitor developments in relevant environmental, social and governance
issues and to respond to changes in legislation, regulation and best practice. Environmental,
social and governance risks are assessed as part of the Group’s ongoing risk analysis.

Health & Safety

The Group has rigorous health and safety management and reporting processes in place. Health
and safety is at the core of our operations, and is a specific item on all business agendas at
local, divisional, Group and Board levels, There are Health & Safety Committees in every Group
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Table 1 - Health & Safety Statistics
" Accident Reporting

2010 2009 2008 2007

Average total employees in the Group (FTE) . 5,502 6,146 7,124 7,664 i
Employees involved in accidents 252 273 359 409
- Publishing 3.5% 3.2% 3.9% 3.8%
- Printing : 17.0% 15.7% . 14.4% 17.8%
- Total 4.6% 4.4% 5.0% 5.3%
Employees with RIDDOR reportable accidents 33 30 44 a8
- Publishing 0.4% 0.3% 0.5% 0.4%
- Printing . 2.7% 1.9% 1.8% 1.5%
. - Total 0.6% 0.5% - 0.6% 0.5%

Total working days lost through accidents 533 881 1,197 718

Company and the Chief Operating Cfficer chairs the Group Health & Safety Committee, which
instructs and reviews audit visits, monitors compliance with Group nolicies, -.asures those
policies are kept up 1o date and spreads best practice. Earlv in 2011 the Group appointed a
new Group Health & Safety Manager, reporting to the Managing Director of the Services Division.

Qur consistent reporting processes have now been in place for more than six years allowing
performance over time to be measured. These procedures ensure that every accident is reported
and this reporting is a key part of our control environment. it should, however, be noted that the
vast majority of these are not reportable under RIDDOR requicaments.

Given our focus on health and safety, it was disappointing that our accident rate increased in
2010 (although the overall number of accidents was down). In part, this is a product of an ever
greater focus on reporting but it is clear that the Group must de more 1o tackle the causes of
the accident rate with RIDDOR repertable incidents involving an absence of three days or more
increasing from 23 to 27. The new Group Health & Safety Manager will have responsibility for
addressing this issue.

The Group has maintained campaigns in the warkplace to reinforce the dangers refating to slips
and trips and manual handling accidents to try to continually improve working practices and safety
performance. The Group Health & Safety Committee has also started inviting companies with
leading health and safety performance to attend its meetings to learn from their experiences and
share best practice. In addition, there is a rolling programme of independent audits covering
property and heatth and safety risks. These are targeted at the locations which have the highest
risk profile along with a sample of cther sites.

Total working days lost again reduced sharply in 2310 continuing the trend since 2008 and
remained well below the national average.

Employee Involvement

Employees

We employ over 5,900 employees in the UK and Republic of ireland and our aim is to attract,
retain and engage the best peopte in a challenging and supportive culture that drives business
performance.
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Workforce Statistics

Qur total workforce is represented by
49.09% male and 51.0% female and our

age profile is as follows:

Over 60
50 - 59
40 - 49
30-39
Under 30
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6.9%
18.0%
23.5%
25.2%
25.4%

Employment Policies

Qur expectations in terms of managers’ and employees’ behaviour and standards are set
out in our Value Statements, Personnel Policies & Procedures, Employes Handbook, Codes
of Conduct and Contracts of Employment. Our grievance ang whistieblowing procedures
also aliow any employee to report behaviour that is contrary to our policies or is in any way
concerning to them.

Employee Representation

We recognise a number of trade unions at a subsidiary leve! in both the UK and in the Republic
of Ireland. We also have employee forums at a Group and subsidiary level for the purposes of
communication and consultation.

Diversity

The Group recognises that a diverse workforce adds clear value to our employees, our
customers, cur shareholders and the communities we serve. We fully support the principle of
equal opportunity for alt and oppose &ll forms of ilegal and unfair discrimination.

Learning & Development

In 2010, approximately 1,000 programmes covering all aspects of our business including
Advertising, Editorfal, Digital Media, Newspaper Sales, Finance, Health & Safety, IT and HR were
delivered. In particular, we invested heavily in editorial programmes related 1o the roli-out of our
new Content Management Systern which is now used throughout the Group with around 1,80C
editorial staff attending workshops which were supplementa with on-site support.

Identifying and developing leadership talent at all levels, as well as succession planning, will
continue to be a priority. In support of this we are revising our long-established managerial and
leadership development programmes.

Reward & Recognition

Qur subsidiary businesses have differing pay structures based on the size of their organisation
and local market conditions. Progression within trese pay structures is based on competence,
achieverment of gualifications and performance. We also operate bonus schemes for executive
and sales staff. A Free Share award under the Company's Share Incentive Plan was made in
respect of 2010.

Disability Access

Qur Digability Access poilcy is included in our Personnel Pclicies and Procedures manual.

As part of our ongoing property and heaith and safety audits we continually review the provisions
made at all of our locations to ensure that we do not discriminate (in terms of access) against
disabled employees or customers. We also ensure that any refurbishment or upgrading to our
premises, where practical, takes intc account the need to enhance access for all of our disabled
stakeholders.

Reflecting the importance of our digital publishing activities. the Group continues to make
improverments to its core internet sites in accordance with WCAG 2.0 accessibility standards,
in line with W3C recommendations. As we continue to implement improvements, the level of
support for our users accessing our sites via screen readers wil advance.
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Raising funds and
encouraging readers to
support local causes is a key
objective for our newspapers
and websites and 2010
proved an exceptionally
successtul vear despite the
tough economic climate.

o
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Campaigns
Our newspapers and websites cementad their positions at the hearts of their communities with a
wide range of hard-hitting editorial campaigns.

They targeted issues that were hugely important to readers, including domestic violence, poverty
and deprivation, green projects, unemployment, better transport and parking, road safety,
pensicners’ wellbeing, improving broadband connections and recognition for war-time efforts.

Publications also variously fought to save hospital, health and hospice services, to retain local
services such as libraries and fire stations, to support local industries and to obtain better
sports facilities.

Case study: Save Our Pier — Hastings Observer's campaign to see the disused and rotting
Hastings Pier brought back to life

The Hastings Observer launched a campaign in June 2010 to bring Hastings Pier back to life
after it had lain disused for several years. Research showed the town had missed out on an
estimated 750,000 visitors and millions of pounds in tourism income while it was disused.

The aim was to persuade the council, which was against renovation, to change its mind.
Thousands of signatures were obtained for a petition and the paper printed full page copies
of Save Cur Pier posters which were displayed in windows and cars. The council was urged
to secure a compulsory purchase order from the current owners ang hand over the pier to the
Hastings Pier and White Rock Trust.

As pressure mounted, the council agreed to start compulsory purchase and conceded a study
into the viability of renovation ... and then came the devastating fire in October that destroyed
9C per cent of the historic pier and saw pictures of Hastings on national and world television.

The Observer won plaudits for its coverage of the blaze but, more importantly, it refused to give up
its campaign, capturing perfectly the sentiment of Hastings people who did not want to admit defeat.

From the ashes has grown a campaign with renewed vigour. By the end of 2010 six award-
winning firms of architects had been interviewed for the task of redesigning the pier. On the panet
was the Observer's editor-in-chief, Keith Ridley.

The campaign rolls into 2011 with the aim of
reopening a modern pier in 2013 providing the  How the Observer broke the news of the
Trust can secure millions of pounds of funding.  ovestating fre.

The Observer remains firmly committed to
the goal.

Fund-raising

Raising funds and encouraging readers to
support local causes is a key objective for our
newspapers and websites and 2010 proved an
exceptionally successful year despite the tough
economic climate.

In addition to the traditicna! support and
coverage for Sport Relief, Comic Relief and
Children in Need, our titles raised hundreds
of thousands of pounds for a huge range
of community facifities, charities and heaith
services, and for projects to create jobs
and carry out conservation work on
histeric landmarks.
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With the help of our maders, The Procession
to Calvary has been kept at Nostell Priory.
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Case study: £2.7 million raised to save Dutch masterpiece far the nation

A Yorkshire Post campaign to keep an Old Master on English shores captured the interest of
thousands of people who helped raise the £2.7 million needed for the National Trust to buy the
rmasterpiece from its privalte owners.

Pigter Brueghel the Younger's stunning 1602 painting The Procession to Calvary was at risk of
being taken out of Yorkshire where it had been on display at Nostell Priory, near Wakefield, for
more than two centuries and enjoyed by hundreds of thousands of visitors,

The Yorkshire Past championed the drive to ensure the painting could stay on public display and
not, in the worst case scenario, leave the country.

Other Johnston Press titles in Yorkshire provided additional coverage and members of the public,
many of whom had seen the Old Master on display, contributed generously.

The final £1 million came from a National Heritage Memorial Fund grant and by the end of 2010
the painting had been purchased. It will ocnce again be on display at Nostell Priory.

Peter Charlton, Editor of the Yorkshire Post, said: “This was an unusual campaign for the
Yorkshire Post but the masterpiece had been associated with the region for more than 200
years and certainly caught our readers’ imagination. As the region’s paper, we thought such a
remarkable painting should not be lost to the county - let alone the nation.

“We were able to raise the profile of the campaign with the result that nio iess than £680,5.1 of
the £2.7 million raised was donated by members of the pubfic, It was a tremendous achievement
particularly given the economic climate. As a newspaper, we are proud to have played a part in
saving a major piece of art work from being sold overseas.”

Community Involverment

Johnston Press newspapers and websites excel at engaging with their readers and 2010 was
no exception. Awards ceremonies recognising a wealth of individual and group achievements
are held in virtualty every community we serve, covering unsung heroes, chilgren, volunteers,
business, environment, energy, theatre,
commitment to community, and sport.

We're heavily involved with schools and
encouraging young people to interact with
their local newspaper through projects, visits
and creating advertisements and pages for
actual publication.

We provide people with a forum for airing their
views, with opportunities to meet politicians
and other decision-makers and with the
chance 1o shape their own newspapers and
websites through reader panels.




Cur “Meet the Editor” days allowed readers to
give their views directly to the man producing
the newspaper.
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Case study: The big red sofa - reaching out to the public in the Kettering area

Kettering Evening Telegraph editor Jeremy Clifford used a big red sofa as part of a campaign to
enhance the role of the newspaper and its reporters in local communities. He hired it to place in
shopping centres for “Meet the Editor” days when streams of people came to sit on the sofa
and discuss issues with Jeremy and other key people including the company's MD and

local politicians.

Jeremy said: “It was a bit like being Parky for the day. Interviewing people but also bringing
members of the public into contact with people they would not nomally meet or tatk to, One old
lady met the editor and the maycr of the town - she went away saying we had made her day.
The best feedback we had was people just wanting to come and talk to me about what they
thought about their community and what they would like to see improved.”

Readers were also invited to attend weekly surgeries with reporters in a variety of public places
and to share their views of their newspaper and community and how they'd like to see them
imprave or grow.

Breaking News Before the Nationals
Our daily and weekly titles continue to lead the way breaking news before the national media and
keeping our readers instantly in touch with the headlines via continuously updated websites.

Many of our exclusives and reports are followed up by national and international media and we
take pride in striving to be the first to tell cur readers what they need to know.

Case study: Forgemasters toan U-turn in Sheffieid

The Sheffield Star was the first to highlight the highly controversia! Forgemasters loan issue,
The newspaper led with the story that the new Coalition government had backed out of an £80
million loan, which would have enabled the iconic steel firm to re-iool to produce parts for the
nuclear power industry.

The story was picked up by the national press and tha issue became argl rernaing a major
problem for Sheffield MP and Deputy Prime Minister Nick Clegg.

Customer Services

It is Group policy to provide the highest standard of service to all of our customers. Each

operating company has staff appointed to respond to allt customer enquiries, There are strict

procedures for resolving customer complaints or queries regarding service and these are carefully
monitored by management.

Local management in each operation are
responsible for ensuring that their companies
and all thelr employees comply with the
requirements of all customer and competition
related fegislation. To monitor this, and for
training purposes, the Group undertakes
“mystery shopping” exercises.

With the consolidation of our regionalised call
centres, the Group is striving to increase the
levels of response, professionalism and overall
experience for our customers.
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Major awards won in 2010

| Scoop of

Best Daily 2000
the Year

Newspaper
Yorkshire Post

& blown on
university
‘culture

YORKSHIRE POST

THE BEST POSSIBLE TASTE

o ° Ny Yorkshires indepancient
3 d"_‘f.’,’ Kaxi g e thetvng

S m bunnm a

Mcpcorie enfls for evieried

;;Our.}ourna'l'i'stswdn umber. of:

'.Ssottish Press Awards i
. _Sports Features Writey of the Year

- Tom English, 77 0.

© - Scotland on Sunday -

F 1.7 Catherine Deveney, -

St Seotland ‘'on Sunday -

: Young Journalrst of the Year SR :; Victoria Raimes, :

’ . - Edinburgh Evening News -
Jane Barlow, . :

.+ The.Scotsman |

" Brian Adeock, 0.

“Scotland on Suriday'

3 Magazme Writer of the Year 3 f~

. News Photographer of the Year

.' Cartoorrsi of the Year -

! Multimedia 'Jou'ma[i'st of the Year -

0% Medla Awards {Yorkshire & Humber} RO
- Best Daily Newspaper.. e Yorkshlre Post
- Hest Overall Newspaper.  Yorkshire Post: - o '
Scoop of the Year - 2 « Rob, Waugh,: Yorkshlre Post
H Young Journatrst of the Yaar G Kate Mason,
R R RO RIS i _I:J_oncasterFroePress )

- 02 Media Awards {Northwes ' o SRR
; Young Joumalrst of the Year Natalie Banks, :

R : Chorley. Guardian’”::
fan Robinson, ..: .

Photographer of tha Ysar

{)lgltal Joumalrst of the Year

NUJ Reglona! Press Awards

- Newspaper of the-Year : ' - :
; Mul’umedla Journalist of the Year - Sion Donovan, S
v . The News, Porlsmoum__ N

; Sports Journalist of the Year . Neil Allén;

. . "The News, Po_rtsmouth:'
i Deslgner of the Year " Graeme Windel,

The News, Portsmouth.’
Jayne Dawson,
Yorkshire Evening Post

* Feature Writer of the Year
+ (Daily & Sunday)
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Rob Waugts, Yorkshire Post

- : Msdlands Media Awards
'Weekty Photor'.. apher of the Year e

R Deslgner of tha Year :

.Sports Journalrst of the Year SR Neil Alleny :
: . The News, Portsmouth £
Pete Gavan, . : “

1

i

. Nick Mitchel, Scotsman.com ’

- Awards for-its Eaunch a Lifesaver fund-raising campalgn. which
G rarsed 215 000 to tram a votunteer Irfeboat recruit for a year

business in the Northeast in the Northumbria in Bioom competrﬂon

o Scarbsrsugh Evemﬂg Ncws Top Medra Coverage award from -f g
o7 Yorkshire ArrAmbu!anca R :

Lancashire Evanmg Post S L.eglon S Fnends of the Forces Awards . -

U Wil watt, Blackpool Gazette L . ' '
: ~ Derry uoumal Irish Ftoad Safety Authorltys Laading Lights award
= The News Portsmouth B e Rutland & Stamtord Marcury Rotary Club of Stamford Sennce
: . Hecognmon Award. 0

' : Grantham Joumat Rotary Intemattonal Paul Harris FeIIow award
- (highest award in Rotary) Education Business Partnershlp Llncoln
; and Flutland Investors rn Education Award .

Photographer
of the Year

lan Robinson, Lancashire Evening Post

Whisue is Umversnv
in furmo
as anoth
ofexcess’ key fig

Angela Ward,.
: Mansf‘ eld Chad

‘EDF Energy London & South of Engtand Media Awards T

The Naws Portsmouth L

A number o1‘ awards were presanted to our newspapers by the
commumtnas they serve. :

Sunderiand Echo RNU S regronal winner of the 2010 Supporters

Northumberland Gaze‘tte "Tha off ice in Alnwlck won the best

The News Letter. Betf £ Reglonai winner of the Royal Brmsh Sl
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We have also commissioned independent audits of our customer services in an effort to drive
continual improvement. The Group Sales Charter introduced in 2004 has become enshrined in our
operations to ensure that our customers and advertisers are always dealt with in a fair and equitable
manner; our terms of trade are published in the Group’s newspapers as well as being linked to all
of the Group’s websites. Equal attention is paid to the service that we provide to our readers and
viewers with each editor directly responsible for any complaints. The Editorial Review Group,

a body of senior Group editors, also meets regularly to discuss editorial policy and issues related

to content. The Group also conforms to the Press Complaints Cormmission Gode of Practice.

Environmental

The Group acknowledges that the protection of the environment is one of its key corporate
responsibilities. We aim to comply with all relevant regulations and see the identification,
management and control of environmental risks as being an implicit requirement for adherence
to the Combined Code on Corporate Governance and the responsibilities of Directors.

Case study: Achieving Carbon Trust Standard Certification
The Company achieved Carbon Trust Standard Certification last year which is a national
recognition of our efforts to reduce carbon dioxide emissions across the business.

Crucially, the certification is for the entire business - not just one or two premises — something
considered a significant achievement in the industry.

Energy management consultant Trevor Brown, who has worked with the Groun for 10 years,
said it wouid have been relatively easy to achieve the Standais ol tu exednpi. two of the bigger
printing sites, but the objective was to be certified across the whaole organisation.

It was a daunting task and involved an intensive period of review and documentation, covering
three years worth of historical energy data before the certification was awarded. Trevor describes
the result as “an Qlympic gold for JP” and one that was only made possible with full support from
within the Group.

The Company achieved an overall 'pass mark' of 74 per cent: the required rate is 60 per cent.

A number of energy-efficiency steps were taken, including replacing standard light fittings with
low energy ones in press halls and offices, switching to 'smart’ plugs which use less electricity,
upgrading gas boilers and installing sensor lighting in appropriate areas and time clocks on
vending machines to switch them off when offices are empty.

The reduction in carbon dioxide emissions for the audited period was over 15% equating to 6,970
tonnes of CO2. A significant amount of this reduction can be directly attributed to energy efficiency
projects implemented by the Group and supported by the Carbon Footprint Taskforce initiatives.

Energy and Climate Change

Climate reduction requirements implermentead in the UK this year will force companies to forecast
how much carbon dioxide they will produce. Those achieving Carbon Trust Standard Certification
and who adopt automatic meter reading attain higher placings in the expected league tables, and
Johnston Press is now positioned to perform well.

A rolling programme of internal audits of environmental impacts and risks is conducted
throughout the year. Additionalty audits by external independent cansultants have continued in
order to verify the findings of these internal reviews.

The Group has benefitted from its investment in more energy efficient equipment as well as

the time and effort put into the monitoring and contrel of energy consumption. It has enabled
the Group to continue to benefit from rebates against the Climate Change Levy Tax as well as
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Table 2 - Cansumption of Energy

targeting sites where base load consumption levels are not showing required reductions and
subjecting them to detailed audits.

Table 2 below summarises the consumption of energy.

Budgets for 2011 encompass further year-on-year improvements and new longer term targets
will be set by the Carbon Footprint Taskforce in conjunction with our external advisers.

We have also continued to make progress on reducing the Group's car and van fleet and CO2
ratings. Although the size of the fieet grew, the replacement vehicles generally had lower CO2
ratings, giving an average reduction of 3.7%. Full details are shown in table 3.

Newsprint

Since 1991 the industry, through the Newspaper Society, has agreed targets with the
Government on the recycled content of British newspapers. The targets were recentty restated
in consuliation with the Government 1o make the definition more meaningful to the actual
process of waste collection, de-inking and the conversion to 100% recycled newsprint. In 2009
the recycled content of UK newspapers was 76.2%. Johnston Press sources over 80% of its
newsprint supply from 100% recycled suppliers.

Emissions to Air

The Group decommissicned its last heatset press during 2009, along with its oxidiser unit which
continued to remove pollutants with an efficiency of 99.6% up until the press was shutdown.

As a consequence, the Group had rio eniissions to air it 2010,

Wasta

Water and solvents continue to be cleaned and recycled on site wherever possible. The Group's
largest production facility at Dinnington near Sheffield continues to be classed as a low water
user by the local Environmental Agency.

The Group continued its relationship with two industry leading waste pariners and remains
committed to optimise the recycling of waste streams through waste management and
segregation. All paper waste is returned to paper mils for recycling, and is used in the production
of new paper based products. The aluminium printing plates are returned to their raw material
state for many uses. Cardboard, plastic and wooden packaging is cleaned and converted into

2010 2009 % 2008 %
Electricity
- kWh 42,589,773 49,362,652 (13.7) 55,505,620 (11.1)
- print centres kWhAtonne 1431 160.0 {10.6) 1719 6.9)
Gas
- kWh 23,911,427 24,213,684 (1.2) 28,309,064 (14.5)
- print centres kWh/tonne 37.0 51.8 28.3) 62.6 (17.6)
Water
-m? 94,116 85,598 16.0 104,379 {18.0)
- print centres m3/tonne 0.37 0.27 37.0 0.234 (20.6)
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Table 3 - Motor Vehicle Data

Total Fleet (No of vehicles)
Totat Fleet CO2 rating
Average CO2 rating

2010

1,701
287,715
187

P R S @ GOVERNANCE IR

2009 % 2008 % 2007 % 2008
1,631 4.3 1,81 @9 2,057 (12.0) 2,109
265,321 0.9 296,425 105 338,154 (12.3) 355,145
163 3.7 164 0.6) 184 o.n 168

animal bedding, plastic piping and woodchip fandscaping. All chemical waste is treated through
audited and certificated waste processes and where possible any oil based residue is separated
and converted into fuel.

Environmental Policy
The Group’s environmental policy is to ensure that every aspect of our activities is conducted in
accordance with sound environmental practices.

Johnston Press aims to foster among its staff, suppliers, customers, shareholders, other
stakeholders and communities local to its operations an understanding of environmental issues
in the context of its business. Our collective task is to ensure that we continually improve the
ervironmental impact of our activities. - '

Carbon Footprint
The Group established its Carbon Footprint Taskforce in 2008. This taskforce developed the
Group’s environmental policy and is responsible for co-ordinating the Group's activities in this area.

The aims of the Carbon Footprint Taskforce are as follows:

+ Establish Group policy and objectives

+ Promote the general aims of "reduce, reuse, recycle”

* Work through the established Employee Forums

* Co-ordinate Group wide initiatives

*+ Agree, under the auspices of the Newspaper Society, a standard mathod of measuring the
Carbon Footprint (Scope 2} and seek to reduce this {base year 2008) by 25% over the next
5 years

* Run an annual Group Environmental Award

The Group continues to work in partnership with Dell, its principal supplier of IT equipment, to
develop a disposal channel for redundant IT equipment.

Shareholders

Members of the Board have met a number of shareholders during the past year to discuss
Corperate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility matters and to address any
guestions raised by them.
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Board of Directors

Fraom left to right:

tan Russell, CBE

Chairman (58)

Joined the Board in 2007. Chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Chairman of Advarced
Power AG and of Remploy Ltd, Non Executive
Director of the Mercantile Trust plc and British
Assets ple, adviser to Clyde Bergemann Power
Group and Chairman of the campaign board for
the University of Edinburgh.
irussell@johnstonpress.co.uk

Camilia Rhodes

Non Executive (52)

Jaoined the Board in 2009. Member of

tha Nomination, Audit and Remuneration
Committees. Former Managing Director of Times
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Newspapers and News Group Newspapers,
News International.
crhodes@johnstonpress.co.uk

Danny Cammiade*

Chief Operating Officer (50)

Joined the Board in 2005. Joined the Group in
1992 through its acquisition of TR Beckett Lid.
Appointed Managing Director of West Sussex
County Times Ltd in 1994 and held various
Divisional Managing Director roles untit appointed
Director of Cperations in 2001. Chairman ¢f

the Newspaper Scciety Marketing Committee.
decammiade@jochnstonpress.co.uk

Stuart Paterson*

Chief Financial Officer (53)

Joined the Board in 2001. A Chartered
Accountant and former Finance Director of
Aggreko plc. Non Executive Director of Devro

“plc and Mirago plc. He will step down from

the Board on 15 March 2011.
spaterson@johnstonpress.co.uk

Ralph Marshall

Non Executive {59) |
Joined the Board in 2008. Mernber of the

Nemination Committee. Executive Director of

Usaha Tegas Sdn. Bhd. Serves on the Boards of

several companies listed on the Bursa Malaysia

Securities Berhad including Astro All Asfa

Networks plc as Executive Deputy Chairman.,
marshal@johnstonpress.co.uk




Geoft Iddison

Non Executive (53)

Joined the Board on 1 January 2010. Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and member
of the Nomination Committee. Global head of
a-commerce and m-commerce for Mastercard.
Previously Chief Executive of Jagex Limited.
giddison@johnstonpress.co.uk

Peter McCall”

Company Secretary (39)

Joined Johnston Press as Company Secretary
and Corporate Counsel in November 2009.
Company Secretary of Kenmore Property Group
Ltd until October 2009 and praviousty Deputy
Company Secretary of British Energy Group plc.
pmccall@jobnstonpress.co.uk
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John Fry*

Chief Executive Officer (54)

Joined the Board in 2009. Formerly Chief Executive
of the Norwich based regicnal media group,
Archant. Previousty President of Dun & Bradstreet
for UK, Europe, Middle East and Africa, and a
consuttant with Bain & Company. Non Executive
Director of James Southall & Co Ltd.
ffry@johnstonpress.co.uk

Kjell Aamot

Non Executive (60}

Joined the Board in August 2010. Member of
the Audit and Nomination Committees. Formerty
Chigt Executive Officer of Schibsted ASA, the
Norwegian publisher, from 1983 to 2008. A Non
Executive Member of the Board of 20Minutes

(a publisher of free papers in France) in which

Schibsted has a 50% interest, a Non Executive
Member of the Board of PubliGroupe, a Swiss
based listed marketing and sales organisation,
and an advisor to FSN Capital, an Oslo based
private equity firm.
kaamot@johnstonpress.co.uk

Mark Pain

Non Executive {49)

Joined the Beard in 2009, Chairman of the Audit
Cormmittee and member of the Nomination

and Remuneration Cornmittees. A Chartered
Accountant and former Group Finance Director
at Barratt Developments Lid and Abbey National
Group plc. Non Executive Director of Punch
Taverns ple, Northern Rock ple and LSL Property
Services PLC.

mpain@johnstonpress.co.uk

* Also in Senior Management Tearn
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From left to right:

Gary Fearon
Divisional Managing Director
South Division

Lindsay Dixon
Group Head of Finance

Makcolm Vickers
Director of Human Resources

Roger Davies
Group IT Director
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Senior Management Team

Nick Mills
Divisional Managing Director
Midlands Division

Steve Brown
Divisional Managing Director
North Division

David Crow
Divisional Managing Director
Group Services Division

Jean Long
Divisionat Managing Director
Ireland Division

Chris Pennock
Group Newspaper Sales
and Marketing Director

Michael Johnston
Divisional Managing Director
Scotland and NE England Division

Chris Babayode
Group Commercial Director

Henry Faure Walker
Digital and Business Development Director
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Corporate Governance

In May 2010 the Financial Reporting Council published the United Kingdom Corporate Governance Code which applies to all companies for
financial years beginning on or after 28 June 2010 {the “New Code”). Although 2011 is the first year during which the Company is required to
comply with the New Code, it sought to be compliant with relevant aspects of it prior to the end of 2010. The Company is committed to the
principles of Corporate Governance contained in both the revised Combined Code on UK Cerporate Governance that was issued in 2008
{“the Code"} and to the New Code, for which the Board is accountable to shareholders.

Statement ot Compliance with the Code

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions set out in Section 1 of the Code throughout the year, other than a departure from
Section A.3.2 between May and July 2010 when, due to retirements, the Board was temporarily unbalanced in terms of the proportion of
independent Non Executive Directors, This was addressed through the appointment of Kjell Aamot in August 2010.

Statement of Apptication of the Principles of Good Governance
The Company has applied the principles set out in Section 1 of the Code as reported above. Further explanation of how the principles have been
applied is set out below and, in connection with directors' remuneration, in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

DIRECTORS

Board Effectiveness

The Board considers that it has shown its commitment to leading and controlling the Company by meeting seven times in the year, and can mest
when necessary for any matters which may arise. The Remuneration Committee held six scheduled meetings, the Audit Commitiee three and the
Nomination Committee two.

The Board sets the strategic aims and cbjectives of the Group, ensuring that the Group hae sufficient finanwal and human resources to meet its
objectives. The Board atso sets the Group's values and standards and ensures that its obligations 1o its shareholders and others are understood
and met. Management is responsible for the application of the aims and objectives on a day-to-day basis, as well as monitoring the financial
achievermnents of the business. The Board reviews the performance of management in meeting the agreed objectives and goals, and monitors
appropriate remuneration levels. The Group’s management development and succession plans are scrutinised by the Board to ensure that the
skills and competencies of management comespond to the Group's requirements. The core vatues of the Board are integrity, independence and
objectivity. All Directors must take decisions in the interests of the Company and all of its shareholders.

At least one Board meeting each year is wholly devoted to strategy and to the consideration of a plan for the long term growth and development
of the Group. This is reviewed and discussed as appropriate at the other Board meetings held during the year.

In addition to the normal agenda at Board meetings, which is described below, the Directors consider one or more operational or special topic at
each meeting. During the last twelve months this has included business risks, circulation and audience reach of paid for newspapers, national sales,
digital publishing, the Group's debt facilities, human resource requirements and implementation of major IT systems.

Board Meeting Agenda

The Board receives a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision, such as future strategy, acquisitions and disposals, dividend
policy, approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, capital expenditure, trading and capital budgets and Group borrowing facilities. At each
meeting, the Board considers reports from the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and the Director of Digital and
Business Development, The Minutes of the Board and Committees are circulated to all Board members, The Company Secretary is responsible to
the Board for the timeliness and quality of information provided to it.

Board Responsibilities

The Board acknowledges the division of respensibilities for running the Board and managing the Company's business. lan Russell served as Nen
Executive Chairman throughout the year. Mark Pain succeeded Peter Cawdron as Senior Independent Director on 30 April 2310 following the
latter's retirement from the Board. The Senior Independent Director is available to address any concerns that shareholders may have that have not
been resolved through the normal communication channels of the Chairman or Executive Directors, Throughout 2010, the Nomination Committee
was chaired by lan Russell. The Remuneration Committee was chaired by Peter Cawdron until 30 April 2010 when Geoff Iddison succeeded him.
Mark Pain chaired the Audit Committee throughout 2010,

The terms of reference of each of the Board's Comnittees were reviewed and amended by the Board during 2010 and the updated terms are
displayed on the Company's website in the Investor Centre section.

Board Attendance
All Directors are expected to attend all Board and Board Gommittee meetings of which they are a member unless unable to do so. The table on the
next page indicates their attendance during the year:
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Remuneration Audit Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Scheduled meetings (7) (6) {3) 2)
lan Russell 7 — - 2
John Fry 7 — — -
Stuart Paterson 7 - - -
Danny Cammiade 7 - - -
Peter Cawdron! 3 3 — -
Freddy Johnston' 3 - - —
Martina King' 3 3 1 -
Ralph Marshall 7 - - 2
Mark Pain 7 6 3 2
Camilla Rhodes? 5] 2 3 2
Geoff Iddison 7 5] - 2
Kjell Aamot? 3 - 1 1

1 Retred 30 Apd 2010.
2 Appointed to Remuneration Committee on 4 March 2010. Attended 2 of 3 scheduled Remuneration Commitiee meetings amanged subsaguent ta her appointment.
3 Appointed to the Board on 1 August 2010 and to the Audit Committee and Nomination Comimettee on 1 September 2010. Astended all scheaued Board and Committee meetings aranged subsequent

1o his appointment.

Board Balance and Independence

Of the Company's current nine Directors, three are Executive and the remainder Non Executive, of whom four are regarded as independent, excluding the
Chairman and Ralph Marshall. As a consequence of the retirement of Freddy Johnston, Martina King and Peter Cawdron at the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting on 30 April 2010, the Company temporarily did not comply with the requirement of the Code that at least half of the Board (excluding the
Chamrany should sonsist of independent Non Executive Directors. The Company addre ssed this through the appointment of Kjel! Aamot who joirsc the
toend as an independent Non Executive Director on 1 August 2010. Following that appaintment, the Board is satisfied it had a sufficient indeger.dent Mon
Executive element to satisty the requirements of the Code.

Ralph Marshall is regarded as non independerit because he was appointed to the Board as the nominee Director of Usaha Tegas which owns 20% of
the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.

Nevpination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by lan Russell. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee. Reporting to the Board, ds duty is to
reguiarty review the structure, size and composition of the Board, 1o seek suitably skilled and experienced candidates as Non Executive Directors with
sufficient time to devote 1o the role and to oversee all Board appointments. In doing so the Committee also considers the Company's succession planning
for Executive Directors and senior managers, to ensure that adequate plans are in place to protect against the loss of key staff, as well as reviewing the
compaosition of the Board and its committees. In considering candidates to fill Board vacancies, the Nomination Coramittee has regard to the need to
encourage diversity within the Board's membership. Its terms of reference were revised in 2010 to reflect the provisions of the New Code. Once the role
of a vacancy has been determined, the Committee may appoint external recruitment consuttants to assist with the search. In addition to Mr Russell, the
Nomination Committee comprised Geoff Iddison, Mark Pain, Camilla Rhodes and Ralph Marshall throughout the year. Kjell Aamot joined the Committee
on 1 September 2010. Under the guidance of the Nomination Committee, the Company has been conducting an exercise to appoint a new Executive
Director to the position of Chied Financial Cfficer following the resignation of Stuart Paterson on 26 October 2010, On 4 March 2011, the Company
announced the appaintment of Grant Murray as the new Chief Financial Officer. Mr Murray will start with the Company on 3 May 2011. As John Fry,
Chief Executive Officer, has indicated his intention 1o step down over the course of the next year, the Committee will start the process o identify suitable
candidates for the position.

Inforrmation and Professional Development

A detalled induction programme was arranged for both Geoff Iddison and Kjell Aamot. Mr Iddison also received detailed training in respect of his
appointment as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. In each case, training included meetings and discussions with advisers and senior
management where appropriate, together with the provision of a full induction guide and seminars (both internal and external). The Company
formalised its written induction guide for new Directors in 2010.

Al Board members have access to independent advice on any matters relating to their responsibiities as Directors and as members of the various
Committees of the Board. The assistance of the Company Secretary is available to al Directors in respect of all matters connected to their duties and he
is responsible for ensuring that all Board procedures are complied with.

Training

Training is undertaken as required during the year. This encompasses a variety of topics, industry specific and technical issues, as well as governance
and corparate social responsibility. The feedback from the recent board evaluation seff-assessment exercise will assist in setting the training plan for
2011. The Gompany arranged for its Non Executive Directors to visit at least two of the Group's centres during 2010 where they received a
presentation and a tour of the business. Individual Directors also attended a range of seminars presented by professionals throughout the year.
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When the Non Executive Directors meet without the Executive Directors present, training is one of the standard topics for the Board to consider, both
individually and collectively.

Board Performance Evaluation

During the last vear, the Board has conducted a rigorous evaluaticn of its own performance and that of each of its Committees. This involved the
completion of a self-assessment questionnaire by all Directors covering the performance of the Board, individual Directors, the Company Secretary
and Board Committees. Other topics included the conduct of meetings, the provision of information, relationships, strategy. training and the overall
effectiveness of the Board. The composition and chairmanship of each Committee was reviewed together with its fulfiment of its role as outlined in
its terms of reference, its reporting and overall perfomance. The topics which the evaluation exercise addressed were intended to provide the Board
with an analysis of the performance of its key duties. The process has been developed internally and is administered by the Company Secratary.
There was a continued emphasis on a scoring system for assessing indivicual, Committee and Board performance. The Company Secretary
prepared a summary of the conclusions which was presented to the Board meeting in January 2011. Separately, the Secretary produced a detailed
report surmmarising any individual recommendations for the consideration of the Chairman. This was followed up by meetings as appropriate
between the Chaiman and individual Directors. Reviews of Board Committees were undertaken by Committee members as well as the Board as a
whole. The results of the process were positive and confirmed the effectiveness of the Board and relevant Committees as well as the contributions
of individuai Oirectors. Under the provisions of the New Code, evaluation of the boards of FTSE 350 companies should be externally evafuated every
three years. At present the Board does not propose (¢ undertake an external evaluation while it remains outwith the FTSE 350 index. However, the
position will be kept under review.

Board Re-election

it is the policy of the Board that all Directors are subject to election at the first Annual General Meeting after their appointment and thereafter to
re-glection every three years. All Non Executive Directors who have served nine years or more and who wish 1o stand for re-election, are subject

to re-election annually. The Company is not currentty 2 member of the FTSE 350 index of companies and is therefore not required to comply with
provision B.7.1 of the New Code which requires all directors of companies in that index to be subject to annual re-election. At present the Board does
not propose that all Directors stand for annual re-election while it remains outwith the FTSE 350 index. However, the position will be kept under review.

The Nomination Committee and Mr Russell as Chairman have, following the formal evaluation process described above, corridered the performance
of the Directors subject to election’ or re-giéction at the 2011 Annual General Meeting and are satisfied that those indivduals performance continue to
be effective and that they have demonstrated a clear commitment to the role.

Separately during the course of the year, the Non Executive Directors met without Mr Russell to review his performance as Chairman and were satisfied
that he continues to be effective and has demonstrated a commitrnent to the role.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board has shown its commitment to presenting appropriate information about the Group’s finangial position by complying with best practice and
all standards issued by the International and UK Accounting Standards Boards relating to the disclosures which are included in this Annual Repent.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Efrectors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that taw the Directors are required to prepare the Group
financial staternents in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs} as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts uniess they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Compary and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the Parent Company financial staterments, the Directors are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

* properly select and apply accounting policies;

* present information, including accounting palicies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to uncerstand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance; and

* make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesttion of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companigs Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other imegutarities.
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The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Gompany's website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Going Concemn

After making enquiries, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further detail is contained in the Business Review on pages 10 to 25.

Internal Contro)

The Board has applied principle C.2 of the Code by establishing a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
the Group faces. The Board regularly reviews the process, which has been in place from the start of the year to the date of approval of this report and
which is in accordance with the revised guidance on internal control published in October 2005 (the Turnbull Guidance). The Board is responsible for
the Group's systemn of internat control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaternent or loss.

In compliance with Provision C.2.1 of the Code, the Board regularty reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control. The Board's
monitoring covers afl controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management and is based principally on reviewing
reports from management to consider whether significant risks are identified, evaluated, managed and controfled and whether any significant
weaknesses are promptly remedied or indicate a need for more extensive monitoring. The Board has also performed a specific assessment for the
purpose of this Annual Report. This assessment considers all significant aspects of internal control arising during the peried covered by the report
including work of the Internal Financial Control Committee (FCC). The Audit Committee assists the Board {which maintains responsibility in this regard)
in discharging its review responsibilities.

During the course of its review of the system of internal control, the Board has not identified or been advised of any faillings or weaknesses which it has
determined to be significant. Theretore a confirmation in respect ¢f necessary actions has not been considered appropriate. The key elements of the
ongoing continuous process during the period under review have been:

+ Formal Board reporting on a monthly basis by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief vinancial Officer and Chief Operating Officer on the Group's
performance and on any emerging risks and issues. The monthly management accounts break down the results of the Group's operations into
its two reportable segments and then by individual business performance. All significant variations against budget and the previous year are fully
examined. The day-to-day responsibility for managing each of the Group's operations rests with local experienced senior executives and the
Group has a clear organisational structure which includes appropriate delegation of authority. The Executive Directors ensure that regular contact
is maintained with all senior executives. The Group Managemeni Board, which comprises the Executive Directors, the Company Secretary, the
Group Head of Finance, the GCirector of Human Resources and the Digital and Business Developrment Director met every month during the year to
review financial and operational issues as well as the risks facing the Group. From Jariuary 2011 this bedy has met along with Divisional Managing
Directors and other senior executives from throughout the Group as a Senior Management Team.

* Formal Board approval for capital expenditure over £250,000 and for other investment decisions.

» Formal Board approval of the annual budget for the forthcoming financial year. This includes detailed and comprehensive budgets covering each
operating business.

* Formal Board reporting of the key functional departments’ future strategy as part of the operational {opics considered at Beard meetings during
the year.

* Review by the Audit Committee (with subsequent reporting to the Board) on a six-monthly basis of the work performed by the IFCC based on a
programme of work agreed in agdvance. The IFCC is chaired by the Group Head of Finance who is responsible for the conduct of control reviews
in selected locations by members of the Committee who are independent of the location visited. The IFCC is also responsible for the review of
detailed financial control checklists submitted monthly by each operation to the Group head office. This work is supported by the Group's financial
accounting centre which ensures a consistent and compliant approach to the processing of transactions and ensures a uniform control process
across the Group's operations.

+ Review by the Audit Committee (with subsequent reporting to the Board) of the conclusions of the Group's external auditors in their annual audit
and review of the half-year results. These reviews include discussion of any control weaknesses or issues identified by the auditors.

¢ The conduct of risk assessment invotving all senior managers of the Group's businesses in addition to the Executive Directors. A risk matrix is
reviewed on a requiar basis throughout the year by both the local operations and the Senior Management Team. One risk is discussed at every
monthly executive meeting both locally and at Group level. These risk assessment sessions are held at each operation and will evaluate and
address the risks identified. The results of these assessments are addressed in the Chief Operating Officer's monthly report to the Board. During
2010, the Group Management Board considered customer care metrics; human resources; pension liabiities; newsprint; cuts in public spending;
banking covenants; national advertising sales; management succession planning; digital strategy; management stretch; daily newspaper sales; and
corporate strategy.
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Steps are taken on an ongoing basis 10 embed best practice into all the Group's operations and to deal with areas of improvement which come to
managernent’s and the Board's attention.

In addition, the Group Management Board set policies, procedures and standards as detalled in the Group’s policy guidelines, These are reviewed and
revised on an annual basis and a tailored version has been issued to the businesses in the Republic of Ireland and Iste of Man. The guidelines include
policies on:

Finance

Cash/treasury controls

Authorisation levels

Trading

Customer senice

Commercial and competition

Technology

Property management

Human resources including pension administration, disability and heatth and safety
Emvironmental issues and energy management
Legal and regulatory compliance

Business continuity.

At the Board meeting in March 2011 the Directors reviewed the need for an intemal audit department and concluded that they did not befieve it necessary
for the Group to maintain such a department given the very effective role played by the IFCC and the current independent review and moritoring
procedures in operation,

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS

Summary of the Role of the Audit Committee

1t 2 Audit Committee is appointed by the Board from the Non Executas, Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference | clude all
1t.atters indicated by Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7.1 and the Coca. The terms of reference are consicered annually by ihg Audit Comriaee and
are approved by the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for:

* monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and any formal announcemnents relating to the Group’s financial performance and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgerments contained therein;

* reviewing the Group’s internal financial controls and the Group's internal control and risk management systems;

* monitoring and reviewing the effectivenass of the IFCC ard making propasals to the Board as to the need, or otherwiss, for an internat audit function;

* making recommendations to the Board, for a resolution ta be put to the shareholders for thelr approval in general megting, on the appointment of the
external auditors and the approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the extarnal auditors;

*  raviewing and monitoring the external auditors' independence and obijectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into consideration
refevant UK professional and regulatory requirements;

* developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit sendces, taking into account relevant guidance
regarding provision of non-audit senvices by the external audit firm; and

* reviewing the arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or
other areas.

The Audit Committee is required to report its findings 1o the Board, identifying ary matters on which it considers that action or improvernent is needed
and make recommendations on the steps to be taken. The Committee’s Terms of Reference permit it to oversee the selaction process for appointing new
auditors should it determine, or it becomes necessary, to do so.

Compaosition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mark Pain, a chartered accountant, who is considered by the Board to have relevant financial expertise for
that role. Camiila Rhodes (who was appointed to the Committee on 1 January 2010) and Kjell Aamot (who was appointed to the Committee on 1
September 2010) are also members. All are independent Non Executive Directors.

The Committee meets once during the year with the Company's external auditors to discuss and agree the audit programme for the forthcoming year,
together with any proposed non-audit work. Any significant non-audit work by the auditors is approved by the Committee in advance of any engagement
letter being signed.

Meetings

The Audit Committee is required to meet three times per year and has an agenda linked to events in the Group's financial calendar. The agenda is
predominantly cyclical and is therefore approved by the Audit Committee Chainnan on behalf of his fellow members. Each Audit Committee member has
the right to require reports on matters of interest in addition to the cyclical items.

The Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Chief Financial Officer and the Group Head of Finance at the invitation of the Committee and by the
Company Secretary, who acts as Secretary to the Committee, with minutes being circulated to all Board members. The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Operating Officer are also invited to attend if required to do so by the Committee. Towards the close of relevant meetings, all Executives leave
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in order for the Committee to have appropriate discussion witn the external auditors. The Audit Committee Chainman also has a private meeting with the
axternal audit partner during the course of the year to discuss any relevant issues.

CQverview of the Actions Taken by the Audit Commitiee to Discharge its Duties
Two of the scheduled meetings followed the interim review and the year-end audit.

They covered comprehensive reperts from management on material accounting policies and significant judgement areas and from the external auditors
on their work and conclusions. The Committee focussed in particular on the areas of financial judgement by the Group.

In addition, these two meetings considered reports on the work of the IFCC. Its work is described in the Internal Control section and, given the detai and
comfort included in the reports, the Committee continues to regard this approach as the most effective way to review the financial controls in the business
rather than to establish an intemnal audit function.

A third meeting took place in October 2010 where the Committee carried out a full and detaited review of the Group's key business risks and discussed
any revisions. The Committee is actively involved in the ongoing review of risk and internal controls by the main Board.

External Auditors

At the meeting to review the Annual Report and Accounts, the Committee formally considers the non-audit services provided by the Group's external
auditors and the effectiveness of the audit process. It is the Company’s policy that any non-audit work to be performed by the auditors requires to be
approved in advance by the Audit Committee.

To assess the effectiveness of the external auditors, the Audit Committee reviewed:

the arrangements for ensuring the external auditors’ independence and cbjectivity;

the external auditors’ fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and any variations from the plan;

the robustness and perceptiveness of the auditors in their handling of the key accounting and audit judgernents; and
the content of the external auditors' reporting on internal control.

The Committes is satisfied that the objectivity and independence of the external audit is safeguarded.

During 2010 the Company has used several professional firms for different projects and the Republic of Ireland taxation compliance and advisory work is
undertaken by a professional firm other than the Group's auditors.

The Committee oversaw the appointment of Delitte LLP in 2002 and has a primary responsibiiity for the appeintment, re-appointment and removal
of auditors. The Audit Committee conducted a formal evaluation of the effectiveness of the external audit process. The Committee has considered
the likelihood of a withdrawal of the external auditor from the market and noted that there are no contractual obligations to restrict the choice of
external auditors.

The Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external auditors. On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Directors will be proposing the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP at the Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2011. The Audit Partner rotated at the
commencement of the 2007 interim review and will rotate every five years.

Dialogue with Institutional Shareholders

The Board encourages and seeks to build a mutual understanding of objectives between the Company and its institutional shareholders. As part of this
process, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer make twice yearly presentations to institutional shareholders and meet with shareholders
to discuss any issues of concern and to obtain feedback. In addition, they communicate regularly throughout the year with those shareholders who
request a meeting.

The Chairman personally contacts the leading shareholders in the Company on an annual basis to address any concerns and discuss any
issues. The Board receives a report on any discussion with shareholders and the written feedback that follows full year and the half year results
presentations is circulated to the Board. Brokers' reports and analysts' briefings, when available, are included in the Board papers sent to the
Directors in advance of meetings.

The Board receives a quarterty update on the shareholder register with a summary of the main movements in shareholdings since the previous report,

Members of the Board have met with institutional shareholders during the year to consider Corporate Governance matters. All the Non Executive Directors
are prepared to meet with shareholders to understand their views more fully.

Annual General Meeting

The Board seeks to encourage shareholders to attend its Annual General Meeting. It is the palicy of the Board that all Directors should attend the
Annual General Meeting and be available to answer shareholders’ questions unless unable to do so. The Company uses the Annual General Meeting to
communicate with private investors and encourages their participation. All Directors attended the Annuial General Meeting in 2010. In 2010, the notice of
the Annual General Meeting and related papers were sent to shareholders more than 20 days before the meeting.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to the Accounting Regutations under the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”). The report
also meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how the Board has applied the principles
relating to directors’ remuneration in the Combined Code. As required by the Act, a resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual
General Mgeting of the Company at which the financial statements will be approved. The Act requires the auditors to report to the Company's
members on certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state whether in their opinion those parts of the report have been property
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Regulations. The report has therefore been divided into separate sections for audited and

unaudited information.

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (referred to in the report as the Committee} was chaired by Peter Cawdron, an independent Non Executive Director,
until his retirement from the Board on 30 April 2010 and has subsequently been chaired by Geoff Iddison. Mr Iddison and Mark Fairi joined the
Committee with efiect from 1 January 2010. Camilla Rhodes joined the Committee with effect from 4 March 2010. All are independent Non
Executive Directors. Martina King, also an independent Non Executive Director, was a member of the Committee until she stepped down as a
Director at the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2010. During 2010, the Commitiee met on six occasions with two of these meetings being
held by telephone.

The Committee’s terms of reference were reviewed in 2010 and require it to meet at teast twice each year and at such times as is necessary.
The terms of reference, which are available on the Company's website, set out the respensibilities of the Committee. These include:

¢ having the elegated responsibility for reviewing the Board policy on remuner= . on for the executive managernent team (which inchides tha
thrae Executive Directors) and setting all aspects of remuneration, including the total remuneration package for all Executive Direct o5 ane te
Chairman of the Board. In determining remuneration, the Committes wil take account of pay and benefits elsewhere in the Groug.

= ensuring, after consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and other executive management members, appropriate levels of incentives are
available to encourage enhanced performancs, in a fair and responsible manner, and so that executives are rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company.

+ approving the design of, and determining targets for, any performance related pay schemes {including bonuses) operated by the Company and
approving the total annual payments made under such schemes.

+ eviewing the design of all shara incentive plans for approval by the eoard and shareholders. For any such plans, datermining aach yoa.s
whether awards will be made, and if so, the overall amount of such awards, the individual awards to Executive Directors and other senior
executives and the performance targets to be used.

* ensuring that contractual terms on termination, and any payments made, are fair to the individual, and the Company, that failure is not rewarded
and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised. The Committee provides guidance to the Board on termination packages to individuals.
No Director or manager is involved in any decisions as to their own termination package.

The remuneration of Non Executive Directors is a matter for the Chairman of the Board and the Executive Directors.

The Committee makes recommendations to the Board. No member of the Committee has any personal financial interest (other than as a
sharehotder), conflicts of interest arising from cross directorships or day to day involvernent in running the business. Cther Directors attend meetings
when invited by the Committee and the Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. No Director plays a part in any discussion about
his or her own remuneration.

During the year, the Committee received executive remuneration advice from its external independent adviser, Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS),
a trading name of Aon Corporation. Neither HNBS nor any other part of Aon Corporation provided other services to the Company during

2010. HNBS attended cne of the meetings of the Committee during the year and provided advice as required by the Commitice. The terms of
engagement between the Company and HNBS are disptayed on the Company’s website in the Investor Centre section. HNBS are signatories to
the Remuneration Consultants Group’s Code of Conduct which has been considered in the drafting of this report.

There is an ongoing training programme for the Committee which consists of an annual update cn any changes in regulations and also best
practice. In addition, each member of the Committee attends various seminars throughout the year. Specific training was arranged for Geoff Iddison
who succeeded Peter Cawdron as Chairman of the Commitiee.

As explained on page 41, the Board undertook an evaluation of its performance during the year. This included a review of the effectiveness of

this Committee considering its composition, chairmanship, whether it fulfiled its role as outlined in the terms of reference, its reporting and overall
performance. This evaluation process was undertaken by the members of the Committee itself as well as by all members of the Board. The results
of this process were positive and confirmed the effectiveness of the Committee.
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Remuneration Policy
The Committee’s remuneration policy aims to attract, motivate and retain directors of the high calibre needed to maintain the Group's strong position in
its local markets, to drive the future success of the business and to reward them for maximising and protecting the long-term value to shareholders.

The Company’s policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance related. Executive Directors
may earn annual bonus payments together with the benefits of participation in share schemes and these arrangements are described below.

The Committee reviews the performance criteria attached to short and long-term incentives each year and their appropriate mix to ensure that they
are aligned with the Company's strategic objectives and future direction.

The current performance-related benefits, which consist of an annual performance bonus and long-term incentives, account for a significant
proportion of total remuneration. The graphic below shows the individuat elements of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors’
in 2010.

Benefits including Private Health
Basic salary - Insurance, mobile phone,
car allowance and pension

Performance Share Plan
{PSP) awards '

Paid in cash . Taxable Benefit-in-kind Vesting period of 3 years

Fixed Fixed

The Committee has also considered the structure of the Directors’ remuneration packages from a risk perspective. It is satisfied that the packages,
which include a base salary, an annual bonus (with a significant element paid in shares, receipt of which is deferred) and market competitive long-
term incentives, do not encourage inappropriate risk taking. In addition, risk is taken into account when setting the targets under variable incentive
schemes. This is done by ensuring that a mix of metrics is used and targets, while stretching, are realistic, attainable, for the long-term benefit of
the Company and achievable without taking inappropriate business risks.

The Remuneration Committee also censiders the level of pay and employment conditions throughout the Group, ingarticular of other members of
the senicr management team, when setting Executive Directors’ remuneration.

In reviewing the remuneration policy, the Committee has the discretion to take into consideration {amongst others) corporate performance on
environmental, social and governance {ESG) issues. The Committee ensures that ESG risks are not raised by the incentive structure through
inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour.

Basic Salary

Base salaries are determined by the Committee prior to the beginning of each calendar year and when an individual changes position or
responsibility. In deciding appropriate levels, the Committee takes into account a range of factors including market conditions, the prevailing market
rates for similar positions in comparable companies (through objective research carried out by its external consultants), the responsibilities, individual
performance and experience of each Director and the level of salary increases awarded to employees across the Group.

In addition to basic satary, the Executive Directors receive certain benefits-in-kind, principally a car or a cash buyout and private medical insurance.
Any payments made to Directors other than salary are not pensionable.

With effect from 1 January 2011 the salaries of John Fry, Stuart Paterson and Danny Cammiade remained unchanged at £525,000, £360,720 and
£323,592 per annum respectively. 2011 is the fourth year during which Executive Direclors’ salaries have stayed at the same level. Grant Murray,
who will join the Group as Chief Financial Officer on 3 May 2011 will receive a salary of £270,000.

Performance Related Bonus

The Committee considers and approves the objectives that must be met for each financial year if a cash bonus is to be paid. In setting the
appropriate bonus parameters, the Committee, having taken advice, takes into account the Company’s internal budgets and analysts’ expectations
for the forthcoming year. The bonus increases as performance above target increases and the targets are especially stretched at the top end. The
Committee believes that this ties any incentive payments to the interests of shareholders.

The maximum bonus level for the Executive Directors in post during 2010 was set at 150% of salary and 50% of any bonus is paid in shares
deferred for three years. A forfeiture clause applies to the shares for bad leavers. In the case of Stuart Paterson, the shares deferred as part of the
2007 bonus have vested. The bonus for 2008 was waived at that timse and the shares related to the 2009 deferred bonus have been forfeited.

As a result of his resignation, Mr Paterson waived his right to the deferred element of the 2010 bonus.
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For the 2010 calendar year, of the maximum bonus of 150% of salary, 80% of safary was based on a profit target and a further 35% of salary
related to an agreed cash flow target. The remaining 35% of salary was based on individual key performance targets, which were specific, clearly
measurable and payable only if a specific profit-related threshold was achieved. Each target was agreed by the Committee and subsequently
approved by the Beard.

Of the profit related bonus, 40% of salary was payable on achievernent of a challenging target with additional sums payable on a sliding scale which
was particularly stretched at the top end to achieve maximum bonus of 80% of salary. Based on actual operating profit (before non-recurring and
IAS 21/38 items) for the 2010 financial year, which was above threshold and target performance, a profit based bonus equal to 45.3% of salary was
payable in respect of the profit element.

Up to 35% of salary was payable in respect of targets related to cashfiow. As with the profit element, bonus was accrued on a sliding scale with
17.5% of salary being payable on achievement of a threshold and stretching targets to achieve a maximum payment. Based on actual cashflow
for the 2010 financial year, which was above threshold and target performance, a cashflow based bonus equal to 17.8% of salary was payable.

The individual key performance targets varied by Executive Director. These included cost reduction, newspaper sales, level of net debt,
implementation of organisational change, together with strategic and financial targets. Since the 2010 profit threshold was achieved, bonus
was payable for the achigverment of individual key performance targets. All Executive Directors achieved the majority of their individual KPls with
payments to John Fry, Stuart Paterson and Danny Cammiacde equivalent to 24.5%, 23,9% and 22.0% of salary respectively in this regard.

For the 2011 financial year and for existing Executive Directors, the same elements of the bonus structure have been retained with 80% of salary
related to profit, 35% of salary being based on cash flow performance and 35% based on individual perforrmance targets. If a minimum level of
profit or cashflow is not achieved, then individual KPIs will not be payable.

Retention Borus

As previously reported, Stuart Paterson was awarded a one off conditional, non pensionable, cash retention bonus of £250,000 in August 2008
contingent on him rermaining a Director of the Company, and not serving notice on or prier to 5 lanuary 2011, As announced on 26 October 2010,
Mr Paterson has tendered his resignation as a Director and will leave office on 156 March 2011. As a consequence of his resignation, he forfeited all
rights to receive the retention bonus which will not be paid.

Share Schemes
The Company currently operaies a number of Share Schemes and these are described below.

a) A Performance Share Plan (PSP) with awards being shown below and in note 30 to the financial statements. Under the rules of the PSP,
Performance Shares may be granted over a three year performance period to the Executive Directors and certain senior Executives on an
annua! basis. The scheme rules permit 125% of salary as a normal annual maxirmum and 150% of salary in exceptional circumstances. No
payment is made by the Executives for the award itself, nor for the shares that actually vest.

For 2007 and 2008, awards were based 50% on tota) shareholder return (TSR) and 50% on Return on Capital Employed (ROCE). No elements
of the performance conditions applying to the 2007 PSP awards were met and as a consequence these awards have now lapsed. Expectations
are that the 2008 award will not vest either.

The 2009 and 2010 awards were based entirely on the Company's TSR performance against the constituents of the FTSE All-Share

Media sector, excluding any FTSE 100 participants (on the grounds of size) (the “Comparator Group™). In addition, awards will only vest if
the Committee is satisfied that the Company's underlying performance has achieved an appropriate level of improvement. n deciding the
appropriate performance metric(s) to apply at the time, the Committee felt that TSH was the best measure of performance since it aligns the
interests of executives and investors. Furthermore, setting TSR targets was more straightiorward at a time when economic uncertainty made
it difficult to set financial targets over a three year period. 25% of awards made in 2009 and 2010 will vest if the Group achieves the median
TSR performance of the Comparator Group over the three year period from grant, with 100% allocation if the Group achieves upper quartile
performance. There is a sliding scale between the two levels.

Following a review of PSP performance measures and consultation with the Company’s largest shareholders. the Committee has decided to
re-introduce a financial metric to be used in conjunction with TSR for the awards to be made in 2011.

Therefore, the Committee has agreed to reduce the TSR element of the performance condition to 50% {measured against the Comparator
Group and with the same vesting schedule) and to introduce a second performance condition {also representing 50% of the total award) based
on growth in earnings per share (EPS}. Under this proposal, 25% of this part of the award would vest for EPS growth of RPI +4% per annum
over the three-year period ending 31 December 2013 and all of this part of the award would vest for EPS growth of RPI +12% per annum

or greater with vesting on a straight line basis between these ranges. Having noted the views of shareholders and reviewed the prevailing
economic conditions, the Committee is satisfied that this range of targets is suitably demanding. No vesting of this part of the award would
occur for EPS growth of less than RPI +4% per annum.
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b

c)

d)

Until 2008 and in line with policy, the Company made PSP awards with a face value of 100% of salary to Executive Directors. However,
recognising the circumstances at the time (and in particular the Company's falling share price), the Committee restricted PSP awards to
lower levels in the subsequent years. In 2009, an award of the same number of shares was made as in 2008 (squivalant to 53.3% of salary),
and in 2010 an award of a lower number of shares, equivalent to 73% of salary was made). For 2011, while the Committee believes it is
important to provide sufficient incentives for the Executive Directors, it also recognises the decline in the Company's share price over the
past year and the continued need for restraint and, following consultation with major investors, determined that an award based on the
same number of shares given to each executive directeor in 2008 and 2009 will bs made. At the share price as at the date of this report,

this will represent an award of a significantty smaller proportion of salary than in previous years.

As previously disclosed, as part of his recruitment terms John Fry was granted a long-term incentive award (*Option”) based on share price
targets. The Committee determined that the performance conditions applying to Mr Fry's award should be the same as that applying to the
PSP awards made to other senior employees and that his award would only differ in amount and in relation to specific promises regarding
change of control which were agreed when he was recruited. Following shareholder consuitation, the award over 5,000,000 shares was made
on 30 June 2009 (the Grant Date) under Listing Rule 9.4.2R.

The Option is subject 10 a performance condition which compares the rank of the Company's TSR against the Comparator Group over three years
commencing an 13 June 2009. The Option is also subject to a financial underpin and will normally become exercisabla on or following the thirg
anniversary of the Grant Date, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions and Mr Fry being employed in the Group at that time.

Subject to the satisfaction of the financial underpin, the Option will become capable of exercise over 25% of the shares if, at the end of the
performance period, the rank of the Company's TSR against the Comparator Group is at least median, and over 100% of the shares if the
Company's TSR is at or above the upper quartile. For performance between median and upper quartile, the Option will become exercisable on
a straight-line basis between 25% and 100% based on ranking.

Under the terms of the financial underpin, notwithstanding the extent to which the TSR condition may have been satisfied, no part of the Qption
iy become exercisable unless, over the performance pericd, the Femuneration Committee, In its discration, considlers that the Seme  w'y
underlying financial performance has achieved an appropriate level.

A SAYE Sharesave Pfan, the Johnston Press 2007 Sharesave Plan, for eligible employees under which options may be granted at a discount
of up to 20% of market value, subject to the employee entering into a monthly savings contract with a maximum aggregate savings egual

to £250 per month, Consistent with the legislation and naormal practice, the SAYE Sharesave Plan does not require the impasition of
perfarmance conditions.

A scheme was introduced during 2006 to provide employees in the Republic of Irefand with a similar benefit, This was arrened ouring 2008
and approved by the Irish Revenue to ensure that the grant price calculation mirrors the Johnston Press 2007 Sharesave Plan.

Both schemes were operated in 2010,

A Share Incentive Plan (SIP} for all eligible employees. The SIP has been approved by HM Revenue and Customs and is in two parts, The first
is a Partnership Scheme, which allows employees 1o purchase shares in the Company, worth up 1o £1,500 in any tax year, on a monthly basis
in a tax efficient manner. The second element is a Free Shares Scheme, which provides employees who have joined the scheme with free
shares up to a maximum value. The shares are held in a UK resident trust administered by Computershare Plan Managers and, after a period
of five years, the shares may be withdrawn free of any tax and National Insurance. Shares may be withdrawn from the Trust earlier in certain
circumstances although early withdrawal may result in a charge to tax and National Insurance. Employees who leave the Group as a bad leaver
within three years of the shares being awarded forfeit the Free Shares. For Free Shares, the Committee sets a Group profit target and a base
fund to be utilised to purchase shares in the Company. The Free Shares are allocated to employees based on hours worked and are not pro
rata to salary.

It is not possible to invite employees based in the Republic of Ireland to participate in the SIP. At the 2007 AGM, shareholders approved the
Johnston Press Restricted Stock Unit Scheme {the “RSU Scheme™), for use in the Republic of Ireland, which mirrors as closely as possible the
UK Free Shares Scheme. However, the Irish Commissioner would not approve any scheme which includes a forfeiture provision if employees
leave and, therefore, tax will be payable by Irish employees when beneficial ownership of shares acquired under the RSU Scheme passes to
the employees after a period of five years,

In the calendar year 2010, both the Free Share Scheme and the RSL) Scheme were operated. The Group's profit achievement met the
minimum target set by the Committee and therefore an award totalling shares {o the value of £1.0 million will be made.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the exercise criteria are met for all Share Schemes and this is verified by the Committee.

Options under ¢) above are satisfied by the issue of new shares. As indicated, the Johnston Press Employee Share Trust currently holds shares
purchased in the open market to meet awards anticipated to vest under a} and b). Shares are purchased in the open market to satisfy the Free
Shares award within d).
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Executive Directors are expected to retain 50% of shares which vest under Executive share plans, after allowing for sufficient sales of shares to
meet tax liabilities, until a holding to the value of 100% of satary has been achieved,

Dilution
At the end of 2010 the total number of options and share awards granted, less lapsed, over new issuable shares under the share schemes over
the previous 10 years was 4.53% of the issued share capital within a maximurm limit of 10%.

Pension Armangements

During 2010, the Group operated one main pension scheme for UK employees, the Johnsten Press Pension Plan (JPPP), with defined benefit and
defined contribution sections. The defined benefit section has been closed to new members for several years. On 14 January 2010 the Company
announced a consultation process on a proposal to close the defined benefit section to future accrual and this closure took place on 30 June 2010,
The assets of JPPP are entirely separate from the assets of the Company and of the Group, and are invested by independent fund managers.

A professional independent trustee and member nominated trustees are appointed to the pension scheme. A firm of external actuares and
consultants act as advisors. Pension scheme members receive a report from the trustees and a statement of their benefits each year.

Company contributions to the JPPP {defined benefit section) are at a fixed annual amount, paid monthly. Based on the triennial valuation as at

31 December 2007, annual contributions are based on a percentage of pensionable salaries plus a fixed annual amount to recover the deficit.
These arrangements were agreed between the trustees of the JPPP and the Company. As part of the refinancing completed in August 2009,

the Company undertook to make additional, substantial payments into the Plan from April 2012, dependent on the triennial actuariat valuation
conducled as at 31 December 2010. Work on this valuation is ongoing. The Executive section of the Plan which also closed to future accrual on
30 June 2010 provides for & retirement age of 62, a maximum pension of two thirds of salary based on either a 45th accrual rate or a full two thirds
at retirement date and a member's contribution of 10.5% of salary with a spouse’s pension of a third of pensionable salary in the event of death

in service. There are no provisions for beneficial rights on early retirement apart from a number of employees who were formerly members of

The Scotsman section of the defined benefit scheme.

Employer contributions to the defined cor ribution section of the JPPP vary between 4% and 2% of satary r gpending on age, employes
contribution and positiun in the Company.

In addition to the JPPP, the Group participates in three final salary schemes in the Republic of Ireland. Two are multi-employer industry schermnes
and the third is for a smah number of employees in Limerick. This last scherme was closed to future accrual in the second half of the year. There
are no financial implications to the Group if these schemes are tenminated. The Group also inherited a number of defined contribution schemes.
The Group launched and operates a defined contribution scherme in the Republic of Ireland, the Johnston Press (Irefand) Pension Scheme {JPIPS).
All employees who are not merbers of a pension scheme or those employees who are members of other defined contribution schemes have been
invited to join the JPIPS. Employer contribution rates vary between 3% 10 12%.

Danny Cammiade was an uncapped member of the Executive section of the JPPP until 30 June 2010. Feollowing the closure of the defined benefit
section of the JPPP the Company makes pension contributions of 25% of his basic salary and matches any contributions by him up to a maximum
of 5% of salary. Under current pensicn legislation, Mr Cammiade is unable to make any further contributions to the defined contribution section

ot the JPPP or to a suitable private pension scheme in a tax efficient manner. Consequently, with effect from 1 July 2010, the Company’s pension
contributions have been paid to him as a salary supplement less the cost of employer National Insurance contributions on such amounts. Stuan
Paterson did not participate in the JPPP and the Company agreed instead to make a contribution equivalent to 25% of his basic salary into his
private pension scheme. With effect from 1 January 2005, the Company also agreed to match any additional annual contribution made by Mr.
Paterson, up to a maximum of 5% of salary. Under current pension legislation, such additional matching pension contributions to Mr Paterson can
no longer be made in a tax efficient manner and with effect from 1 September 2010, have been paid to him as a salary supplement less the cost of
employer National Insurance on such amounts. John Fry is entitied to receive a percentage of salary into his private pension scheme. For the first
year of his employment this was 30% increasing by 1.25% per annum each year up to a maximum of 40%. For 2011 such contributions shall be
equivalent to 32.5% of salary.

JOMNSTON PRESS PLC AKNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2010 49




GOVEANANCE - DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Service Contracts
The contract dates and notice periods for each Executive Director are as follows:

Notice period  Notice period
Date of Contract by Company by Director

John Fry* 23 September 2008 1 year 1 year
Danny Cammiade 27 February 2006 1 year 1 year
Stuart Paterson® 24 May 2001 1 year 1 year

# Tha Company announced on 9 March 2014 that Mr Fry intended 10 step down from the Board.
* The Company announced the resignation of Mr Paterson on 26 October 2010,

The Executive Directors have one year rolling contracts terminable by either party on 12 months’ natice. In the event of termination by the
Company, the Executive Directors would be entitied to remuneration for the notice period and the Commitiee would seek to firmly apply the
principles of mitigation following termination.

In the event of termination, payment of any element of bonus to Executive Directors will depend upon the relevant circumstances, the terms of their
contract and whether the leaver is treated as a good or bad leaver. In the former scenario, a payment of bonus on a pro rata basis up to the date
of departure may be paid at the time that bonuses are paid to other Executives. Mr Paterson resigned from the Company so he is treated as a bad
leaver. As he was employed throughout 2010 he is entitled to payment of the annual bonus. However, the deferred share based etement of the
bonus would be forfeited under the relevant bad leaver provisions and so Mr Paterson waived his right 10 this element.

The Executive Directors' contracts of employment may also be terminated, at the option of the Company, by giving six months' notice if the Executive
is incapacitated by reason cof ill-health or accident from performing his duties for certain specified periods. The Company may also terminate the
Executive's emp'ayment forthwith in certain circumstances including any serious brez:ii of his obligations under the contract of employment. . |

The Executive Directors’ service contracts de not provide any entitlement to payment in lieu of notice or the provision of liquidated damages.

Executive Directors are entitled to accept up to two non executive director appointments outwith the Company provided that the Chaimnan's penmission
is obtained. The Remuneration Committee decides whether any fees for such positions are retained by the Director. In addition, the Executive Directors
are entitled to accept any positions connected with the newspaper industry or any business in which the Company holds an investment. in 2010, Stuart
Paterson and John Fry each held one external Non Executive position and received £41,250 and £14,000 in fees respectively.

Executive Directors’ service contracts, which include details of remuneration, wil be available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting.
Non Executive Directors

The appointment of Non Executive Directors of the Company are terminable at will, subject to a three month notice period. it is the Committee's
policy that any future Board appointments will be made on the same terms. The Non Executive Directors have letters of appointment dated:

lan Russell 14 January 2007 (with a subsequent letter appointing him as Chairman on 28 January 2009)
Ralph Marshall 27 June 2008

Mark Fain 1 May 2009

Camilla Rhodes 13 July 2009

Geoff Iddison 1 December 2009

Kjell Aamot 2 July 2010

A copy of the standard letter of appointment for the Chairman and Non Executive Directors Is displayed on the Company's website in the Investor
Centre section.

The letters of appointment provide specific terms of engagement for Non Executive Directors and their remuneration is determined by the Board
within the limits set by the Articles of Association and based on independent surveys of fees paid to Non Executive Directors of similar companies.
The basic annual fee paid to each Non Executive Direclor is £40,000. The Non Executives receive further fees for additional work performed for
the Company in respect of chairing the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, together with responsibiities as Chairman and Senior
Independent Director. The Chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Senior Independent Director each receive an
additional £7,500 per annum. The Chairman’s fee is £130,000 per annum. Each of these fees remained unchanged throughout the year. During
2008 the Board agreed that 50% of Non Executive Directors' fees would be paid in the form of shares. Non Executive Directors’ fees are paid on
a quarterly basis. This policy was retained throughout 2010 and will be reviewed in 2011,

Non Executive Directors cannot participate in the bonus plans or in any of the Company’s Share Schemes and are not eligible to join the
Company's pension plan.
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Performance Graph

The following graph shows the Company’'s performance, measured by total shareholder return, compared with the performance of the FTSE 350
Index and FTSE All Share Media Sector. The FTSE 350 Index and FTSE All Share Media Sector have been selected for this comparison because
the former measures the performance of stocks in general and the latter measures the performance of companies operating in the same sector as
the Company.

5 Year Retum index for Johnston Press at 31 December 2010
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This graph shows the value at 31 December 2010 of £100 invested in Johnston Press plc on 31 December 2005 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 350 Index and the FTSE All Share Media Sector. The other plotted points are the intervening financial year ends.

AUDITED INFORMATION
Directors’ Remuneration
a} The total amounts for Directors’ remuneration and other benefits were as follows:

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Emoluments 2,506 2,600
Money purchase contributions {(inc. salary supplements) 308 266
2,814 2,866
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b) Birectors’ Emoluments

Performance Related Bonus? Total
Salary/Fees Taxable Benefits' Cash Shares Cash Shares Emoluments
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Chairman
lan Rusself 130 114 - - - - - - 130 114
Roger Parny® - 43 - — - - — - - 43
Executive Directors
John Fry 525 525 16 14 230 230 210 210 1,001 9569
Stuart Paterson® 361 361 2 2 157 — 146 1486 520 655
Danny Cammiade 324 324 18 18 138 138 124 124 618 590
Non Executive Directors
Peter Cawdron® 17 50 - - - - — — 17 50
Freddy Johnston® 13 40 - - - - — - 13 40
Martina King® 13 40 - - - - — - 13 40
Simon Waugh? - 4 - - - - - - - 4
Ralph Marshall 40 40 - - - - — - 40 40
Gavin Patterson® - 13 - - — -— —_ - - 13
Mark Pain® 53 32 - — - — — — 53 az
Camilla Rhodes® 40 20 - - - - - - 40 20
Geoff Iddison® 44 — - — - - — — 44 -
Kiell Aamott! 17 - - - - - — - 17 -

1,577 1,606 36 34 525 368 480 480 2,506 2,600

Taxable benefits include car. telephone, lifa insurance and health insurance
Halt of the Executive Directors’ bonus is paid in shares, defefred for 3 years with potential forfeiture
Appointed as Chairman wath sffact from 12 March 2009

Resigned 24 April 2000

Resigns 15 March 2011

Resiqned 30 April 2010

fiesiget B0 January 2009

Apponted 1 May 2008

Appointed 13 July 2009

Appointad 1 January 2010

Appeointed 1 August 2010

e DO =N B LAY -

-

¢) Pension Benefits
The following Directors had accrued pension benefits under the Group's defined benefit scheme:

Total Increase in Totat Transfer value of Increase in

Years of accrued accrued Transfer accrued total accrued value of

pensionable pension at pension value of  pension at pension at pension

service 02.01.10 during year increase 01.01.11 020110 01.01.11 during year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Danny Cammiade 19 149 3 (114) 152 2,719 2,765 27

Danny Cammiade was a member of the Group Pension Schemes before the introduction of the pensionable satary cap in May 1989. Following

the closure of the defined benefit pension plan to future accrual, the Group made additional payments of £42,400 to Mr Cammiade as a salary
supplement net of National Insurance (Nl}). In addition to the above, the Group funded £90,175 (2009: £108,300} into a defined contritbution scheme
for Stuart Paterson and paid £164,060 (2009: £157,500) into the personal pension plan of John Fry. As a result of the change in pension legislation,
a salary supplement of £11,800 was paid to Stuart Paterson to represent the balance less NI of the agreed level of pension contributions payable.
All Executive Directors have life cover of four times basic salary.
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d) Share Schemes

At Granted/ At
03.01.10 Awarded Exercised Lapsed 01.01.11
Savings Related Scheme
John Fry 31,730 57,142 - {31,730 57,142
Stuart Paterson' 31,730 - — — 31,730
Danny Cammiade 63,031 98,095 — {63,031) 98,095
Share Matching Plan®
Stuart Paterson 19,618 - - (18.618) -
Danny Cammiade 15,989 - - (15,989) -
Performance Share Plan
John Fry® 5,000,000 1,207,087 - — 6,207,087
Stuart Paterson 2,031,164 B29,372 - {107 .324) 2,753,212
Danny Cammiade 1,822,101 744,007 - (96,277) 2,469,831

Lapsed onh 18 February 201 1.

2 The Share Matching Plan was suspended on | January 2007, Previousty it applied 10 the Executive Directors and certain Senior Executives. Participants invested part of their annual bonus in
buying shares in the Company and they had tha prospect of receiving extra matching shares after three years, paid for by the Compary. The performance conditions for the matching awards
granted prior to the plan’s suspension were not met and all awards have now lapsed. Shares relating to awards under the Share Matching Plan are held in the Johnston Press plc Empioyee
Share Trust.

3 Includes the one-off long terrn incentive plan award mads on 30 Juna 2008,

Those Savings Related Scheme options shown above that have not lapsed since the end of the period are exercisable as follows:
John Fry 57,142 at a price of 15.75p between 01.11.2013 and 30.04.2014
Danny Cammiade 08,095 at a price of 15.75p between 01.11.2015 and 30.04.2016

The awards within the Performance Share Plan (PSP) are exercisable at nil cost at the end of the three year vesting period. The breakdown by
individual is shown above and the total awards to the Executive Directors for each year are as follows:

1,824,832 awards will vest on 25.09.2011 — market price on award on 25 September 2008 37.5p
6,824,832 awards will vest on 30.06.2012 — market price on award on 30 June 2009 16.5p
2,780,466 awards will vest on 16.04.2013 — market price on award on 16 April 2010 31.75p

As Stuart Paterson is considered a bad leaver, all the awards made to him under the PSP will lapse on his leaving the Group.

The options, matching awards and performance shares listed above, other than those in the Savings Related Scheme, are only exercisable subject
to the level of achievement of the performance critena denoted in the Directors' Remuneration Report.

The middle market price of the Ordinary Shares was as follows:

On 4 January 2010 23.75p Highest price during year 33.50p
On 31 December 2010 12.00p Lowest price during year 9.10p

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

? - ()?o(om:\.ﬂ
v

Geoff Iddison
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the financial statements and auditors' report for the period ended
1 January 2011, The Corporate Governance report set cut on pages 39 to 44 forms part of this report,

Principal Activities
The Group's main activities are the publishing of Jocal and regional weekly, evening and marning newspapers, both paid-for and free, together with
associated websites, as well as specialist publications in print, online ar via maobile technologies.

Review of Business

The results for the year 2010 are set out in the Group Income Statement on page 59. The Group profit for the period before taxation was
£16,528,000 (2009: loss of £113,775,000) which results in a net profit for the period of £36,064,000 (2009: loss of £87,258,000), Details of the
business activities during the year, the financial results, the financial position and the principai risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out
in the Business Review on pages 10 to 25.

Dividends
No interim dividend was paid and the Directors recommend no final dividend for the period. In the short term, the Board believes the most
impartant use of available cash is to reduce the Group’s net debt position. The preference dividend was paid on 30 June and 31 December 2010.

Share Capital
Details of share capital are shown in note 27.

Environrmental Policy

The Board a2cknowledges that envircnmental protection is one of the Group's JLsiress respon.ibilities. 1t aims for a continuous improvement in th:
Group’s environmental performance and to comply with all relevant regutations. Fallowing an internal audit and an assessment by externat advisers,
the Group put in place, and there is in force, a documented ervirenmental policy to menitor performance and to take action where appropriate.
Further details of this policy are provided in the Corporate Social Responsibility Statement.

Donations
Charitable donations amounted to £32,000 (2009: £28,000), There were no payments for political purposes.

Supplier Payment Policy

The Group’s policy is to settle terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, ensuring that suppliers are made
aware of the terms of payment, and to abide by the terms of payment. Trade creditors of the Group at the end of the period were equivalent to
23 days purchases (2009: 29 days), based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppiiers during the period.

Financing Policy and Derivatives
The Group’s policies are set out in notes 21 to 23 and note 32. These also include detalls of financial instruments and derivatives.

Auditors
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

(1) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit infoermation of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and
(2) the Directar has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himseif/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5.418 of the Companies Act 2008.

Forward-looking Statements

Where the Directors’ Report {including the performance highlights, business review, operational review, performance review, and corporate
governance report) contains forward-looking statements these are made by the Directors in good faith based on the information available to them
at the time of thelr approval of this report. These statements will not be updated or reported upon further. Consequently such statements should be
treated with caution due to the inherent uncertainties including both economic and business risk factors underlying such forward looking staterments
or information.
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Directors and their Interests

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director is subject to retirement every three years and to election at the first Annual Generat
Meeting aiter their appointment. In addition, any Director who has served more than 9 years autornatically offers himself/herself for re-election
every year.

Danny Cammiade is retiring and offering himself for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. Kjell Aamot was appointed during the year and is
seeking election at the Annual General Meeting.

The Directors during the period and their direct interests in the share capital of the Caompany were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of 10p each

% of Share capital 1 January 2011 2 January 2010
lan Russell 0.2% 1,270,950 921,176
John Fry 0.1% 424,555 -
Stuart Paterson 0.1% 550,581 245,123
Danny Cammiade 0.1% 469,241 207,157
Ralph Marshall — 118,387 26,032
Mark Pain - 108,593 18,180
Camila Rhodes - 74,972 16,722
Geoff lddison - 74,335 -
Kell Aamaot - 50.314 —
Peter Cawdron - - 44,005
Freddy Johnston - - 10,488,910
Martina King — - 18,865

Geoff Iddison and Kjell Aamot were appointed Directors on 1 January 2010 and 1 August 2010 respectively. Freddy Johnston, Peter Cawdron and
Martina King resigned as Directors on 30 Aprit 2010.

In addition to the shareholdings shown above, which are alt held beneficially, and the share options as shown on page 53, John Fry, Stuart Paterson
and Danny Cammiade hold an interest in 11,851,179 (2009: 11,874,938) shares by virtue of their status as potential beneficiaries of the Johnston
Press plc Employee Share Trust.

Since 1 January 2011, Danny Cammiade has purchased 2,313 shares through the Share Incentive Plan.
No Director had any material interest in any contract, other than a service contract, with the Company or any subsigiary at any time during the year.

Structure of Shares

Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the year are shown in
note 27. The Company's issued ordinary share capital was 639,746,083 shares at the end of the period. As part of the refinancing completed on
28 August 2009, the Company issued warrants over 5% of its issued share capital to the Group's lenders. These warrants are exercisable at any
time over the 5 year period ending 27 August 2014 at an exercise price of 10p. No watrants were exercised in 2010.

The Company has one ¢lass of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings
of the Company. The redeemable cumulative preference shares carry 13,75% interest but do not carry voting rights. The percentage of the issued
nominal value of the ordinary shares is 98.3% of the total issued nominal value of all share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding or on the transfer of shares, which are boih governed by the general provisions of the
Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that
may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 30.

No person has any special rights of contral over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fulty paid. With regard to the appointment
and replacement of Directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of Association, the Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued by
the Financia! Reporting Council, the Companies Acts and related legislation. The Artictes themsetves may be armended by special resolution of
the shareholders. The powers of Directors are described in the Main Board Terms of Reference, copies of which are available on request, and the
Corporate Governance Statement on pages 39 1o 44.
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Substantial Shareholdings
So {ar as the Directors are aware the only holders of 3% or more of the Crdinary Share Capital of the Company and any other major shareholders,
other than Directors, as at the date of this report are as follows:

Ordinary Shares

of 1Cp each

% Helding Number

PanOcean Managemaent Ltd {on behalf of Usaha Tegas) 20.0 127,947 952
Orbis Investment Management Ltd 10.7 68,281,252
Jupiter Asset Management Ltd 4.6 29,297,022
Legal & General Group of Companies 4.0 25,544,134
Blackrock Inc. 3.3 21,192,826
Aviva Investors Glabal Services Ltd 3.0 19,271,592

Employee Involvement

It is the policy of the Group to encourage and develop all members of staff to realise their maximum potential. Wherever possible, vacancies are
filled from within the Group and adequate opportunities for internal promotion are created. The Board is committed 1o a systematic training policy
and has a comprehensive training and development programme creating the opportunity for employees to maintain and improve their petformance
and to develop their potential to a maximumn level of attainment. In this way, staff will make their best possible contribution to the organisation’s
success. The Group supports the principle of equal opportunities in employment and opposes all forms of unlawful or unfair discrimination on the
grounds of race, age, nationality, religion, ethnic or national origin, sexual orientation, gender or gender reassignment, marital status or disability. It
is also the policy of the Group, where possible, 1o give sympathetic consideration to disabled persons in their application for employment with the
Group and to protect the interests of existing members of the staff who are disabled.

Close Caompany Status
So far as the Directors are aware the Company is not a close company for taxation purposes.

Change of Control
In the event of a change of control the Group’s lenders, both the Private Placement loan note holders and the various Banks, have the option to
declare all amounts outstanding repayable on demand.

Directors’ Liability
As permitted by the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), the Company has insurance cover for the Directors against liabilities in relation to the Group.

Electronic Voting
The Company has made provision for shareholders to vote electronicalty on the Resolutions to be considered at the Annual General Meeting and
full instructions are included on the Form of Proxy enclosed with this Annuat Report.

Special Business
Four resolutions {resclutions 7 to 10) are set out under special business in the notice of this year's Annual General Meseting. The first of these
resolutions will be proposed as an ordinary resolution and the others as special resclutions.

The purpose of the first of these resolutions is to renew the Directors’ authority to altot shares in the Company. Part (i) of Resolution 7 seeks
authority 1o allot shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £21,322,736 representing 33.33% of the existing issued ordinary share capital,

The second part of resolution 7 seeks authority 10 alfot a further 33.33% of the existing ordinary share capital of the company. In accordance with
recommended best practice, this additional authority will be applied to fully pre-emptive rights issues only and the authorisation will be valid for one
year only. The Directors have no current intention 1o allot shares except in connection with employee share schemes and the authority, if approved,
will expire at the end of the Annuat General Meeting in 2012,

The second resolution, Resolution 8 (which is the first of the three special resclutions), relates to the power given to the Directors to allot equity
securities for cash without the statutory pre-emption provisions of the Companies Act 2006 applying. In accordance with best practice guidelines,
this authority is limited to allotments representing in total up to 5% of the existing issued ordinary share capital. This power, which accords with
nonmal practice, currently expires on the date of this year's Annual General Mesting. The purpose of the resolution is to renew this power for a
further year.
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The third item of special business is the renewal of the authority of the Company to purchase its own ordinary shares as permitted under its Articles
of Association. This resolution will, if passed, give authority to make such purchases in the market. The Directors have no immaediate intention of
using such authority and would do so only if they consider it to be in the best interests of shareholders generally and an improvement in earnings
per share woutd result. This Resolution specifies the maximum number of ordinary shares which may be purchased {representing approximately
10% of the Company's existing issued ordinary share capital) and the minimum and maximum prices at which they may be bought, reflecting the
requirements of the Act and the Financial Services Authority.

The final resolution to be proposed is to permit the Company to call General Meetings (other than Annual General Meetings) on not less than 14 days
clear notice as permitted by the Act. Although no such meetings are currently planned, the Directors believe that having authority to do so may, in
some circumstances, assist with the efficient discharge of the Company’s business. The Company intends to continue to provide as much notice as
practicable of General Meetings and would normally use this authority only where it would be to the advantage of shareholders as a whole.

Auditors
A resoiution to re-appoint Deloitte LLP as the Company’s auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

P McCall

Secretary

108 Holyroed Road
Edinburgh

EH8 8AS

9 March 2011

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

We confirm to the best of our knowledge:
1. the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and v e of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consoclidation taken as a whole; and

2. the business review, which is incorporated into the Directors’ Report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the pesition of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

On behalf of the Board

T

John Fry Stuart Paterson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
9 March 2011 9 March 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Johnston Press plc

Wa have audited the financial statements of Johnston Press plc for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 which comprise the Group Income
Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Reconciliation of Shareholders’ Equity, the Group Statement of Financial
Position and Parent Gompany Balance Sheet, the Group Statement of Cash Flows and the refated notes 1 to 43. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable taw and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union, The financlal reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company's mambers as & body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directars’ Responsibllities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Iretand). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financla! statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of; whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed: the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial staternents.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 1 January 2011 and of
the Group's profit for the 52 week period then ended;

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly preparad in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

* the financial statements have been preparad in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regutation.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Acl 2006

In our opinion: .

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

* the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

Mallers on which we are required {o report by exceplion
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

* the Parent Company financial staterments and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not mads; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rutes we are required to review:

» the Directors’ slatement contained within the Business Review, in relation to going concern;

+ the pant of the Corporate Governance Statement relating 1¢ the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combined
Code specifled for our review; and

¢ certain elements of the report to sharehalders by the Board on Directors' remuneration.

Colin Gibson CA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Edinburgh, United Kingdom

9 March 2011
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Group Income Statement
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011
219 2009
Befaore non- Before non-
recurring recurring
and Non- and Non-
1AS 21/39 recurming IAS IAS 21/39 recuring IAS
items items 21739 Total iterns iterns 21/39 Total
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Revenug 6 398,084 — - 398,084 427,996 - - 427,996
Cost of sales {241,605) - - {241,605} (264,312) - — (264,312)
Gross profit 156,479 - - 156,479 163,684 — — 163,684
Operating expenses 7 (84,488) {4,047) o {88,535} {91,900 (36,398) - {128,208)
Impairment of intangibles ns - {13,086} - {13.086) - {126,000) - {126,000
Total operating expenses (84,488} {17,133) - (101.621) {91,90Q) (162,398) — (254,298}
Operating profit/{loss) 8 71,991 {17,133} - 54.858 71,784  (162,398) — {90,614)
Irwestment income 10 43 -_ - 43 72 — — 72
Net finance income on
pension assetsAiabilities 11a 373 - - ar3 268 - - 268
Change in fair value of hedges 11c - - 2,573 2,573 - - (12,295) {12,295)
Retranslation of USD debt 11¢ - - (2,030) (2,030) — - 11,756 11,756
Retransiation of Euro debt 11¢ - - 2,623 2,623 — - 15,211 15211
Finance costs 11b {41,921} - - {41.521) {28,B05} {9,380) - {38,195)
Share of results of associates 18 10 - - 10 22 - - 22
rrofit/floss) before tax 30.496 {17,133} 3,166 16,529 43,341 (171,788 14,672 (113,775)
Tax 12 {6,866} 27,287 {886} 19,535 (7,795) 38,571 (4,259} 26,517
Profit/floss) for the period 23,630 10,154 2,280 36,064 35,546 {133,217} 10,413 (87.258)
Earnings per share [p) 14
Earnings per share - Basic 3.67 1.58 0.36 5.61 5.53 {20.82) .63 (13.66)
Earnings per share - Diluted 3.58 1.55 0.35 5.48 553 {20.82) 1.63 (13.66)

The above revenue and profit/loss) are derived from continuing operations. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The comparative penod is for the 53 week period ended 2 January 2010.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011

Hedging and
Revaluation Translation Retained
Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Profit for the period - - 36,084 36,084
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes {net of tax) — - 9,97¢ 9,976
Revaluation adjustment (63) — 63 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (3.456) - {3,456)
Deferred tax - 710 - 710
Change in deferred tax rate to 27% - (48} 141 93
Total comprehensive income for the period {83) {2.794) 46,244 43,387
For the 53 week period ended 2 January 2010
Loss for the period — - (87,258) (87,258}
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension schemes (net of tax) — - {51,721) {51,721}
Revaluation adjustment (88) - B3 -
Exchangs differences on translation of foreign operations - (7.639) - (7.639)
Reclassification on de-designation of hedge relationships - (7.939) - (7.939)
Defarred taxation - 2,223 - 2,223
Total comprehensive toss for the period (88} {13,355) {138,891} (152,334}
Group Reconciliation of Shareholders’ Equity
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011
Share-tased Hedging and
Share Share Payments Revaluation Own  Translation Retained
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Shares Reserve Earnings Tota!
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Opening balances 65,080 502,818 19,346 2,308 (5,004) 13,206 (227,730) 370,024
Total comprehensive income for the pericd — - - B3 - {2,794) 46,244 43,387
Recognised directly in equity:
Dividends {note 13) - - - - — — (152) (152)
New share capital subscribed 1 - - - — - —_ 1
Provision for shara-based payments (hote 30) - — (2,073) - - - - {2.073)
Net changes directly in equity 1 - (2,0673) — - - (152} {2,224)
Total movernents 1 - {2,073) 63) - 2.794) 46,002 41,163
Equity at the end of the pericd 65,081 502.818 17,273 2,245 {5,004) 10,412 {181,638} 411,187
For the 63 week period ended 2 January 2010
Opening balances 65,080 502,818 10,064 2,396 {4,412) 26,561 {88,687) 513,820
Total comprehensive toss for the period - - - (88) - {13,355) {138,891} (152,334)
Recognised directly in equity:
Dividends (note 13) - — - - - — {152) {152)
Share warrants issued — - 9390 - - - - 9,390
Own shares purchased - - - — (592} — - (592)
Provision for share-based payments (note 30) - - {108) - - — — {108)
Net changes directly in equity - - 9,282 — 592} - (152) 8,538
Total movements — - 9,282 (88) (592} 13,355) (139,043) (143,796)
Equity at the end of the period 65,080 502,818 19,346 2,308 5,004) 13,206 {227.730} 370,024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group Statement of Financial Position
at 1 January 2011

’B FINANGHAL STATEMENTS

2010 2009
Notes €000 £:000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 — 864
Cther intangible assets 15 907,455 922,513
Property, plant and eguipment 16 195,091 219,608
Available for sale investments 17 a70 870
Interasts in associates 18 12 30
Trade and other receivables 21 a5 16
Derivative financial instruments 23/32 15,757 15,794
1.119.320 1,159,795
Current assets
Assets held for sale 19 3,07 -
Inventories 20 4,531 3,293
Trade and other receivables 21 49,481 88,822
Cash and cash equivalents 11,112 12,279
68,195 104,384
Total assets 1.187.515 1,264,189
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 47,682 50,366
Tax liabilites 3.642 57,896
Retirement benefit obligation 24 4,444 5111
Borrowings 22 251 31,465
Neree 4 ive financial instruments 23/32 798 1,045
£5.747 145,883
Nen-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 399,736 398,090
Derivative financial instruments 23/32 3,513 5,806
Retirement benefit obligation 24 56,342 78,997
Deferred tax liabilities 25 252,955 261,454
Jrade and other payables 21 155 2,077
Long term provisions 26 6,880 1,858
719,581 748,282
Total liabilities 776.328 894,165
Net assets 411,187 370,024
Equity
Share capital 27 65.081 65.080
Share premium account 502,818 502,818
Share-based payments reserve 17.273 19,346
Revaluation reserve 2,245 2,308
Own shares {5,004) (5,004)
Hedging and translation reserve 10,412 13,206
Retained earnings {181,638} {227,730)
Total equity 411,187 370,024

The comparative numbers are as at 2 January 2010,

The financial statements of Johnston Press ple, registered number 15382, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 9 March

2011.
They were sig itspehatt by:
John Fry. Chiet utive Officer Stuart Paterson, Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integrgl part of these financial statemants.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Statement of Cash Flows

for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011

2010 2009
Notes £a00 £'000
Cash generated from operations 28 79,338 93,881
Income tax paid {9,750) (4,7135)
Net cash in from eperating activities 69,588 B9,166
Investing activities
Interest received 43 72
Dividends received from associated undertakings 25 52
Proceeds on disposa! of property, plant and equipment 5,097 785
Proceeds on disposal of titles - 131
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {4.522} (3,946)
Net cash received from/(used in) investing activities 643 {2,906)
Financing activities
Dividends paid {152) (152)
Interest paid {30,576} 27,841)
Interest paid on finance leases -— {13)
Repayments of bomowings (27,408} (42,851)
Arrangement fees on refinancing {294) (18,027)
Repayment of loan notes {17,498} -
Issue of shares 2 -
Increase/(decrease) in bank overdrafts 4,528 (7.232)
Net cash used in financing activities {71,398} (94,116)
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents {1,167} (7.856)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 12,279 20,135
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 11,112 12,279

The comparative pericd is for the 53 week period ended 2 January 2010.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011
1. General Intormation

Johnston Press plc is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act. The address of the registered office is given on the
back page. The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal actwities are set out in notes 5 and 6 and in the Business Review on pages 10 to 25.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary ecanomic environment in which tha Group
operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 3.

2. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current year. Their adoption has not had any significant impact
on the amounts reported in these financial statements but may impact the accounting for future transactions and arrangements.

IFRS 3 (2008} Business Cornbinations; These standards have introduced a number of changes in the accounting for business
combinations when acquiring a subsidiary or an associate.

IAS 27 (2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial Staterments; IFRS 3 {2008) has also introduced additional disclosure requirements for acquisitions.

IAS 28 (2008) Investments in Associates

The following amendments were made as part of Improvemnenis to IFRSs (2009):

Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment IFRS 2 has been amended. following the issue of IFRS 3 (2008), to confirm that the

contribution of a business on the formation of a joint venture and common control
transactions are not within the scope of IFRS 2.

Amendment to IAS 17 Leases IAS 17 has been amended such that it may be possible to classify a lease of land as
a finance tease if it meets the criteria for that classification under IAS 17,

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: IAS 39 has buen amended to state that options contracts betwee an 2ozuner an .

Recognition and Measurement a seling shareholder to buy or sell an acquirge that will result in a business combination

at a future acquisition date are not excluded from the scope of the standard,
Standards not affecting the reported results or the financial position:

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners The Interpretation provides guidance on when an entity should recognise a non-cash
dividend payable, how to measure the dividend payable and how to acaount for any
difterence between the carrying amount of the assets distributed and 1.3 cznying
amount of the dividend payable when the payable is settied.

IFRS 2 (amended) Group Cash-settled Share-based The amendment clarifies the accounting for share-based payment transactions
FPayment Transactions between group entities.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these financial
statements wers in issue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adoptad by the EU):

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IAS 24 (amended) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 (amended) Classification of Rights Issues

IFRIC 19 Extinguisting Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
IFRIC 14 (amended) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Reguirernent

Improvernents to IFRSs (May 2010)

The adoption of IFRS 9 which the Group plans to adopt for the period beginning on 1 January 2013 will impact both the measurement and disclosure of
financial instruments.

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the other standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in
future periods.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the European Union and
therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain properties and financial instrurnents. Historical
cost is genesally based on the tair vatue of the consideration given in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

3. Significant Accounting Policles {(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staterments incorperate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries)
made up to the Saturday closest to 31 December each year for either a 52 or 53 week period. Control is achiaved where the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Group Income Statement from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into ling with those used by
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consclidation,

Basis of preparation

The Group's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future developrnent, performance and financial position and commentary on the
Group’s financial results, its cash flows, liquidity requirements and borrowing facilities are set out in the Business Review on pages 10 to 25, In addition,
note 32 to the financial statements includes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial risk management
cbiectives, details of its financial instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to liquidity risk and credit risk.

The financial statements have been prepared for the 52 week pericd ended 1 January 2011. The 2009 information relates to the 53 week period ended
2 January 2010.

Going concern

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future, Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements. Further detail is ~ontained in the Business Review on pages 10 to 25.

Non-recurring items

Non-recurring items include significant exceptional transactions, the fundamental restructuring of businesses and material one-off items such as the
disposal of a significant property and impairment of intangibie and tangible assets together with the associated tax impact. The Company considers
such items are material to the Income Statement and their separate disclosure is necessary for an appropriate understanding of the Group's
financial perforrmance.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase methed. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values
at the date of exchange of assets given, liabilities incurred or assurmed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred. The acquiree's identifiable assets, labilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3, including publishing titles, are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date,
except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initialy measured at cost, heing the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s ientifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control, through participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint contral over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these Group financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Investments in associates are carried in the Group Statement of Financial Position at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of indivicgual investments.

Publishing titles

The Group's principal intangible assets are publishing titles. Tha Group does not capitalise internally generated goodwill or publishing titles. Titles
separately acquired after 1 January 1989 are stated at cost and titles owned by subsidiaries acquired after 1 January 1996 are recorded at Directors’
valuation at the date of acquisition. These publishing titles have no finite life and consequently are not amortised. The carrying value of the titles is
reviewed for impairmaent at least annually with testing undertaken, as outiined below for goodwill, to determine any diminution in the recoverable
amount below carrying value, The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use is based on the net present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital. Any impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. An impairment loss recognised for publishing titles can be reversed in a subsequent period if the discounted casbh flows justify
the treatment.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Goodwill

Goodwilt arlsing on consclidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subseguently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill which is recognised as an asset is reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss and cannot be subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwilt is allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of

the combination. Cash generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is

an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, second to the value of publishing titles and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Goodwil can also arise as an equal and opposite offset to deferred tax on publishing titles acquired after 1 January 2005 under the technical provisions
of 1AS 12,

On disposal of a subsidiary or associate, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition ta IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP valuation subject to being tested for
impairment at that date. Goodwill written off 1o reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not included in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on disposal.

Revenus recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recelvable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in
the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.

Advertising revenue is recognised on publication and circulation revenue is recognics J at the point of sale. Printing revenue is recognised when the
service is provided.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates
(its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group company are
expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the consoclidated financial staterments.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign
curiencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each period end, monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the close of business on the last working day of the period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when tha fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the
period. Exchange differences arising on the retransiation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates prevalling on the period end date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's hadging and translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment balances are shown at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. In certain cases, the amounts of
previous revaluations of properties conducted in 1996 or 1997 or the fair value of the property at the date of the acquisition by the Group have been
treated as the deemed cost on transition te IFRSs. Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, excluding land, at varying rates
calculated to write-off cost over the useful lives. The principal rates employed are:

Heritable and freehold property {excluding land) 2.5% on written down value

Leasehold land and buildfings equal annual instalments over lease term

Web offset presses {excluding press components) 5% straight line basis

Mailroom equipment 6.67% straight line basis

Pre-press systems 20% straight line basis

Other plant and machinery 6.67%, 10%, 20%, 25% and 33% straight line basis
Motor vehicles 25% straight line basis
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 Januwary 2011 continued

3. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Assets held for sale
Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale. Where the sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one yaar from the date of classification,
the assets are shown as current and when the sale is anticipated to complete after one year from date of cfassification the assets are shown as non-
current.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the fower of cost and net realisable value. Cost incurred in bringing materials to thelr present location and condition comprises;
(a) raw materials and goods for resale at purchase cost on a first-in first-out basis; and (b) work in progress at cost of direct materials, labour and
certain overheads. Net realisable value comprises selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's Statement of Financial Position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets
[nvestrnents are recognised and derecognised on the trade date in accordance with the terms of the purchase or sale contract and are initiatty
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs.

Avallable for sale financial assets

Listad and unlisted investments are shown as available for sale and ars stated at fair value. Fair value of listed investments is determined with
refgrence {0 quoted market prices. Fair value of unlisted investments is determined by the Directors. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised directly in equity, with the excep*'cn of impairment losses which are recognised direcths in the ‘~ror 1 Statement., Where the .
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impai.ed, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognizaZi i~ gquity is ir.ofuded in the Income
Statement for the period.

Dividends on available for sale equity investments are recognised in the Income Statement when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest, They are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amaounts. An allowance for Impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on praviorls experience, is evidence of a reduction
in the recoverability of the cash flows. Other trade receivables are provided for on an individual basis where there is evidence thas an amount i3 no
longer recoverabla.

impainment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each period end date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occumred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been impacted. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Changes in the carrying value
of this allowance arg recognised in the Income Statement.

Derivative tinancial instruments

The Group's activities and funding structure give rise to some exposure to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates. The Group enters into a number of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to these risks, including interest rate swaps, cross
currancy swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts. Further detaiis of derivative financial instruments are given in note 32.

The Group re-measures each derivative at its fair value at the period end date with the resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss
immediately. All such changes in the fair value of the Group's derivatives are shown in a separate column on the face of the Group Income Staterment.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability.
A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not
expected to be realised or settled within 12 months, Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. Signiticant Accounting Palicies (continued)

Financial fiabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordances with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

On 28 August 2009, the Company issued share warrants over 5% of its issued share capital to lenders as part of the refinancing package agreed on
that date. The warrant instruments will be settled by the Company delivering a fixed number of ordinary shares and receiving a fixed amount of cash in
return and so qualify as equity under IAS 39. The Binomial Cption pricing model was used to assess the fair value of the warrants issued and the full
cost was recognised as a non-recurring finance cost in the Income Statement in the prior period.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans and bank overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premia payable
on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to the Income Statement using the effective interest method and are added to the
carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise. Fees incurred in negotiating borrowings are
held on the Statement of Financial Position and amortised to the Income Statermnent over the term of the underlying debt.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Whe:e the Group is a lessor, rental income from operating leases is recognised on a stra.yht-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Where the Group leases a property but is no longer using the premises, full provision is made for the rentals payable over the remaining term of the
lease {up to any break clauses whera relevant).

Development grants

Development grants for revenue expenditure are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs and are
deducted in reporting the related expense. Grants relating to property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred income and released to the Income
Statement over the expected useful lives of the related assets.

Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/{loss) is stated after charging restructuring or other nen-recurring costs but before investment income, other finance income, finance
¢osts and the share of the results of assogiates.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Income Statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax based values used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the termporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabfiities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the Income Statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.

On transition to IFRS, a deferred tax liability was recorded in respect of publishing tities and properties that do not qualify for any tax allowances that
were acquired through business combinations. Given that the Group elected, under IFRS 1, not to restate pre-transition business combinations under
IFRS 3, this pre-transition deferred tax element was charged against retained earnings. Any such fair valua on future business combinations will form
part of the goodwill on acquisition and both the goodwill and related deferred tax liability will be included in any impairment test in relation to the
relevant cash generating unit.

Deferred tax assets and {iabilities are offset when the relevant requirements of IAS 12 are satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week peniod ended 1 January 2011 continued

3. Signiticant Accounting Policies {continued)

Retirement bensfit costs
The Group provides pensions to employees through various schemes.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the Income Statement as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to
the industry-wide retirement benefit schemes in the Republic of Irefand are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Group's
obligations under the schemes are equivalent {o those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuariat
valuations being carried out at each period end date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They are
recognised outside the Income Statement and presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Past service cost is recognised immediately
to the extent that the benelfits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of schema assets. Any asset resulting from this calcutation is imited to
past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme,

Share-based paymentis

The Group issues equity settied share-based benefits to certain employees. The Group has elected to apply IFRS 2 1o all share-based awards and
options granted post 7 November 2002 but not vested at 31 December 2004. These share-based payments are meastired at their fair valug at the
date of grant and the fair value of share options is expensed to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Fair value is

measured by use of the Black-Scholes model, as amended to take account of the Directors® best estimate of probable share vesting and exercise.

4, Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management has made the following ju.gements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements {apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Deferred tax balances on publishing titles and properties not eligible for tax allowances
Defarred tax amounting to £244,193,000 at 1 January 2011 (2 January 2010: £257,372,000), has been provided pursuant 1o 1AS 12 (Income Taxes)
on the values of the publishing titles in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position.

Management has considered it appropriate to provide this entire deferred tax balance in order to comply with the technical requirements of IAS 12
desgpite the fact that management cannot foresee any future circumsiances in which such a {ax liability would arise. If a decision was taken to dispose
of any of the assets concerned, it is unlikely that the titles would be sold separately from the legal entities that own the assets. As such, management
is confident that this tax provision will never be required to be paid.

Valuation of publishing titles on acquisition

The Group's policies require that a fair value at the date of acquisition be attributed to the publishing titles owned by each acquirad entity. The
Group's management uses its judgement to determine the fair value attributable to each acquired publishing title taking into account the consideration
paid, the earnings history and potential of the title, any recent similar transactions, industry statistics such as average earnings multiples and any
other relevant factors.

Provisions for anerous leases

Where the Group exits a rented property, an estimatea of the anticipated total future cost payable under the terms of operating lease, including rentats,
rates and other related expenses, is charged to the Income Statement at the point of exit. Where there is a break clause in the contract, rentals are
provided for up to that point. In addition, an estimate is made of the likelihood of sub letting the premises and any rentals that would be receivable from
a sub tenant. Where receipt of sub lease rentals is considered reasonable, these amounts are deducted from the rentals payable by the Group under
the lease and provision charged for the net amount.

Valuation of share-based payments

The Group estimates the expected value of equity-settled share-based payments and this is charged through the Income Statement over the vasting
periods of the relevant payments. The cost is estimated using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The Black-Scholes calculations are based on a
number of assumptions that are set out in note 30 and are amended to take account of estimated levels of share vesting and exercise. This method of
estimating tha value of the share-based payments is intended to ensure that the actual value transferred to employees is provided in the share-based
payments reserve by the time the payments are made.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty {(continugd}

Valuation of warrants issued

On 28 August 2009, the Company issued share warrants over 5% of its issued share capital to lenders as part of the refinancing package agreed on
that date. The cost of these warrants has been assessed using the Binomial Opticn Pricing model and charged through the Income Statement as a
financing cost. As the warrants ¢an be exercised at any time over the five year period from the date of issue, this methad estimates the present cost to
the Company for praviding the shares in the future. The Binomial Option Pricing calculations are based on a number of inputs including exercise price,
current share price, rate of return, stock volatiity and expected dividend yields. Managament has made a number of judgements in assessing a number
of these inputs based on historic experience, and calculated a cost of £9,390,000 which was recognised as a nen-recurring finance cost in the Group
income Staternent in 2009.

Keay sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concarning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the period end date that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amountis of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impzairment of goodwill and publishing titles

Determining whether goodwill or publishing titles are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units {CGUs) to which
these assets are allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to identify appropriate CGUSs, to estimate the future cash flows expected

to arise from each CGU and a suitable discount rate in order o calcuate present value. The Group has identified its CGUs basad on the saven
geographic regions in which it operates. This is considered to be the lowest level at which cash inflows generated are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other groups of assets and has been consistently applied in the current and prior periods. An impairment loss was identified in 2009 and
provided for in the financial statements with a net impairment loss of £13,086,000 identified in 2010. The goodwill of £864,000 at 2 January 2010 has
been iully written off in the peried with the balance of the impairment, being a net charge of £12,222,000, written off publishing titles. The carrying value
of publishing titles at 1 January 2011 was £807,455,000 (2009: £922,513,000). Details of the mpairment raviews that the Group performs are provided
in note 15.

Valuation of pension liabilities

The Group records in itg Statement of Financial Position a lability equivalent tn the deficit on ' 3 Group's defined benefit pension schemes. This Kahility
is determined with advicz from the Group's actuanial advisers each year anc! 23~ firctuaie bal.«d on a number of factors, some of which are outy i e
contiol of management. The main factors that can impact the valuation incluchs.

the discount rate used to discount future liabiities back to the present date, determined sach year from the yield on corporate bonds
the actual returns on investments experienced as compared to the expected rates used in the previous vafuation

the actual rates of salary and pension increase as compared to the expected rates used in the previous valuaticn

the forecast inflation rate experienced as compared to the expected rates used in the previous valuation

mortality assurnptions.

LN I I

Details of the assumptions used to determine the liability at 1 January 2011 are set out in note 24.

Bad debt allowance

The trade receivables balance recorded in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position comprises a large nurnber of relatively small balances. An
allowance is made for the estimated irrecoverable amounts from debtors and this is determined by reference to nast default experience. Further details
are shown in note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

5. Business Segments

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer for the purpose of resource allocation and assessmant of segment performance is focussed on the
two areas of Newspaper Publishing (in print and online) and Contract Printing. Geographical segments are not presented as the primary segment is the

UK which is greater than 90% of Group activities.
6. Segment Information

a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment:

Newspaper Contract Newspaper Contract

publishing printing Eliminations Group  publishing printing  Eliminations Group
2010 2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009 2009
£'000 £'000 E'00D £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000

Reavenue
External sales 369,344 28,740 - 398,084 395,084 32,702 - 427,996
" Inter-segment sales” - 60,303 (60,303) - - 67,305 (67.305) -
Total revenue 369,344 89,043 {60.303} 398,084 395,084 100,007 {67,305} 427,996

Result

Segment result before non-recurring items 66,862 5,129 - 71,99 61,590 10,194 — 71,784
Non-recurring items (12,694) (4,439} - {17,133) {138,432) (23,966) - (162,398)
Net segment result 54,168 £eQ - 54,858 {76,842 {13,772 - (90,614)
Cost of issuing warrants - non-recurring - {9,380)
Investment income a3 72
Net finance income on pension assets/liabilities 373 268
IAS 21/39 adjustments 3,166 14,672
Finance costs (41,921} (28,805)
Share of results of associates 10 22
Profit/flass) before tax 16,529 {113,775)
Tax 19,535 26,517
Profit/(less) after tax 36,064 (87.258)

* inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment result represents the
prafitifloss) earned by each segment without allogation of the share of results of assodiates, investment income, finance costs (including in redation to
pension assets and labilities) and income tax expense. This is the measurs reported to the Group’s Chiet Executive Officer for the purpose of resource

allocation and agsessment of segment performance,
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b) Segment assets
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2010 2009

£000 £000
Assetls
Newspaper publishing 1.024,403 1080533
Contract printing 146,385 166,892
Total segment assets 1,170,788 1,247,425
Unallocated assets 16,727 16,764
Consolidated total assets 1,187,515 1,264,189

For the purposes of monitaring segment performance and allocating resources between sagments, the Group’s Chief Executive Officer monitors the
tangible, intangible and financial assets attributable to each segment. All assets are allocated to reportable segments with the exception of available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments.

¢} Other segment information

Newspaper Contract Newspaper Contract
publishing printing Group publishing printing Group
2010 2010 =010 2009 2009 2009
£°000 8000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'o00
Additions to property, plant and eguipment 3,794 620 4,414 2172 235 2,407
Depreciation expense (inc. nen-recurring items) 8,988 13,234 22,222 12,432 29,550 41,982
Nat impairment of intangibles 13,086 - 13,086 126,000 - 126,000
7. Non-Recurring items
2010 2009
£000 £'000
Non-recurring operating items:
Impairment of intangible assets {note 15) 13.086 126,000
Gain on sale of assets {1,350) —
Rastructuring costs of existing business” 9,238 14,573
Write down of value of presses in existing businesses 2.459 18,950
Impairment of unlisted investments R 1,742
Costs related to aborted disposal of Republic of Ireland businesses - 531
Write down of assets relating to disposed title - 602
Curtailment gain regarding pension scheme (note 24} {6.300) -
Total non-recurting operating items 17,133 162,398
Non-recurring finance costs:
Warrants issued - 9,390
Total non-recurring items 17.133 171,788

* The provision of £1.5 million for the remaining term of the leased property in Limerick following the closure of that operation is included here.

The balance relates to redundancy costs.

In addition to these non-recurring items, the Group has released certain tax provisions {as detalled on page 21} in the year totalling £13.6 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

8, Operating Profit/{Loss)

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Operating profit/loss) is shown after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 16) 19,763 23,032
Non-recurring write down of value of presses 2,459 18,950
Prefit on disposal of property, plant and equipment:
Operating disposals {3886) (259)
Nonr-recurring disposals {1,350) -
Movement in allowance for doubtful debts (note 21) {577) {1,715)
Redundancy costs 7.683 13,333
Staff costs [note 9) 154.062 171,124
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit services
Group 100 100
Subsidiaries 244 230
Operating lease charges:
Plant and machinery 496 345
Other 5,367 5,455
Net foreign exchange {gains)/losses {44) 12
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 41,243 49,8564
Staft costs shown above include £2,814,000 (2009; £2,866,000) relating to remuneration of Directors,
In addition 1o the auditors’ remuneration shown above, the auditors received the following fees for non audit services.
2010 2009 |
el £'000 ‘
|
Review of Interim Financial Staternents 35 35 |
Audit of circulation and distribution figures of the Group's newspaper titles - 27 ‘
Taxation compliance 85 88
Taxation advisory 34 83 ‘
154 231 '

All non-audit servicas were approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee considers that these non-audit services nave not impacted the |
independence of the audit process.

In addition, an amount of £17,800 {2009: £22,000) was paid to the external auditors for the audit of the Group's pension scheme.,

9. Employees

The average monthly number of employees, including Executive Directors, was:

2010 2009
No. No.
Editorial and photographic 1.983 2,222
Sales and distribution 2,850 2,932
Production 79 1,029
Administration 575 652
6,209 6,835
£:000 £'000

Staff costs:
Wages and salaries 135,771 150,349
Social security costs 12,896 14,104
Other pension costs (note 24) 7,468 6,779
Cost of share-based awards (note 30) {2,073) (108)
154,062 171,124

Full details of the Cirectors’ emotuments, pension benefits and share options are included in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 51 to 53.
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2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Income from avaitable for sale investments 1 3
Interest receivable 42 69
43 72
11. Finance Costs
2010 2009
£000 £'000
a) Net finance income on pension assets/liabilities
Interest on pensicn liabilities 24,979 20,941
Expected return on pension assets {25,352} {21,209)
{373) (268}
b} Finance costs
Interest on bank overdrafis and loans 30,194 24,346
Payment-in-kind interest accrual 6.441% 2,193
Amortisation of term debt issue costs 5,286 2,266
Non-recurring cost of issuing sharm warrants - 9,380
41,921 38,195

c) 1AS 21/39 items

Following the de-designation of our derivative financial instruments in the prior pericd, all movemnents in their fair value are now recorded in the Income
Statement. In the current pariod, this movement was a cradit of £2.6 million (2009: charge of £12.3 million).

The retranslation of our toreign denominated debt at the period and resulted in a credit of £0.6 million {2009: £27.0 million) being recorded in the Income
Statement. The retransiation of the Euro denominated publishing titles is shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

12, Tax
2010 2009
£7000 £'000
Current tax
Charge for the year £,903 6389
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (13,808) -
(7,903) 6,389
Deferred tax {note 25)
Chargef{credit) for tha year 657 (32,906)
Adjustment in respect of prior pericds 89 -
Deferred tax adjustmen relating to the impairment of publishing tittes {3,471} -
Credit relating to reduction in deferred tax rate to 27% {8.907) -
(11,632 {32,906)
Total tax credit for the year (18,535) {26.517)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 28.0% (2009: 28.0%} of the estimated assessable profit/foss) for the period. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated

at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

12. Tax {continued)

The tax credit for the period can be reconciled to the prafit/(toss) per the Incoma Statement as follows:

2010 2009
£°000 % £'000 %
Profit/foss) befora tax 16,528 100.0 {(113,775) 100.0
Tax at 28% (2009: 28%) 4,628 28.0 {31,857) (28.0)
Tax effect of share of results of associate {3) — (6) -
Tax effect of income)/expenses that are
{non-taxable)/deductible in determining taxable profit {1,866) {11.3) 5,290 4.7
Tax effect of investment income 7 —_ 15 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 323 2.0 383 0.3
Adjustment in respect of prior years 3nn (83.0) (715) {0.6)
Losses carried back e — 373 0.3
Effect of reduction in deferred tax rate to 27% {8,907} (53.9) — —_
Tax credit for the period and effective rate (19,535} {118.2) (26.517) (23.3)
13, Dividends
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Amouits recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Final dividend for the period ended 2 January 2010 of nil {2008: nif) - -
Prefarence Dividends
13.75% Cumutative Preference Shares 104 104
13.75% “A" Preference Shares 48 48
152 152
No dividend is to be recommended to sharehoiders at the Annual General Meeting making a total for 2010 of £nil (2009: nil}.
14. Eamings per Share
The calculation of sarnings per share is based on tha following profits/flosses) and weighted average number of shares:
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Earnings
Profit/loss) for the period 38,064 (87.258)
Preference dividend (152) (152)
Earnings for the purpeses of basic and diluted earnings per share 3532 {87.,410)
Non-recurring and IAS 21/39 items (after tax) {12,434) 122,804
Earnings for the purposes of underlying earnings per share 23,478 35,394
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14, Eamings per Share {continued)

2010 2009
No. of shares  No. of shares

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic sarnings per share 639.743,876 639,739,926
Effect of ditutive potential ordinary shares:

- warrants 15,708,618 5,680,278
Number of shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share 655,452,493 645,420,204
Earnings per share {p)

Basic 5.61 (13.66)
Undertying 3.67 5.53
Diluted - see below 5.48 (13.66)

Undertying figures are presented to show the effect of excluding non-recurring and I1AS 21/39 items from earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share are presented when a company coutd be called upon to issue shares that would decrease net profit or increase loss per share.
No adjustment was made in 2009 to the diluted loss per share as the dilution effect of the wamants was to decrease the loss per share.

As explained in note 27, the preference shares qualify as equity under IAS 32. In line with IAS 33, the preference dividend and the number of preference
shares are excluded from the calculation of earnings per share.

15. Goodwill and Other intangibie Arvats

Publishing
Goodwilt Titles
£000 £'000
Cost
Opening balance 145,254 1,312,979
Exchange movements — (2.8386)
Closing balance 145,254 1,310.143
Accumulated impainment losses
Opening balanca {144,390} (390 ,466)
Impairment losses for the pericd (864) (42,963}
Reversal of past impairment — 30,741
Closing balance {145.254) (402,688)
Carrying amount
Closing balance — 907.455
Opening balance 864 922,513

The exchange movement above reflects the impact of the exchange rate on the valuation of publishing titles denominated in Euros at the period end date.
it is partially offset by a decrease in the euro bormowings.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, 1o the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

15, Goodwill and Qther Intangible Assets (continued)

Tha canying value of goodwil and publishing titles by business segment is as follows:

Gooawill Publishing titles
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Publishing - 864 907,455 922,613
Contract printing - - - -
Total - 864 907,455 922,513

The Publishing segment comprises 7 cash generating units (CGUs). The Contract Printing segment comprises 1 CGU. The 7 CGUs within the Publishing
segment are based around the geographies in which the Group operates.

The Group tests gooawill and publishing titles for impairment annuatty, or more frequentty if there are indications that they might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the peried. Management estimates discount
rates using pre-iax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the risks specific to the CGUSs. Following the reduction in
the Group's net debt during the year and the resultant decrease in margins, there has been a decrease in the cost of capital. Therefore the discount rate
applied to future cash flows has decreased from 9.59% in 2009 to 8.94% in 2010. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next three years and
extranpolat:s cash flows for 20 years from the date of testing based on an estimeed annual growth rate of 1.0%. A discounted residual value of 5 tmes e
final year's cashflow is included in the forecast. The present value of the cash flows are then compared to the carrying value of the asset.

The total net impairment charge of £13.1 million recorded in the period comprises further impairment of £43.0 million primarily in the North and South
of England, partially offset by the reversal of past impairment in Scotland and the Northwest of England. The net charge has arisen as a result of the
advertising trends in the last quarter of 2010 continuing into the start of 2011 and the increase in newsprint costs.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of each CGUs carrying value. A decrease in the long-term growth rate of

0.5% would result in a turther impairment for the Group of approximately £29 million, and an increase in the discount rate of 0.5% would result in
a further impairment of around €41 million.
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16. Praperty, Plant and Equipment
Freehold tand Leasehold Plant and Motor
and buildings buildings machinery vehicles Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 27 Dacember 2008 105,396 5,278 314,408 18,286 443,368
Additions 240 116 1,706 345 2,407
Cisposals (194) {132) (22,343) {1,833) (24,502)
Exchange differences 51) (B4) (688) {19) (822)
At 2 January 2010 105,391 5,198 293,083 16,779 420,451
Reclassified to assets held for sale at start of period {9,437) - (34.327) - (43,764)
Additions 45 — 4,282 87 4,414
Disposals (86) (15} (31,329 {2,854) (34,284)
Exchange differences (32) (3G} (401) (28) (500)
Transferred to assets held for sale during the period - (762) {4.076) - 4,838)
At 1 January 2011 95,881 4,382 227,232 13,984 341,479
Depreciation
At 27 Decemnbper 2008 10,198 1,600 158,631 12,441 182,870
Qisposals 99) (120) (22,011) {1,699 (23,929)
Charge for the period 7.516 175 12,774 2,567 23,032
Non-recurring write down in period - .- ©8,950 — 18,950
Exchange differences 1] o (65) (1 (80)
At 2 January 2010 17,608 1,648 168,279 13,308 200,843
Reclassified to assets held for sale at start of pericd {6.624) - (31,544} - (38,168)
Cisposals {40) (15) {31,194) {2.805) {34,054)
Charge for the period 1,925 744 15,305 1,789 18,763
Non-recurring writa down in period - - 2,459 - 2,459
Exchange differences 52) (N 311 {18) (388)
Transferred to assets held for sale during the period - (762) (3,305) - (4.067)
At 1 January 2011 12,817 1,608 119.689 12,274 146,388
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 83,064 2,774 107,543 1,710 195,09
At 2 January 2010 87,783 3,550 124,804 3,471 219,608
Assets in the course of construction
There were no assets in the course of construction at the start or end of the period.
17, Avaitable for Sale Investments
The Group's avallable for sale investments are:
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Listed investments at fair value 2 2
Unlisted investments
Cost 4,494 4,494
Provision for impairment (3.5286) (3,526)
Unlisted investments carrying amount 568 968
Total investments 970 970
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week pericd ended 1 January 2011 continued

18. Interests in Associates

The Group's associated undertakings at the period end are:

Place of  Proportion of Proportion Method of
incorporation ownership of vating accounting
Name and operation interest power held  for investment
Classified Pericdicals Ltd England 50% 50% Equity method
The aggregate amounts relating to associates are:
2010 2009
£°000 £'000
Total assets 46 67
Total liabilities (22) (10)
Revenues 42 76
Profit 10 22
18. Assets Held for Sale
Freehold land Leasehold Plant and
and buildings buildings machinery Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
L
At 2 January 2010 - — -- -
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment at start of period 9,437 - 34,327 43,764
Disposals 722) — {34,219) (34,941)
Transterred from property, plant and equipment during period — 762 4,076 4,838
Exchange differences (30) - (115) (145}
At January 2011 8.685 762 4,068 13616
Cepreciation
At 2 January 2010 - - - -
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment at start of period 6,624 - 31,544 38,168
Disposals (180) - (31,640) (31,820
Transferred from property, plant and equipment during period — 762 3.305 4,067
Exchange differences 17 — 13 30
At 1 Jdanuary 2011 6,461 762 3,222 10,445
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 2,224 - 847 3.071
Al 2 January 2010 — - - -
20. Inventories
010 2009
£'000 £'000
Raw materials 453 3,144
Goods for resale - 149
4,531 3,293
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21. Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Trade and other receivables

2010 2009
£000 £000
Curreni:
Trade receivables 46,408 49,505
Allowance for doubtfut debts {7,478} {8,055)
38,930 41,450
Prepayments 4,610 4,828
Other debtors {see note below) 5,941 42177
Corporation tax recoverable - 367
Total current trade and other receivables 49,481 88,822
Non-current:
Trade receivables 35 16

Trade receivables
The average credit period taken on sales is 52 days {2009: 59 days). No interest is charged on trade receivables. The Group has provided for estimated
irrecoverable amounts in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 3.

Before accepting any new credit customer, the Group obtains a credit check from an external agency to assess the potential customer’s credit quality

and then defines credit terms and limits on a by-customer basis. These credit terms are reviewed regularly, In the casr of one-off customers or low value
purchases, pra-payment for the goods is required under the Group’s policy. The Group reviews trade receivables past uue but not impaired on a regular
basis and considers, based on past experience, that the credit quality of these amounts at the period end date has not deteriorated since the transaction
was entered into and so considers the amounts recoverable. Regular contact is maintained with all such customers and, where necessary, payment plans
are in place to further reduge the risk of default on the receivable.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £19.9 million {2009: £17.0 milion) which are past due at the
reporting date but for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the Group believes that the
amounts are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any security over these balances. The weighted average age of these receivables {past due} is
27 days (2009: 32 days).

Ageing of past due but not impaired trade receivables

2010 2009

£°000 £'000
0 - 30 days 13,905 11,865
30 - 60 days 4,745 2477
60 - 90 days 630 656
90+ days 621 1,976
Total 19,901 16,974
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Balance at the start of the year 8,055 9,770
Decrease in the allowance recognised in the Income Statement (note 8} [577) (1.715)
Batance at the end of the year 7,478 8.055
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

21. Other Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was
initially granted up to the balance sheet date. The concentration of cradit risk is limited due 10 the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly,
the Directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the aflowance for doubtful debts.

Ageing of impaired trade receivables o
Impaired frade receivables are those that have besn provided for under the Group's bad debt provisioning policy, as described in the accounting policy in
nota 3. The ageing of impaired trade receivables is shown below.,

2010 2008

€000 £'000

0 - 30 days 412 325

80 90 dare 384 S
- ays

90+ days 6,337 6,692

Total 7.478 8,065

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables at the balance sheet date approximates their fair value.

Other debtors

As previously reported, the Group had recorded a provision {originally for £80.0 million), with an equal and opposite offset in debtors to reflect the full tax
indemnity received, regarding a tax assessment against one of the RIM companies acquired by the Group in 2002 relating to the pricr sale of the RIM
companies by United Business Media plc (UBM) in 1998.

In March 2010, UBM anncunced rasolution of their dispute with HMRC and we agreed th~t UBM and HMRC would setile the matter directly with no flow
of furids through the Group. The provision and related debtor were reduced to the sum ayured batween UBM and HMRC as payable (£36.4 million) o
2 January 2010 and the remaining balances have now been reversed in full in the curent year.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents totalling £11,112,000 (2009: £12,279,000) comprise cash held by the Group and shart-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Trade and other payables

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Current;
Trade creditors and accruals 33,458 45,729
Cther creditors 14,224 4,637
Tota! current trade and other payables 47,682 50,366
Non-cument:
Trade and cther creditors 155 2,077

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for rade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for trade
purchases is 23 days (2009: 29 days). The Group has financial risk managerment policies in place to ensure all payables are paid within the agreed credit tenms.

During the year, the Hability relating to onerous leases and dilapidations was reclassified to provisions (note 26).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value.

22. Borrowings

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Bank overdrafts 5,550 1.022
Bank loans - sterling denominated 234,060 233,746
Bank loans - euro denominated 12,848 43,193
2003 Private placement loan notes 86,626 96,238
2006 Private placement loan notes 61,542 67,428
Term debt Issue costs {9,273) (14.265)
Payment-in-kind interest accrual 8,634 2193
Total bomowings 399,987 429,555
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22. Borrowings {continued)

The borrowings are disclosed in the financial statements as:

QE FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS

2010 2009
£000 £'000
Current borrowings 251 31,485
Non-current borrowings 399,736 398,090
349,967 429,555
The Group's net debt is:
Gross borrowings as above 399,987 429,656
Cash and cash equivalents 11,113 (12,279)
Impact of cumency hedge contracted rates (11,481) {8.483)
Net debt at currency hedge contracted rates 377,394 407,793
Term debt issue costs 9,273 14,265
Net debt excluding term debt issue costs 386,667 422,058
Analysis of borrowings by currency:
At 2010 period end
Total Sterling Euros US Dollars
£°00) £000 £'000 £'000
Bank gverdrafts 5,550 5,650 - —
Bank loans 246,908 234,060 12,848 -
2003 Private placement lcan notes 86,626 40,957 - 45,669
2006 Private placement loan notes 61,542 - - 61,542
Term debt issue costs 9,273 {9,273) - —
Payment-in-kind interest accrual 8,634 6,413 — 2,221
399,987 277,707 12,848 109,432
At 2009 period end
Bank overdrafts 1,022 1,022 - —
Bank loans 276,939 233,746 43,193 -
2003 Private placement loan notes 96,238 46,200 - 50,038
2006 Private placement loan notes 67,428 - - 67,428
Term debt issue costs (14,265) {14,265) - —
Payment-in-kind interest accrual 2,193 2,183 — —
429,555 268,896 43,193 117,466

Credit facilities

The Group has credit facilities with bank lenders and private placement loan note holders in place until 30 September 2012. The facility is secured (see
note 29) and share warrants over 5% of the Company's share capital have been issued to tha lenders and note holders. Interest rates payable on all

facilties are based on leverage multiples and reduce based on agreed ratchets relating to the Group's ratio of net debt 1o EBITDA,

Barnk loans

The Group has credis facilities with a number of banks. The total facility is £287.2 million (2009: £324,0 milion) of which £40.3 million is unutiised at the
palance sheet date (2009: £47.1 million}. The credit facilties are provided under two separate tranchas as detailed below.

Facility A

Facility A is a revalving credit facility of £55.0 million, available to be drawn down up to 30 September 2012. This facility includes a bank overdraft facility of
£10.0 million {2009: £10.0 million). The loans can be drawn down on a one, two or three monthly basis. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus a maximum cash
margin of 4,15% (2009: 4.15%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

22. Borrowings (continued)

Faciity 8
Facility B is a term Joan facility of £232.2 million (2009: £269.0 millicn), with full repayrment due on 30 Septernber 2012, Interest is payable quarterly at
LIBOR plus a maximum cash margin of 4.15% (2009; 4.15%).

Under the terms of the finance agreement, committed reductions of the faciities were due in 6 monthly intervals from 30 June 2010. However the
June 2010 and December 2010 reductions were made early on 30 April 2010 and the June 2011 and December 2011 reductions were brought forwand
to 30 Septernber 2010. Only the June 2012 facility reduction remains as scheduled.

Hedging

In accordance with the credit agreements in place, the Group hedges a portion of the bank loans via interest rate swaps exchanging floating rate interest
for fixed rate interest, At the balance sheet date, borrowings of £245.0 million (2009: £200.0 milion} were arranged at fixed rates and expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Further details on all of the Group's derivative instruments can be found in nete 32.

Private ptacemeant loan notes
The Group has total private placement koan notes of £41.0 milion and $165.9 milion. The notes are repayabla in full on 30 September 201 2. Interest is
payable guarterly at fixed coupon rates up to 9.45% depending on covenants.

As noted with Facility B. committed reductions of the faclities were due in 6 monthly intervals from 30 June 2010, However all of the 2010 and 2011
reductions were made during 2010, leaving only the June 2012 facility reduction due.

2003 Private placement loan notes
The 2003 Private placement loan notes are made up of:

= £41,0 milion at a coupon rate of up to 9.45% (2009: £46.2 milion at a coupon rate of up to 9.45%); and

*  $70.7 milion at a coupon rate of up to 8.90% (2009: $79.7 milion at a coupon rate of up '© 8.90%).

Of the $70.7 million, $35.7 milkon has been swapped into floating sterling of £22.6 milion and $35.0 milllion has been swapped into fixed sterling of

£22.2 million to hedge the Group's exposure to US dollar interest rates (2009: $44.7 million into floating sterling of £28,3 milion and $35.0 million into fixed
sterding of £22.2 million).

2006 Private placement loan notes
The 2006 Private placement loan notes are made up of:

*  533.8 million at a coupon rate of up to 9.33% (2009: $38.1 million at a coupon rate of up to 9.33%); and
«  3$61.4 million at a coupon rate of up to 9.43%. (2009: $69.3 million at a coupon rate of up to 9.43%}.

The total amount of $85.2 million has been swapped back into fixed sterling of £32.9 million (2009: £37.1 million) and floating sterling of £18.1 million
(2009: £20.4 million), again to hedge the Group's exposure to US dollar interest rates.

Payment-in-kind interest

In additicn ta the cash margin payable on the bank facilities and private placement lcan notes, a payment-in-kind (PIK) margin accumnulates and is payable
at the end of the facility. This margin increases throughout the period of the tacility. The PIK margin is eliminated if £85.0 million is repaid on the {acilities
axcluding the scheduted facility reductions. The PIK accrues at a margin of between 1.35% and 3.05%.

Interest rates:
The weighted average interest rates paid over the course of the year, were as {ollows:

2010 2009

%o %

Bank overdrafts 4.6 20
Bank loans 10.7 6.0
2003 Private placement loan notes 8.9 5.8
2006 Private placement loan notes 8.7 5.6
10,0 58

The increase in the weighted average interest rates is due to the interest rates under the Group’s credit facilities being effective for the full year in 2010.
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23. Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives that are carried at fair value are as follows:

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Interest rate swaps - current liability (7 28) (1,045)
Interest rate swaps - non-current liability {3.513) (5,806)
Cross currency swaps - non-current asset 15,787 15,794
11,516 8,943

24. Retirement Benefit Obligation
Throughout 2010 the Group operated the Johnston Press Pension Plan (JPPP), together with the following schemes:
* A defined contribution scheme for the Republic of Ireland, the Johnston Press {Irefand) Pension Scheme.

+  Two ROl industry-wide final salary schemes and a third final salary scheme for a small number of employees in Limerick. There are no additional
financial implications to the Group if these schemes are terminated. Consequently, the Group's obligations to these schemes is included in Long Term
Provisions and the details shown below exclude these schemes.

The JPPP is in two parts, a defined contribution scheme and a defined benefit scheme. The latter is closed to new members and was closed to future
accrual on 30 June 2010. A curtailment credit of £6.3 milllon has been recognised in the Group Income Statement in the current year. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group. The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of a triennial valuation using the
projected unit method. The contributions are fixed annuei amounts and a percentage of salary with the intention of eliminating t* «. deficit within 10 years
from the date of the last triennial valuation as at 31 December 2007. The next triennial valuation is dus as at 31 December 201{. As the defined benefit
saction has been closed to new members for a considerable period the last active member is scheduled to retire in 35 years with, at current mortality
assumpticns, the last pension paid in 55 years. On a discounted basis the duration of the pension liabilities is circa 20 years. The financial information
provided below relates to the defined benefit element of the JPPP.

The composition of the trustees of the JPPP is made up of an independent Chairman., a number of member nominated {by ballot) trustees and several
Company appointed trustees. Half of the trustees are nominated by members of the JPPP, both current and past employees. The trustees appoint
their own advisers and administrators of the Plan. Discussions take place with the Executive Directors of the Company to agree matters such as the
contribution rates.

The defined contribution schemes provide for employee contributions between 2-6% dependent on age and position in the Group, with higher
contributions from the Group. in addition, the Group bears the majority of the administration costs and also iife cover.

The pension cost charged to the Income Statement was as follows:

20149 2009
£'000 £'000
Defined benefit schemes 1.064 1,070
Defined contribution schemes and Irish schemes 5,404 5,709
7,458 6,779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

24. Relirement Benedit Obligation {continuad)

Major assumptions:

2010 2009
£°000 £'000
Discount rate 5.4% 5.7%
Expected return on scheme assets 6.8% 7.1%
Expected rate of salary increases n/a 4.0%
Future pension increases
Deferred revaluations (CPI) 2.6% n‘a
Pensions in payment (RPI) 3.3% 3.5%
Life expectancy
Male 18.8 years 19.8 years
Femalg 23.0 years 22.9 years

The expected rate of salary increasas is no longer relevant 1o the calcutation of Plan liabilities given its closure to future accrual and so is noted as ‘not
applicable’ in the table above,

Following the Govermment led afteration to the level of statutory increases to be awarded in the future to deferred revaluations from being linked to RPI to

being linked to the Consumer Prices Index (CP1), the rate of inflation applied to deferred liabilities has changed in the current period and is now based on

CPI. The table above shows this assumption and alse BP! which remains to be applied to pensions in payment. This change in the statutory minimum for
deferred pension increases has reduced liabilitias by £15.0 million,

The valuation of the defined benefit section’s funding position is dependent on a number of assumptions and is therefore sensitive to changes in the
assurmnptions used Th2 imy- 15t of variations in the key assumptions are detailed helews:

* A changu in the discount rate of 0.1% pa would change the value of liabilities by approximately 2% or £9.3 million.
+ A change in the life expectancy by one year would change liabilities by approximately 3% or £14.5 milion.

Amaounts recognised in the Income Statement in respect of defined benefit schemes:

2010 2009

€000 £'000

Current senvice cost 1,064 1,070
Interast cost 24,979 20,941
Expected return on scheme assets {25,352} {21,209)
Gain on curtailment (6.300) -
(5,600} 802

Of the current service cost for the year, £798,000 {2009: £803,000) has been induded in cost of sales and £266,000 (2009: £267,000) has been included in
operating expanses. An actuarial gain of £14,064,000 {2009: loss of £71,288,000) has been recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
in the current penod. The cumulative amount of actuaral gains and losses recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income since the date of
transition 1o IFRS is a loss of £34,881,000 (2009: loss of £48,845,000). The actual return on scheme assets was £36,491,000 (2009; £50,345,000 return).

Armounts included in the Staterment of Financial Position:

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Present value of defined benefit obligations 446,095 446,114
Fair value of plan assets (385.309) (362,008)
TJotal liability recognised in Staternent of Financial Position 60,786 84,108
Amount included in current liabitities (4.444) 5111
Amount included in non-current liabilities . 56,342 78,997
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24, Retirement Benefit Obligation {(continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations:

i

COYETRNANG!

QP FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Balance at the start of the period 446,114 340,060
Service costs 1,064 1.070
Interest costs 24,978 20,941
Contribution from scheme members 927 2,175
Age related rebates 565 1.086
Changes in assumptions undertying the defined benefit obligations* {2,925) 100,425
Gain on curtaiment {6,300) -
Benefits paid (18,329) {19,643)
Balance at the end of the period 446,085 446,114
Movements in the fair value of plan assets:
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Balance at the start of the period 352,006 321,849
Expected return on plan assets 25,352 21,209
Actual return less expected retumn on plan assets” 11,139 29,137
Contributions from the spensoring companies 3.649 6,193
Contributions from plan members 927 2175
Age related rebates 565 1,086
Benefits paid (18,329} {19,643)
Balance at the end of the pericd 385,309 362,006

* Net of £7.0 miion pension fund assetliabdity adjustment

Analysis of the plan assets and the expected rate of return;

Expected rewrn Fair value of assets
0 20 2010 20098

09
Y % £'000 £'000
Equity instruments 8.0 8.2 250,836 228,426
Debt instruments 4.8 5.2 90,162 86,157
Property 6.0 6.2 20,807 19,186
Other assets 3.3 48 23,504 28,237
6.9 7.1 385,309 362,006
Five year history:
2010 2009 2008 2007 20086
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Present value of defined benefit obligations 446,095 446,114 340,060 406,900 420,913
Fair value of scheme assets {385,309) {362,0086) (321,849) (393,757) (375,474)
Deficit in the plan 60,786 84,108 18,211 13,143 45,439
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount (£'C00) 2,925 (100,425) 80,193 30,179 2,547
Percentage of plan liabilities (%) 0.7% (22.5%) 23.6% 7.4% 0.6%
Experience adjustments on scheme asseis
Amounts (£°000) 11,139 29,137 (92,340) {4,895) 7,828
Percentage of plan assets (%) 2.9% 8.0% (28.7%) {1.2%) 2.1%

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme during 2011 is £4,444,000 (2009: £5,111,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week penod ended 1 January 2011 continued

25, Deferred Tax

The following are the major defermed tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods.

Properties Accelerated tax Intangible Pension  Other timing
not eligible depreciation assets balances differences Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000

At 27 December 2008 13.638 21,195 288,460 {5.089) 498 318,692
Charge/(credit) to income 87) {5.700) {28,961) 1,516 326 {32,906)
Crediit to equity — - - (10,068) (2.223) {22,191)
Currency movements - (7) {2.127) — 3 (2,141)
At 2 January 2010 13,551 15,478 257,372 (23,551) {1,396) 261,454
Charge/(credit} to income {460) (531) {3.854) 2,628 (508) (2,725)
Dehit 10 equity - — - 3.936 — 3,936
Reduction in tax rate - incorme {552) 457) {8,664) 716 50 (8,907)
Reduction in tax rate - equity - — 48 (141) - @3
Transfer between categories 2,263 (2.263) — - — —
Currency movements - (1) (709) - - {(710)
At 1 January 2011 14,802 12,226 244193 {16,412) (1,854} 252,955

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (before offset) for financial reporting
purposes:

2010 2006

£'000 £1000

Deterred tax liabilities 271,221 286,401
Deferred tax assels {18.266) (24,947)
252955 261,454

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates are insignificant.

The Group estimates that the future rate changes to 24% would reduce its UK actual deferred tax liability provided at 1 January 2011 by £27.0 million,
however the impact will ba dependent on our deferred tax position at that time.

26. Long Term Provisions

Obligations

Onerous to industry

leases Post sponsored

and Unfunded retirerment pension
dilapidations pensions health costs schemes Tota!
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At the start of the period - 1,189 295 374 1,858
Reclassification from accruals 2,120 - - — 2,120
Reclassification from non-current trade and othar payables 1,925 - - - 1,925
Charge to income (including non-recurring element) 1,597 - - - 1,597
Actuarial valuation - - - {120} {120
Paid during the period (4585) - {45) - {500)
At the end of the period 5,187 1.189 250 2584 6,880

The unfunded pensicon provision and obligations to industry sponsored pension schemes are assessed by a qualified actuary at each period end. The post
retirement health costs represent management's estimate of the liability concerned.

The provision for onerous leases and dilapidations has been reclassified from accruals and non-current trade and other payables to more accurately reflect
the expecied timing of payment.
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2010 2009
£'000 £'000

Issued
639,746,083 Ordinary Shares of 10p each {2009: 639,738,865) 63,975 63,974
756,000 13.75% Cumulative Preference Shares of £1 each (2009 756,000) 756 756
349,600 13.75% “A" Preference Shares of £1 sach {2009; 349,600) 350 350
65,081 65,080

During the period ended 1 January 2011, the only change in the issued share capital of the Company was an exercise under the terms of the SAYE
scheme of 6,118 Crdinary Shares of 10p for a consideration of £1,750. Details of options cutstanding are shown in note 30. At the Company's Annual
General Meeting on 30 April 2010 a special resolution was passed adopting new Articles of Association consistent with the Companies Act 2006 which

removed the concept of authorised share capital.

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which has no right to fixed income. All the preference shares carry the right, subject to the discretion
of the Company to distribute profits, to a fixed dividend of 13.75% and rank in priority to the ordinary shares. Given the discretionary nature of the dividend

right, the preference shares are considered to be equity under [AS 32.

28. Nates to the Cash Flow Statement

2010 2009
£000 £'000
QOperating profit/{loss) 5487 {90,614)
Adjustrments for:
Impairment of intangibles - non-recurming 13.086 126,000
Other non-cash non-recurring items 1,555 2.344
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (including write-downs) 22,222 41,982
Currency differences {39) 12
Credit from share based payrments {2,073) (108)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,748} {259)
Movement on pension provision (1,373) (3.4459)
I1AS 19 pension curtailment gain (non-recuring) {6.300) -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 80,190 75,908
(Increase)/decrease in inveniories {1,668} 3.167
Decrease in receivables 1,546 15,703
Decrease in payables 730} {897)
Cash generated from operations 79,338 93,881

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the Statement of Financial Position) comprise cash at bank and

other short-term highty liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

29. Guaraniees and Other Financial Commitments

a) Lease commitments
The Group has entered inte non-gcancellable cperating leases in respect of mator vehicles and land and buildings, the payments for which extend over a
period of years.

2010 2009
£'000 £°000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 5,863 5,800

At the period end date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall dua
as follows:

2010 2009

£°000 £'000

Within one year 5,664 5,089
In the second to fith years inclusive 16,689 15,443
After five years 21,849 23,081
44,202 43,613

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and motor vehicle fleet. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 10 years in the case of properties and 4 years for vehicles. The rents payable under property leases are subject 1o renegoftiation at various
intervals spacified in the lease contrants. The Group pays insurance, maintenance and repairs of thesa propasties. The rents payable for the vehicle fleet
are fixed for the full rental period.

b) Assets pledged as security

Under the refinancing agreement signed on 28 August 2009, the Group and all its material subsidiaries have entered into a security agresment with the
Group's bankers and Private Placement loan note holders. The security provided includes a fixed charge over the assets of the Group including
investments, fixed assets, goodwill, intelectual property and a floating charge over its present and future undertakings.

30. Share-based Payments

Equity-setiled share option scheme

Options over ordinary shares are granted under the Executive Share Option Scheme., Options are exercisable at a price equal to the closing quoted market
price of the Company’s shares on the day pricr 1o the date of grant. The vesting period is 3 years. if the options remain unexercised after a period of 10
years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfelted if the employes leaves the Group before the options vest.

Details ¢f the share options cutstanding during the pericd:

2010 2009

Weighted Weighted

Number average Number average

of share exercise of sharg exercise

options price (in p) options price (in p)

Qutstanding at the beginning of pericd 321,888 232 384,926 234
Lapsed/forfeited during the period {9,231} 214 (63.038) 242
Qutstanding at the end cf the period 312,657 248 321,888 232
Exercisable at the end of the period 312,657 246 321,888 232

No share options were exercised during the period. The options outstanding at the period end had a weighted average exercise price of 246p, and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.7 years. No options have been granted since 2005,

Previous grants were valued using the Black-Scholes model. As far as the assumptions were concemed, expected volatility was determined by
calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price aver the previous full year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised a net credit of £2,123,000 related tc equity-settled share-based payment transactions in 2010 for the Executive Share Option
Scheme (2009: net credit of £328,000).
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30. Share-based Payments (continued)

Group Savings - Related Share Option Schame

The Company operates a Group savings-related share option scheme. This has been approved by the Inland Revenue and is based on eligible employees
being granted options and their agreeing to save weekly or monthly in a sharesave account with Halifax plc for a period of either 3, 5 or 7 years. The right
to exercise is at the discretion of the employee within six months following the end of the period of saving.

Options outstanding under Savings-Related Scheme at the period end:

Option Grant Date Number of Shares Issue price per Share
26.09.03 26,045 253.77p
29.09.04 29,800 304.48p
29,09.05 91,218 291.60p
29.09.06 87,015 224.76p
29.09.06 10,404 228.80p
27.09.07 286,553 226.41p
27.09.07 3,165 220.17p
26.09.08 3,851,097 37.60p
26.09.08 114,141 37.60p
25.09.09 4,008,627 28.60p
25.09.09 91,169 28.60p
28.09.10 15,849,551 15.75p
28.09.10 49,6857 15.75p

The Group recognised a net charge of £964,000 in 2010 (2009: net charge of £1,374,000) related to equity-settied share-based payment transactions for
the Savings-Retated Share Option Scheme.

The above options granted on 29 September 2006 and earlier were is.ued to employees at a price equivalent 1o the averag: *~ud-narket pric s for the

30 days prior to 30 August 2002, 20 August 2003, 27 August 2004, 2 Septernber 2005 and 1 September 2006 respectively. The subsequent options
were granted at the closing mid-market price on the day prior to the invitation being sent to employees on 3 September 2007, 1 September 2008,

1 Seplember 2009 and 1 September 2010 respectively. This follows the approval of the revised Sharesave Scheme at the Annual General Meeting in April
2007. A discount of 20% to the average mid-market price was applied to the issues in 2002 and thereafter.

Awards outstanding under Share Matching Plan at the period end:

The Group recognised a total credit of £1,357,000 in 2010 {2009; £nil} in relation to the Share Matching Plan. The performance tondrions for the matching
awards granted prior to 1 January 2007, when the plan was suspended, wera not met and all awards have lapsed.

Awards outstanding under Performance Share Plan at the period end:

Date PSP Awards Market Price on Award Vesting Dates
25.09.08 7,617,123 37.50p 25.09.11
30.06.09 12,362,539 16.50p 30.06.12
16.04.10 7,561,652 31.75p 16.04.13

The Group recognised a net charge of £443,000 in 2010 {2009: net credit of £1,154,000) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions for
the Performance Share Plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week perod ended 1 January 2011 continued

31. Related Party Transactions

aj Associated parties
The Group undertook transactions, all of which were on an arns’ length basis, and had balances outstanding at the period end with related parties as
shown below.

Purchases Creditors Sales Debtors
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Related party £'000 £'000 €000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Classified Periodicals Ltd 43 50 9 9 — - - -

Classified Periodicals Ltd is an associated undertaking of Johnston Prass pic, which re-publishes in a separate publication classified advertisements
which appear in the Group’s titles and those of certain other publishers. The Group provides certain administrative, distribution and production services to
Classified Periodicals Ltd.

The investment in Free Admart Ltd was disposed of in February 2009.

The amounts cutstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No provisions have been made lor
doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

b} Key management personnel
The remuneration of the Executive Directors, who are the key management persennel of the Group, is set out in the audited section of the Directors'
Remuneration Report.

32. Financial instruments

a) Capital risk management
The Group manages its zapital to ensure ithat entities in the Group will be able to continue as gaing concerns wi e maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the bormowings disclosed in note 22, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in note 27 and in the Group Reconcliiation of
Shareholders’ Equity.

b} Gearing ratio

The Board of Directors tormally reviews the capital structure of the Group twice each year and also when considering any major corporate fransactions.

As part of these reviews, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the
Beard. the Group will balance its overall capital strugture when appropriate through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the period end is as follows:

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Debt 399.887 429,655
Cash and cash equivalents {11,112} (12,279)
Net debt (excluding the impact of cross-currency hedges}) 388,875 417,276
Equity 411,187 370,024
Gearing ratio 48.6% 53.0%

Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings as detailed in note 22. Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to equity holders
of the parent.

¢) Externally imposed capital requirements
The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

d} Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the
financial statements.
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32. Financiai Instrurments {(continued)
¢} Categaries of financial instruments
2010 2009
£000 £°000
Financial assets {current and non-current)
Derivative instruments 15,757 15,794
Trade receivables 38,930 41,466
Cash and cash equivalents 11,112 12,279
Available for sale financial assets 970 870
Financial liabilities {current and non-curmrent)
Derivative instruments {4,241) (6.85%)
Trade payables {11,182} (14,142)
Borrowings {399,987) (429,555)

f) Financial risk management objectives

The Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business and monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the
Group through assessment of the exposures by degree and magnitude of risk. These risks include market risk (including currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures. The use of financial
derivatives is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board and requirements of the bank loan and private placement funding agreements,
which provide guidelines which must be operated within, The Group does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, including derivative financia!
instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Corporate Treasury function reports regularly to the Executive Directors and the Board.

g} Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates (refer 10 section h} and interest rates {refer to

section i). The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:

* Currency swaps to manage the foreign cumency risk associated with foreign cumency denominated borrowings, namely the US dollar denominated
private placement loan notes;

* Borrowings in Euros to manage the foreign currency risk associated with the Group's net investment in s foreign operations; and

¢ Interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates.

At a Group and Company level, market risk exposures are assessed using sensitivity analyses.

In 2010, the Group continued to reduce its risk to fluctuations in the eurc by repaying eurc borrowings. This brings the eure borrowings in line with the
vatue of the investment in our foreign operations.

There have been no further changes to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011 continued

32. Financial Instrurments {cantinued)

h) Fareign currency risk management
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign gurrencies, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise,

The Group utilises cumency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows. The Group is a party to a number of cross currency interest
rate swaps at the year end in the management of its exchange rate exposures. The instruments purchased are primarily denominated in US dollars in order
1o hedge the risks associated with the US dollar denominated private placement loan notes. There were no open foreign currency forward contracts at the
year end (2009: nil),

The canrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assets

2010 2009 2010 2009

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Euro
Trade receivables —- - 3.018 6,466
Cash and cash equivalents - — 1,487 1,836
Trade payables (2,467} (3.143) - -
Borrowings {12,848) (43,193) - —
UsS Dollar
Bomowings 1109.432) {117,466) - —

Foreign currency sensHivity

As noted above, the Group is mainly exposed 1o movements in Euros and US dollars rates. The following t=hle Antaii: .he Group's sensitivity to a 5% change
in pounds stering against the euro and a 5% cnange in pounds sterling against the US doflar. These peiceniages are . e rates used by manz2gemant when
assessing sensitivities internally and reprasent management'’s assessment of the possible change in foreign currency rates.

The senstlivity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date has been determined based on the change taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A positive number indicates an increase in profit or loss and other equity
where pounds sterling strengthens against the respective currency. For a 5% weakening of the sterling against the relevant currency, there is an equal and
oppaosite impact on profit or loss and other equity, and the balances below reverse signs.

LS Dollar
Euro cumency impact Currency Impact
2010 2009 2010 2008
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Profit or loss 466 1,776 108 —
Other equity - - - -

Of the impact on profit or loss an increase of £612,000 (2000: £2,057,000) relates to the retranslation of the Group's euro denominated borrowings. The
£109,000 impact on profit or loss from US Dollar exposure relates to the retranslation of that element of the PIK accrual.

tn 2010, the steriing/euro exchange rate improved from the closing 2009 year rate of 1.1113 to 1.1675. This resulted in a foreign translation gain on
borrowings of £22.6 million for the financial year.
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32, Financial Instruments {continued)

i} interest rate risk management

The Group is expased to interast rate risk as the Parent Company borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group
by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and ficating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swap contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated
regularly to align interest rate views, define risk appetite and the requirements of the funding agreements in place, ensuring optimal hedging strategies are
applied, by either posftioning the balance sheet or interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detalled in section k.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the period
end date. For floating rate liabilties, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liabilty outstanding at the pericd end date was outstanding for

the whole year. A 50 basis points decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk intermally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

At the reporting date, it interest rates had been 50 basis points lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's:

« net profit would increase by £409,000 {2009: net loss would decrease by £722,000). The decrease in the current year is mainly due to the impact of the
Group's fair value hedges; and

+ et profit would decrease by £664,000 [2009: net loss waould increase by £16,000) as a result of the changes in the fair value of the Group's cash flow
hedges.

For an increase of 5C bps, the numbers shown above would have the opposite effect.

interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed
notlonai principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the {air value of |ssued ﬂxed rate debt held
anii the orsh flow exposures on the issued floating rate debt held. -

The following tables detal! the national principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts gutstanding as at the reporting date. The
average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year. In the tables below, positive values in the fair value columns
denote financial assets and negative values denote financial liabiltties.

Tahle §
Cash flow hedges - outstanding receive fioating: pay fixed contracts and receive fixed: pay fixed contracts
Average contract Notional principal
fixed interest amount Fair value
2010 2009 210 2009 2010 2009
) % £'000 £'000 000 £000
Within 1 year 4.59 4.48 75,000 55,000 (727) {1,045}
21to b years 3.83 5.27 225,047 204,280 5,174 2,653
- 4.02 5.10 300,047 259,280 4.447 1.608

Contracts with a norinat value of £75.0 million have fixed interest paymenis at an average of 4.59% for periods up to 2011, contracts with a nominal value
of £170.0 milion have fixed interest payments at an average of 2.55% for periods up to 2012 and contracts with a nominal value of $96.4 milion have
fixed interest payments at an average of 7.80% for pericds up to 2012,

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis with interest being paid maonthly or quarterty on the underlying principal amount. The floating rate on the
interast rata swaps is 3 months LIBOR. The Group settles the difference between the fixed and floating interest rates on a net basis. All interest rate swap
contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest rate amounts are entered into in order to reduce the Group's cash flow expaosure
resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings.

Table 2
Fair value hedges - outstanding receive fixed: pay floating contracts
Average contract National principal
fixed interest amount Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
% % £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
210 5 years 8.84 2.08 40,704 48,703 7,068 7,334

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. The average floating rate on the interest rale swaps is 3 month LIBCOR plus a margin of 3.90%.
The Group settles the difference between the fixed and floating interest rates on a net basis.
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32, Financial Instruments (continued)

i} Interest rate risk management [continued)
Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped into 3 levels based on the extent to which the fair value is
observable. The levels are classified as follows:

Level 1: fair value is based on quoted prices in active marksts for identified financial assets and liabilities.
Level 2: farr value is determined using directly observable inputs other than tevel 1 inputs.
Level 3: fair value is determined on inputs not based on observable market data.

In the current angd prior period, the interest rate and cross curmency swaps are classified as level 2 financial instruments. There have been no transfers
between the various fevels of the fair valug hierarchy during the period.

j) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual cbligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted
a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterpariies as a way of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group's policy on dealing with
trade customers is described in notes 3 and 21.

The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continucusty monitored. As far as possible, the aggregate value of transactions is
spread across a number of approved counterparties.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed
on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics,

the latter being defined as connected entities, other than with some of the larger advertising agencies. In the case of the latter, a close relationship exists
between the Group and the agencies and appropriate allowances for doubtful debts are in ptace. The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial
instruments is fimited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by internaticnal credit-rating -gencies, and the funds and
financial instruments are held with a number of banks to spread the risk.

The following table shows the total estimated exposure to credt risk for &l of the Group's financial assets, excluding trade receivables which are discussed
in note 21:

2010 2009
Carving  Exposure to Carrying Exposure to
value credit rigk value credit risk
<000 £000 £'000 £'000
Available for sale investments 970 - 970 -
Cash and cash equivalents 114,112 - 12,279 -
Derivative instruments ' 15,757 — 15,794 -
27,839 - 29,043 -

K} Liguidity risk management

Uttimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has agreed an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liguidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Included in note 22 is a description of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its
disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk is further discussed in the Business Review on page 22.
Liquidity and interest risk tables
The fellowing tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilties, The tables have been drawn up on the

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
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32, Financial Instrumients {continued)
Kk} Liquidity sisk management {continued)

Period ended 1 January 2011

GOLEANANS,

m FIMANGIAL STATEMENTS

2003 2006
Bank Bank Private Private Trade
overdraft joans placement placement payables Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within 1 year 5,550 11,593 7,878 5,744 11,182 41,047
In 1-2 years - 262,412 94 239 67,060 — 423,711
5,580 274,005 102,197 72,804 11,182 465,658
Period ended 2 January 2010
2003 2008
Bank Bank Private Private Trade
overdraft loans placement placement payables Total
200G £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within 1 year 1,022 30,085 13,647 9,715 14,142 68,611
I 1-2 years - 35,989 14,185 10,084 - 60,258
2-3 years — 252,973 91,089 63,923 -
1,022 319,547 118,921 83,722 14,140 5Uh,854
The maturity profile of the Group's financial derivatives (which include interest rate and foreign currency swaps), using undiscounted cash flows, is as
follows:
2010 20098
Payabkle Receivable Payable Receivable
£'0neo £°000 £'000 £'000
Within 1 year 11107 11,091 14,401 12,296
In 1-2 years 102,533 116,008 11,316 12,839
2-3 years - - 115,029 127,091
113,840 127,099 140,746 162,226

The Group has accass to financial faciities, the total unutilised amount of which is £40.3 million (2008: £47.1 milion) at the reporting date. The Group
expects to meet its obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

{) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are provided by the counterparty to the instrument.

Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash fiows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived from

quoted interest rates.
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Company Balance Sheet
at 1 January 2011

Notes 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Fixed Assets
Tangible 35 9 567
Investments 36 624,728 631,810
624,737 632,377
Current assets
Stocks 37 - 162
Debtors - due within one year 38 77,092 76,310
- due after more than one year 38 456,185 457 577
Cash at bank and in hand 179 3,248
533.456 537,297
Creditors: amounts faling due within one year 39 117,500) {135.866)
Net current assets 415,956 401,431
Total assets less current liabilities 1.040,693 1,033,808
Creditors: amounts falling dus after more than one year 40 {403,249) (414,468)
Provisions for liabilities 42 {1,189) (1,189}
Net assets 636,255 618,151
Capital and reserves
Called-.:p share capital
Ordinary 63,975 63,974
Preference 1,106 1,106
65.081 65,080
Reserves 43 571,174 583,071
Sharehottlers' funds 636,255 618,151

The comparative numbers are as at 2 January 2010.

The financial statements of Johnston Press plc, registered number 15382, were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2011 and were signed on

its behatf by:

John Fry, Chief E;Me'&ﬁcer

Stuart Paterson, Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an intgdral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011

33. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting and preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. As penmitted by that Act, the separate financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards. No Profit and Loss Account is presented as
permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, The Company's profit for the period, determined in accordance with the Act, was £20,328,000
(2009: loss of £61,644,000). The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain fixed assets
and derivative financial instruments. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

The 2010 period was for the 52 weeks ended 1 January 2011 with the prior year being for the 53 weeks ended 2 January 2010.

Going concern
The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
1o continua in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed asset balances are shown at cost or valuation, nat of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on all property.
plant and equipment, excluding tand, at varying rates calculated to writa-off cost over the useful lives. The principal rates employed are:

Heritable and freehold property {excluding land) 2.5% on written down value

Leasehold land and buildings equal annual instalments over lease term

Other plant and machinery 6.67%, 10%, 20%, 25% and 33% straight line basis
Motor vehicies 25% straight line basis

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment. Unlisted investments are shown at Directors’ valuation.
Upward revaluations are credited to the revaluation reserve. Downward revaluations in excess of any previous upward revaluations are taken to the Profit
and Loss Account. .

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisabie value. Cost incurred in bringing materials 1o their present location and condition comprises: (a)
raw rmaierials and goeds for resale at purchase cost on a first-in first-out basis; and (b) work in progress at cost of direct materials, labour and certain
overheads. Net realisable value comprises selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans and bank overdrafis are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premia payable
on setliement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to the Profit and Loss Account using the efiective interest method and are added to the
carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not seftled in the period in which they arise. Fees incurred in negotiating bomowings are held
on the Balance Sheet and amortised to the Profit and Loss Account over the term of the underlying debt.

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corperation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the perod end date where transactions or events
that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the period end date. Timing differences are
differences between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in
tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial staterments.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expectad to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based
on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end date.

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity settled share-based benefits to certain employees. These share-based payments are measured at their fair value at the date
of grant and the fair value of expected shares is expensed to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Fair value is
measured by use of the Black-Scholes model, as amended to take account of the Directors' best estimate of probable share vesting and exercise.

Dividends

Dividends payable to the Company's shareholders are recorded as a liability in the peried in which the dividends are approved. In the Company’s financial
statements, dividends receivable from subsidiaries are recognised as assets in the period in which the dividends are approved.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the 52 week period ended 1 January 2011

33. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of that
instrumeni.

The Company's activities and funding structure give rise to some exposure to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign curency exchange
rates. The Company uses interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to manage these exposures.
The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised directly in the Profit and Loss Account.
Full details ot the Group policy are summarised on page 66.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Company participates in a Group-wide scheme, the Johnston Press Pension Plan, which has a defined benefit section (providing benefits based on
final pensionable pay) and a defined contribution section (see note 24). The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Company, The
pension costs for the defined contribution section are charged to the Profit and Loss Account on the basis of contributions due in respect of the financial
year. In relation to the defined benefit section of the schema, the Company is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and kabilities on a
consistent and reliable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 17, the Comparny accounts for this scheme as a defined contribution scheme, As a result,
the amount charged to the Profit and Loss Account in respect of the defined benefit section represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect
of the period.

34. Staft Costs

2010 2009
No. No.
Average number of employees

Sales - 1
Production 3 6
Administration 22 27
25 34
2010 2009
£°000 £'000

Employee costs (including directors)
Wages and salaries 2757 2,890
Social security costs 326 305
Other pension costs 178 514
3,261 3,709
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Freehold Plant and Motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000
Cost
At 27 Becember 2008 708 192 72 973
Additions — 9 — g
Disposals - (14} (30) {44)
At 2 January 2010 709 187 42 938
Disposals (709) 23) - (732)
At 1 January 2011 - 164 ¥4 206
Depreciation
At 27 Decamber 2008 162 183 29 364
Disposals - {14 (i6) (30)
Charge for the year 14 6 17 37
At 2 January 20i0 166 i75 30 an
Disposals (171) 21) - (192)
Charge for the year 5 3 10 18
At 1 January 2011 - 157 a0 197
Carrying amount
At 1 January 2011 - 7 2 9
At 2 January 2010 543 12 12 567
36. Investrments
Subsidiary Unlisted
undertakings investments Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
Al the start of the period 1,105,370 3,526 1,108,896
Amounts relating to share based payments (188} - (188
At the end of the period 1,105,182 3,526 1,108,708
Provisions for impairment
At the start of the period (473,560) (3,526} (477,086}
Provision for impairment (6,894) - 6,894)
At the end of the pariod (480,454) (3,526} {483,980}
Not book value
At the start of the period 631,810 - 631,810
At the end of the period 624,728 - 824,728

An impairment charge has been reflected in the financial statements of the Group, Full details are explained in note 15. Inevitably this affects the value of
the investments held by the Parent Company and the slemment of the impairment of intangible assets relating to the investments held by the Company only
has been processed as an impairment of investments.
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36, Investments (continued)

The Company's principal subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

Country of Proportion
incorporation of ownership
Name of company and operation interest Nature of Business
Johnston Publishing Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
*Johnston Press Ireland Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
Johnston (Falkirk) Ltd Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers
Strachan & Livingston Ltd Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers
Wilfred Edmunds Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Yorkshire Weekly Newspaper Group Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Sussex Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
T R Beckett Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
*Halifax Courier Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
“isla of Man Newspapers Ltd Isle of Man 100% Newspaper publishers and printers
South Yorkshire Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Yorkshire Regiona! Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
*East Midtands Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Lincolnshire Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Anglia Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Northamptonshire Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Central Counties Newspapers Lid England 100% Newspaper publishers
Premier Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
Peterboro’ Web Ltd Engtand 100% Contract printers
"Northampton Web Ltd England 100% Contract printers
*Portsrmouth Publishing & Printing Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers and printers
“Northeast Press Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers and printers
*The Tweeddale Press Ltd Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers
“Yorkshire Post Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers and printers
“Ackrill Newspapers Lid England 100% Newspaper publishers
*Sheffield Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers and printers
*Lancashire Evening Post Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
“Lancashire Pubfications Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
*Lancaster & Morecambe Newspapers Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
*Johnston Letterbox Direct Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
‘Blackpool Gazetts & Herald Ltd England 100% Newspaper publishers
“East Lancashire Newspapers Lid England 100% Newspaper publishers
Score Prass Ltd Scotland 100% Holding company
‘Morton Newspapers Ltd MNortherm Irgland 100% Newspapar publishars and printers
*Kilkenny People Publishing Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
*Angus County Press Ltd Scotland 100% Newspagper publishers
Galloway Gazette Ltd Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers
‘Stomoway Gazette Ltd Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers
‘Longford Leader Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
‘Leitrim Observer Ltd Repubiic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
‘Leinster Leader Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
‘Leinster Express Newspapers Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
*Dundalk Democrat Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
*Limerick Leader Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
*Derry Journal Ltd Northern Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers
*Donegal Democrat Ltd Republic of lreland 100% Newspaper publishers
The Scotsman Publications Lt Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers
“Clonnad Ltd Republic of Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers

"Hedd through a subsidiary.

Thera is no difference in the proportions of ownership interest shown above and the voting power held, All investments in subsidiary undertakings are held
at cost less. where appropriate, provisions for impairment.
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37. Stocks
2010 2009
£:000 £'000
Raw materials - 13
Goods for resale - 149
- 162
38. Debtars
2010 2009
£000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 66,713 65,269
Comporation tax recoverable 9,999 10,411
Trade and other debtors and prepayments 380 630
77,092 76,310
Amoums falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 440,062 441,401
Dertvative financial instruments (note 23} 15,757 15,794
Deferred tax asset - sea balow 366 382
456,185

457.57F

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the Company and movements theraon during the year,

Accelerated
tax Pension Other timing
depreciation balarices ditferences Totat
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
At the start of the period 30 333 19 382
Charge to profit and loss account 2) - - [12d)
Reduction in tax rate (1 12) m (14)
At the end of the period 27 321 18 366
39. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Borrowings (note 41) 430 21,735
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 110,125 107,818
Other taxes and social security costs 498 175
Accruals and deferred income 5719 5,077
Other creditors - 16
Derivative financial instruments {note 23} 728 1,045
117,500 135,866
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40, Creditors: amounts falling due alter more than one year

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Borrowings (note 22) 399,736 408,662
Derivative financial instruments {note 23) 3,513 5,806
403,249 414,468
41. Borrowings
2010 2009
Tha Company’s bank overdrafts and loans comprise: £000 £'000
Bank overdrafis 5,729 1,864
Bank loans - sterling 234,060 233,746
Bank loans - euro denominated 12.848 43,193
2003 Private placement loan notes 86,626 96,238
2006 Private placement loan notes 61,542 67,428
Payment-in-kind interest accrual 8,624 2,193
Term debt issue costs {9.273) (14,265)
406,168 430,397
2010 2009
‘vhe borrowings are repayable as follows: £'000 £'000
On demand or within one year 5.729 27.021
Within one to two years 403.710 30,187
Within two to five years - 387.454
409,439 444 662
Less amount due for settliement within one year {5, 72% {27.021)
Amount due for settlement after more than one year 403.710 417,641

The borrowings are shown in the Balance Sheet net of term debt issue costs of £9,273,000 of which £5,299,000 is deducted from current liabilities
{2009: £14,265,000 of which £5,286,000 is deducted {rom cument liabilities).

Other detalls relating to the bank overdrafts and loans are set out in note 22.
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Unfunded
pensions
£:000
At the start and end of the period 1,189
The unfunded pension provision is assessed by a gualified actuary at each period ena.
43. Reserves
Share-based Hedging and
Share Payments Revaluation  Translation Retained Other Own
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Reserves Shares Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cpening balance 502,818 19,346 47 - 16,354 16,510 (5,004) 553,071
Profit for the period — - — — 20,328 - — 20,328
Revaluation adjustment — - {47) — 47 - - —
Dividends — — — — (152 — — {152
Provision for share-based payments - (2,073) - - — — — (2,073}
At the end of the period 502818 17,273 — — 36,577 18,510 5,004) 571,174

Further details of share-based payments are shown in note 30.

SOMNSTON PRESS PLC ANMUAL REPOAT AND ACCOUNTS 2000 103




FINANGLAL STATEMENTS

Group Five Year Summary

2006 2007 2008 20091 2010

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 €000
Income Statement
Revenue 602,221 607,504 531,899 427,996 398,084
Operating profit on ordinary activities* 186,773 178,142 128,412 71,784 71,891
Share of associates' operating profit 80 76 85 22 10
Non-recurring items 15,143) (12,703) (528,090) (162,398) {17,133)
Profit/{loss) before interest and taxation 171,690 165,515 (399,591} (90,592) 54,868
Net financa costs {40,138) {40,801) (29,667) (28,465) {41.505)
Non-recurring finance costs and I1AS 21/39 ilems - - — 5,282 3,168
Profitfloss) betore taxation 131,554 124,714 {429,258) (113,775) 16,529
Taxation (35,899) {11,159} ,788 26,517 19,535
Profit/loss) for the year 95,655 113,555 (385,470) (87.258) 36,064
Statistics
Basic earnings/{loss) per share* 24.42p 28.91p {67.99p) {13.66p) 5.61p
Underlying earnings per share* 26.93p 25.08p 13.41p 5.53p 3.67p
Operating profit* to turnover 31.0% 29.3% 24.1% 16.4% 18.1%
Balance Sheet
Intangible assets 1,483,733 1,503,624 1,057,886 923,377 807,455
Property, plant and equipment and asssts held for sale 268,342 273,381 260,498 219,608 185,091
Investments 2,745 2,751 2,772 1,000 982
Dertrative financial instruments 6,588 4,192 36,488 iR 7aA 16,757

1,761,418 1,783,948 1,357,644 1,038,779 1 :11 9.285

Net current assets/liabilities) 24,526 {2,378) 8,400 (41,473) 11,483
Total assets lass current liabilities 1,785,944 1,781,570 1,366,044 1,118,306 1,130,768
Non-current liabiiities (769,321) (691,010 {519,728) {405,973} (103,404}
Long term provisions (442,810) (406,785) {332.496) {342,309) {318,177}
Net Assets 573.813 683,775 513,820 PR 4 411,187
Shareholders' Funds
Crdinary Shares 28,787 28,838 63,974 63,974 63,975
Preferance Shares 1,106 1,106 1,106 1,108 1,106
Raserves 543,920 653,831 448,740 304,944 346,106
Capital Employed 573,813 683,775 513.820 370,024 411,187

T Al periods related to 52 trading weeks with The exceplion of 2009 which is a 53 wook pericd.

" The gamings per sham for the periods ended 2006 and 2007 have been restated to reflect the dilution factor of the Rights (ssue completed in June 2008.

+ before non-recurring and IAS21/39 iterns.
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